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HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN:  Good
norning. M nane is Bradley Halloran. |'ma
hearing officer with the Illinois Pollution
Control Board and | am assigned to this
consol i dated natter, PCB01-48, PCBO1-49,
Community Landfill Conpany and the Gty of
Morris versus the Illinois Environnental
Prot ecti on Agency.

Today is Friday, January 19th, the
year 2001. It's approxinmately 9:45.

I note that there are no nenbers or
enpl oyees of the board present, nor are there
any nenbers of the public. |If there were
menbers of the public present, they would be
all owed to give testinony subject to
cross-exam nation and, of course, there will be
a public coment period discussed during the
briefing period at the end of the hearing.

This hearing is continued on the
record fromyesterday, January 18, and is being
hel d pursuant to Section 105-214 of the board's
procedural rules regarding permanent PGs in

accordance with Section 101, subpart F.
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Petitioner is going to be calling his next and
| ast witness, is that correct, M. LaRose?

MR. LAROSE: That's correct, M.
Hal | or an.

Qur next and, hopefully, last w tness
is M. MDernont.

(Wtness duly sworn.)

M CHAEL MCDERMONT,

called as a witness herein, having been first

duly sworn, was exam ned and testified as

fol | ows:
EXAM NATI ON
BY MR LAROCSE:
Q M. MDernont, could you state your

nanme for the record?

A My nane is M ke MDernont.
MCGDERMONT.

Q What do you do for a living, sir?

A I'm a professional engineer enployed
by Andrews Environnental Engineering in
Springfi el d.

Q You testified to sone prelimnary
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at that time. That testinony still stands for
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today, correct?
A That is true.
Q I'"msure everybody will be happy that

we're not going to go over that again.

Sir, are you famliar with the genera
plan for the design and construction of this
andfill pursuant to the pernits that are at

i ssue in this proceedi ng?

A Yes.
Q Were you the person that -- strike
t hat .

Wth respect to the permits at issue
in this proceeding, what was your job?

A My job was the -- I'mthe project
manager for Andrews Engi neering.

Q kay. And just in general, in
general, in the course of the last four years
that we have been dealing with this thing, in
general what did that entail ?

A That entailed ne managi ng support

staff of engineers, hydrogeol ogi sts,
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chemists, interfacing with the client.

Q Did it entail you actually doing any
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work on the application yourself?

A In addition, | did do quite a bit of
work on the application nyself.

Q When you say quite a bit of work, you
mean actually witing the application?

A The 1996 application was primarily
prepared by support staff and in that role
performed editing of all of it. In the 2000
application, | wote virtually 80 percent of it,
was assisted prinarily by a gentlenman, who is
t he hydrogeol ogi st, by the name of Ron Hewitt.

Q Okay. And regardl ess of whether you
wote the '96 or whether you wwote all portions
of the 2000, did you review the entire

application?

A Yes, | did.

Q Every single word of it?

A Every single word of it.

Q And that is for Parcel A and Parcel B,

correct?
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Q Okay. The board's procedural rules,
excuse ne, the board' s rules on permt appeals

require us to describe potential contam nants
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that we are seeking to control with the design
of this landfill and describe the methods that
we seek to control themwth, correct?

A That is correct.

Q Okay. Could you describe briefly the
potential contam nants, and | don't nean the
chemical elenents, but just the general and npst
significant contam nants that we are seeking to
control with the design and operation of this
[andfill?

A Yes. There would be three of them

It would involve | eachate, groundwater and

landfill gas.
Q What is | eachate?
A Leachate is a liquid that largely

derives fromprecipitation entering the waste
mass inside of a landfill, it percol ates down by
gravity to the bottomof the landfill.

Q Ckay. And why is that a contam nant?
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A When the precipitation or infiltration
passes through the solid waste, it has a
tendency of picking up various chemcals from
the waste itself, which then becone dissolved in

the liquid phase.
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Q Talk to ne for a second about
groundwater. Wiy is that a contaninant with
respect to this issue?

A Groundwater is the water in the ground
that surrounds the landfill. Typically a
andfill places waste bel ow ground level and in
nost landfills in Illinois places it bel ow the

groundwat er table. As such we installed
monitoring wells to preclude or nmeasure and
nonitor to insure that there is no contanination
of the groundwater occurring.

Q kay. And in this particular -- at
this particular site, were there sone
groundwat er probl enms or groundwater
contam nation that existed before these
applications even went in?

A That is correct.

Q Were there sone groundwat er
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contami nation petitions that existed before CLC
even entered into an agreenment with the Gty of
Morris to do anything on Parcel A?

A That is correct.

Q So that woul d have been groundwat er

contami nation attributable to what you had
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terned earlier in the hearing as that historica

fill?
A Yes, sir.
Q Ckay. As a result of that groundwater

contam nation, the historical groundwater

contam nation fromthe historical fill, did you

have to design and propose to design this

landfill a little bit differently than others?
A Yes. The design for Parcel A included

a contingent renediati on programto address

potential and alleviate groundwat er

contam nati on concerns on the east side of

Parcel A.
Q Talk to me about gas.
A When solid waste, municipal solid

wast e degradates, it gives off carbon nonoxide

and net hane, nitrogen and some car bon nonoxi de.
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Basically, these gases or a portion of themare
known as greenhouse gases and as such to prevent
gl obal warm ng the gases are collected and in
this case beneficially reused to make
electricity.

Q Now, the regulations, do they require

you to actually control the gas that is
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generated as a result of the disposition of
trash?

A The regul ations do require that you

control the gas if you neet certain standards.
For this landfill, an active gas system was
installed on Parcel B prior to ever neasuring to
determine if regulations required us to do it.
In other words, we did that activity
voluntarily.

Q Do you have to do -- | guess that was
nmy next question. Do the regs require you to do
an active gas collection systen?

A The regs require you to do an active
gas collection system if the concentration of
gas is neasured above a certain explosive limt

in buildings or in waste probes, waste gas
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probes or in gas paranmeter probes. There is
al so another regulation by the US EPA that
requires gas collection system based on surface
em ssion nonitoring comng fromthe [andfill.

Q The gas coll ection systemyou said
it's turned into energy. Is that this site or
other sites?

A. This is on the Parcel B side of this
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landfill.
Q And describe just briefly how the gas
turns into electricity.
A The gas, the energy fromthe gas is

extracted as a fuel, which actually is used

i nside a converted caterpillar reciprocating
engi ne, nmuch as gasoline or diesel fuel. In
ot her words, the BTU content is extracted and
the -- which in turn drives the piston in the
engine, which in turn drives the generator

produci ng el ectricity.

Q Sir, the actual contam nants -- now,
we' ve tal ked about the general. |Is there a list
of contaminants that you are -- particular

chem cal compounds or chenicals that you're
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trying to nmake sure don't get into the

environnent in an adverse way?

A Yes, there is.

Q kay.

A Along list.

Q ' mgoing to hand you what has been

previously marked as Exhibit P. It's nmerely the
permt appeal in this case.

MR. LAROSE: M. Halloran, it's just
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the pernmt appeal in this case. |'mnot going
to burden you with another piece of paper

HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN:  Ckay.
Thank you.
BY MR LARGCSE
Q M. MDernont, that is the petition or
the pernmit appeal petition for Parcel A?
A That is correct.
Q And that docurment in paragraphs 10 and
11 descri be the contam nant emni ssions and the
proposed | evels of control, correct?
MR KIM Excuse nme. Wat page
nunbers are you referring to?

MR. LAROCSE: Sorry. 3 and 4,
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par agraphs 10 and 11.

BY MR, LAROSE:

Q Sir?
A Yes, sir.
Q Those paragraphs describe the

cont am nant eni ssions and the proposed |evel of

controls on Parcel A?

A Yes, they do.
Q And appended to this docurment is a
long -- is Exhibit 1, which is a long list of
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contam nants and additional paraneters that
m ght be found in | eachate, groundwater and gas
condensate. Do you see that?

A That is true.

Q Are those the specific chemcal
elements that we're trying to nake sure don't
get into the environnent in an adverse way?

A Yes, sir.

MR LARCSE: Wth that, M. Halloran,
| woul d nmove Exhibit P into the record.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN: M. LaRose,
I will get a copy of that, | assune.

MR. LAROCSE: | will give you a copy
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HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN:  Thank you.
M. Kim any objection?
MR KIM No, it's a pleading, | guess
the board could take note of it but no
obj ecti on.
HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLCORAN: Exhibit P
is admitted.
(Exhibit No. P was adnitted.)
BY MR, LAROCSE:

Q Sir, 1'"'mgoing to hand you what has
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been previously marked as Exhibit Q and ask you
to take a |l ook at that, please.

Sir, that is a pernmt appeal for
Parcel B, correct?

A Yes.

Q And Parcel B in paragraphs 10 and 11
on pages 3 and 4 and in Parcel B, permt appeal
t hey describe the contam nants that we seek to
control and the nethods or nmeans by which we
seek to control them correct?

A Yes.

Q And attached to the Parcel B
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application is an identical Exhibit 1, which was
the specific list of chem cal conpounds that
we' re hoping don't get into the environnent in
an adverse way based on the design and operation
of this landfill, right?
A That is true.
MR. LAROSE: Wth that, M. Hearing
O ficer, I would nove Exhibit Qinto the record
HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN: M. Kin®?
MR KIM No objection
HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN: Exhibit Q

is adm tted.
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(Exhibit No. Q was adnitted.)
BY MR LAROCSE:

Q M. MDernont, even though the pernit
appeal s described in a general fashion the
particul ar devices that we seek to control, |
would Iike -- got a couple of exhibits and I'd

like to take a couple of mnutes for you to just
illustrate on these exhibits how these controls
oper at e.

First docunent |'mgoing to show you

i s Exhibit BBB.
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MR, LARCSE: For the record, M.
Hearing Officer, this is sheet nunmber B4-3,
whi ch was included in the pernit application and
is included in the record at page Parcel B
Vol une 1, pages 0112.
BY MR, LAROCSE:
Q M. MDernmont, do you have that little

clicker that | bought for you?

A | certainly do.

Q Ckay.

A Certainly in nmy hotel room
Q Very good, sir.

MR. LAROSE: Can you guys see this?
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John, can you see this?
Brad, can you see this?
HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN:  Yes,
t hanks.
BY MR, LAROCSE:
Q M. MDernmont, what is Exhibit BBB?

A Exhibit BBB is our draw ng sheet
nunber B4-3, which is -- the used copy of it is
provided in Attachnent 4 of the Parcel B

application, drawing entitled, final grading
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pl an of Parcel B

Q kay. So that is the Parcel B, the
west side of the landfill, if you will, correct?

A Yes, sir.

Q Coul d you general ly describe the --

and let's take it one at a time so that the
record is clear, the pollution control devices,
where the devices designed to control

contam nants as they are depicted on Exhibit

BBB?
A Certainly.
We're just tal king about the active
landfill gas nmanagenent system down here in the
sout heast corner of the landfill is the two
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bui | di ngs, two |ong buildings that house the
engines that turn the gas into electricity.

Prior to the gas reaching those engines, it
passes through a gas condensate tank, the gas
condensate tank allows the saturated gas to give
up sone of the noisture and drop in the tank

the condensate tank is hooked up to or it is
connected to the City of Morris sanitary sewer,

whi ch runs on the east side of the Parcel B
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facility.

Q How i s the gas collected?

A The gas is collected by a series of
pi pi ng, which is configured in a | oop around
Parcel B. Fromthis |oop of piping, which has a
vacuumin it, various pipes are appendi ng off of
t hi s.

Q Coul d you stand back just a little bit
so that M. Halloran can see it? Thanks.

A Once again, the header pipe, the gas
pipe is running in a | oop configuration exiting
back at the plant. The gas is extracted from
the landfill under a vacuum based on the intake
fromthe conpressor, which conpresses the gas

for engi ne fuel
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Q Is that entire system the gas
extraction systemthat you just explained,
built?
A That entire systemis built, and as

part of that there appears to be at |east 18
vertical gas extraction wells that are connected
to that well fill. |In addition, there are three

vertical |eachate wells that are al so connect ed
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to the gas extraction systemfor a total of 21
points for renmoving landfill gas from Parcel B.
Q You have said that it is built. 1Is

that systempernmitted?

A That systemis permtted.

Q I's that operational ?

A Yes.

Q Is there a storage tank appended to

the gas coll ection systenf
A The gas coll ection system storage tank

is what we call the gas condensate tank.

Q And is that |ike gas |eachate?

A That's |i ke gas | eachate, yes, sir.

Q And is that connected to the city
sewer ?

A That is connected to city sewer.
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Q Where does that go to?
City sewer goes to the City of Mrris

sewage treatnment plant.

Q Cty of Morris POTW

A Yes, sir.

Q It was permtted by the | EPA?
A Yes, sir.
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Q When was that?

A The -- I'msorry. | don't understand
t he questi on.

Q When was the permt issued?

A The pernmit was issued for operating
the gas extraction systemin 1996.

Q And was there a separate permt issued
to send the gas | eachate through the sewer
systemto the POTW?

A I"'msorry. | need to correct nyself.
The devel opnental permt or the gas extraction
systemwas issued in '96. The gas -- the pernit
to operate, approving the gas operating system
was i ssued probably in 1999 plus or mnus a year
and now back to your question, which | forgot,
sir.

Q That's all right.
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Was there a separate pernmt -- permt

to devel op the system right?

A Uh- huh.

Q Yes or no, sir, she can't --

A I'msorry, yes.

Q Ckay. There is a pernmit to operate
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the system yes?
A Yes.
Q There is a separate pernmt to send the

gas |l eachate to the Morris POTW

A Yes. That is permtted by the bureau
of water.

Q What do they call that permt?

A They call that a NPDES permt.

Q kay. So there is a -- okay. Did the

NPDES pernit approve this to go to the Mrris

POTWP
A Yes, they did.
Q Even though Morris owns the landfill?
A Yes, sir.
Q Ckay. So we have covered the gas

system as on Parcel B as a nmeans to control
cont anm nant s?

A And there is only one thing | would
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add in addition to the two bureau of |and
permts that apply to it, the bureau of water
permit that applies to it, there is also two
bureau air pernmits that apply to the em ssion

source, which are the engines.
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Q Ckay. The turbines or the generators?
A The engi nes powering the generators.
Q Okay. Describe the next pollution

control device or series of devices that appears
on Exhi bit BBB.

A From the southeast corner going into a
count ercl ockwi se neasure, the next device we
woul d cone across would be the proposed | eachate
st orage tank.

Q Ckay. How big is the |eachate,
proposed | eachate storage tank?

A It's approximately 104, 000 gal |l ons,
based on having a storage capacity of one day of
| eachat e condensate and groundwat er generation

Q Ckay. And is that calculated on a
maxi mum of | eachate, condensate and groundwat er
generated in one day?

A Yes, sir, it is.

Q It doesn't necessarily mean, however
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that you're going to make or generate that nuch
of those conmponents that are going to go into
the tank, correct?

A. That is correct.
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Q The next pollution control device that

exi sts on Parcel B, please.

A | guess | would call the next device
typi cal of --

Q Can | back up for a second, M.
McDernont? | don't nmean to interrupt you.

The tank that you just described, is
that going to service only Parcel B or is there
a proposal for one tank that is going to service
both A and B?

A Actual ly, that would -- you are
correct, that would be for both A and B.

Q And the 104,000 gallon cal cul ation
woul d have been a cal cul ati on based on the
maxi mum possi bl e?

MR. KIM (Objection, |eading.

BY MR LARGCSE

Q Sir, what would the 104, 000 gallon

cal cul ati on be based on?

A As required by the regulation, it is
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based upon the naxi mum anmount of precipitation
entering the landfill and the peak | eachate

generation, which the landfill will produce in a
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one day period, and that is used to size the

st orage tank.

Q And woul d that be for Parcels A and B?
A For both parcels, yes, sir.
Q The next |eachate -- or excuse ne, the

next pollution control device on Parcel B

A The next pollution control device
woul d be a groundwater nonitoring well.

Q A groundwater monitoring well or a
system of groundwater nonitoring well?

A It would be one in a counterclockw se
nmeasure, which would be typical of, | believe
there is over 10 on this parcel, and simlarly
on Parcel Athere is 9 on that segment.

Q | guess | didn't understand that. One
in a counterclockwi se nmeasure, what do you nean?

A I"'msorry. | was trying to do this in
order. The groundwater nmonitoring wells are
pl aced around the perimeter of the landfill and
in a countercl ockwi se order the next one we cane

to was one well that is representative of the
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groundwat er nonitoring network around the

peri meter of the |and.
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Q So how nany wells are there around the

peri meter of Parcel B, proposed?

A It appears there are ten

Q Okay. Are any of those constructed?

A Al'l of those are constructed.

Q And installed?

A And installed and have been sanpl ed,
yes, sir

Q Let's back up again.

The tank, obviously, the |eachate
storage tank or the storage tank for |eachate,
condensat e and groundwat er, hasn't been
constructed yet because that's one of the issues
we' re argui ng about here whether we need a tank
and how big it should be?

A That is correct.

Q The next pollution control device on
Parcel B, please

A Wul d be a gas perineter probe,
simlarly to the groundwater nonitoring wells,
there are 18 perineter gas probes placed around

the facility approximately at equal intervals.
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Q And what do they do?
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A They serve as a detection device to
make sure that the landfill gas, which is
bringing -- kind of coming fromthe degraded
solid waste is not |eaving or nigrating past the
property boundary.

Q Are those installed?

A Those are 75 percent installed and
they're being finished this week or next week.

Q Okay. The next pollution contro
device on Parcel B, please.

A The next device would just sinply be
dr ai nage devi ces around, or drainage ditches
around the facility that enter into a storm
wat er detention pond, renove sedinments fromthe
stormwater generator fromprecipitation

Q Sir, is that -- with the exception of
the final, the intermediate and final cover
systens -- well, strike that.

Is there a separation |layer on Parce

B?

A Yes, there is a separation |ayer on
Parcel B.

Q kay. And is that simlar in design
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and construction to the separation layer that is
proposed to be put on Parcel A?

A That is true.

Q Okay. And when | say separation
| ayer, a layer of dirt that separates --

MR KIM (Objection, |eading.
BY MR LARGCSE

Q VWhen | say separation |ayer, what do
nmean by that?

A Separation |layer design is a 36 inch
thick barrier layer of clay that is inperneable
and has to nmeet a standard of 1 times 10 to the
negative 7 centineters per second.

Q What does it separate?

A Separates the old trash fromthe new
trash. The new trash is placed on top of it.

Q The things that you've described on
Parcel B, with the exception of the final cover
system which we'll see on an illustration on
another drawing, are all set forth in genera
terns on Exhibit Q paragraph 11, A through J

correct?

MR. LAROCSE: |I'mgoing to, sir, with

L. A, REPORTI NG 312-419-9292
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that | would nove adni ssion of Exhibit BBB into
the record.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLCRAN:  Any
obj ection, M. KinP

MR KIM No objection.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLCORAN: So
adnm tted, Exhibit BBB.

(Exhibit No. BBB was adnitted.)

HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN: M.
McDernont, could you raise your voice a little
bit? Sonmetimes you trail off at the end and I'm
having a little trouble hearing you. |
appreciate it.

THE W TNESS: No problem
BY MR, LAROCSE:

Q M. MDernmont, |'mgoing to show you

what has been previously nmarked as Exhibit CCC.

M. MDernont, what is Exhibit CCC?

A Exhi bit CCC is sheet number B3-2,

whi ch appears in Attachment 4 of the Parcel A
application. It is entitled site devel opnment
pl an, Parcel A

MR LARCSE: For the record, M.

Hearing Officer, that is in the record at Parcel

L. A REPORTI NG, 312-419-9292
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A, Volune 1, page 0115.
HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN:  Thank you.
BY MR, LAROCSE:
Q M. MDernont, this is a depiction not
of Parcel A but Parcel B, correct?

A. That is correct, land view of Parcel

Q Does this show sone, perhaps not all,
of the pollution control devices that are
designed and either constructed or proposed to

be constructed for Parcel A?

A It shows a -- certainly a najority of
them yes.
Q Ckay. Could you explain for the

board, M. Halloran, pollution control device
depi cted on Exhibit CCC?

A kay. | think I'l'l start with the
ones that were simlar to Parcel B.

In the south corner of Parcel A you
have a proposed sedi nentation pond, drainage
ditches will surround Parcel A bringing run off,
stormwater run off fromprecipitation events to
the sedi nentation basin. Actually, the water

from Parcel B, which is over here, will also

L. A REPORTI NG, 312-419-9292
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Parcel A and flow into that pond.

of the landfill also has groundwater

nonitoring wells |ocated around the perineter,

al so has gas perineter probes |ocated around the

peri meter.

Q

Let's slow down just a little bit.

The first thing is the drai nage

ditches and the sedi nentati on pond, are those

built?

A Those are built, yes.

Q kay. The second thing you alluded to
was the | eachate -- or the groundwater

noni toring wells?

A

Q

Yes, sir.

These were simlar to the ones that

are in Parcel B?

A

Q

Yes, sir.

Do you have any idea how many

groundwat er nonitoring wells are either on or

proposed to be on Parcel A as depicted in

Exhi bit CCC?
A | believe there are nine of them
Q Ckay. Are those constructed?
A Those are constructed, yes.
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Q Ckay. And that is sonething that was
proposed in the sig nod?
A Absol utely.
Q Was that an increase in the nunber of
wel | s?
A Certainly was. Previously to the

i ssuance of the sig nod, the 1989 application
required three wells on Parcel A

Q Let's back up. On Parcel B you
identified, |I think, 10 groundwater nonitoring

wells. Was that an increase fromthe old

permt?

A Previously six were required by the
1989 pernit.

Q Ckay. In addition to groundwater

nonitoring wells, can you describe the next
pol lution control device depicted on Exhibit
cce?

A Assum ng you want me to back up and
tal k about the perineter probes on --

Q Yes. Yes.

A The gas perinmeter probes, again,
simlarly to Parcel B, they serve as a detection

device for mgrating landfill gas, which nay
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escape past the property boundari es.

Q And are those installed?

A Those are being -- will be finished in
t he next week probably.

Q And are those called for by the sig
nod?

A Those are a condition of the sig nod
and were present in our application

Q Okay. The next pollution contro
devi ce, pl ease.

A The primary purpose of the drawing is
toillustrate the plan view of the separation

| ayer. The contours present inside the, if you
will, four continuous lines running around in a
sonmewhat oval shape, represent the surface of
the separation layer. The typical design
illustrates a high in the center of the landfil
wi th drainage occurring to the outside perineter
in all four directions. On the outside of the
separation layer is a bermand the |ined up
represented by the dash dot is indicative of a
continuous | eachate collector pipe that is --

area to those manhol es where the | eachate is

renoved
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Q Let me back up on you again.

Descri be the | ow perneability
separation layer, then junmp to the | eachate
system is the |l ow perneability separation
systemcalled for by the sig nod?

A Yes.

Q Was it also permitted previously to
this?

A Yes, it was. It was originally

proposed in 1988 and approved by the Agency in
1989.

Q But we didn't start, CLC didn't start
to even have the ability to start any operations
on --

MR KIM Objection, |eading.
BY MR LAROCSE:

Q When did CLC first have the ability to
have any operations on Parcel A?

A | believe it was 1995 or 1996.

Q Ckay. Is any of the |low perneability
separation | ayer constructed?

A Yes, it is.

Q How nuch?
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A Approxi mately 25 to 30 percent.
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Q kay. And is that where you pl aced
materials and then built the separation |ayer
over it?
MR KIM (Objection, that is |eading.

BY MR, LAROCSE:

Q How did you build the separation
| ayer?
A Materials were brought in and

deposited, shaped to provide a mrror inmage of
this, of these contours, only 3 feet |ower, and
they were conpacted with various |andfil

equi prent, and our first layer of clay soil was
placed on it and it was conpacted until we

achieved a 3 foot thickness, whereupon we graded

that to achi eve these contours as illustrated
here.
Q Okay. Then you went -- the next

pol lution control device you wanted to talk
about, |eachate collection system can you
descri be that, please?

A Certainly.

On the outside perimeter of the
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separation layer is a continuous |oop of piping.

A drop of water hitting this landfill that got
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i nside would eventually hit the separation |ayer
and then travel downward at a 3 percent slope to
an outside edge, whereupon the sl oped piping
would bring it to a |l eachate collection manhol e,
which | illustrated by the open circle around

t he draw ng.

Q Ckay. Is that called for by the sig
nod?

A Yes, sir.

Q Is that constructed?

A The portions of the | eachate

collection systemthat are adjacent to the
separation | ayer areas that are constructed are
i ndeed constructed.
Q And is the construction of the
remai nder, the timng of the construction
remai nder of the | eachate collection devices on
Parcel A, one of the subjects of this appeal ?
A Yes, it is.
Q Does the | eachate collection system

that you' ve described al so include the | eachate
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A. Yes, it does. The |leachate collection

system | just described primarily controls

L. A REPORTI NG, 312-419-9292

588
| eachate and the minimzation of infiltration
frommgrating beneath it of the new waste
There are two types of devices that are part of
the pernmit application, which are designed to
address | eachate of the historic or previously
pl aced waste in Parcel A

Q Is any of the | eachate collection
trench or the two vertical |eachate collection
wel | s constructed?

A No, they are not.

Q That is part of the tining thing that

we' re tal ki ng about here today?

A Yes, sir.
Q Ckay. What is the plan with the
| eachate, where is it -- fromParcel A where is

it ultimtely going to go?

A Al of the |eachate from Parcel A will
flow across Ashley Road and just south of the
equi pnent building there will be a storage tank

that is not shown on this drawi ng but shown on
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the Parcel B drawing, it will be located in
the -- approxinately the mddle of the western
side of Parcel A draw ng.

Q And is that going to go to the --
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where is it ultinately going to go?

A Utimately it's going to go to the
POTW City of Morris.

Q Is there a pernit for that?

A It has already been permtted, yes,
sir

Q And that was pernitted by the bureau
of water?

A Yes, sir

Q Ckay. Because -- strike that.

W talked, | talked with Ms. Minie
yesterday, and | don't know if | was using the

right terms, if she understands what | was

sayi ng, do you understand what | nean when | say

groundwat er i npact assessnent?

A Yes, | do.

Q What is a groundwater inpact
assessnent ?

A | -- ny definition for it includes
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running a series of computer nodels in order to
predict the inpact to the groundwater of a -- in
this case a landfill or a source, determ ning
what the inpact would be taking into

consi derati ons the geol ogical, the
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hydr ogeol ogi cal setting of the study area as
well as the -- any barriers that may be in place
and how they interact with precipitation and
seasonal vari ations.

Q Did this landfill pass the groundwater
i mpact assessnent ?
A No, it did not. Parcel A did not pass

t he groundwat er inpact assessment.

Q Because why?

A Basi cal | y, because there was no
docunentation of a liner existing beneath the
historic waste in Parcel A

Q kay. Did you have to propose
extraordi nary or additional neasures in the
design and operation of this landfill than you
woul d have had to propose had it passed the

groundwat er i npact assessnent?
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Q And can you describe that for M.
Hal | or an

A The devices that they were referring
to were part of the contingent renediation
program They involved two things. Qur prinary

control devices as proposed in the application

L. A, REPORTI NG 312-419-9292

591
were two vertical wells designed to renove
groundwat er, vertical punping wells, entitled T4
and T2, which are |located on the eastern side of
the facility. As a backup to those and only in
the event that they would beconme necessary, a
groundwat er collection trench is al so proposed
to be installed along the entire eastern side or
approxi mately 2,000 feet along the eastern side
of Parcel A

Q Now, are you proposing to install the
wel I's and the trench right away?

A No, sir. Based on a |ong-term study
we did at the facility, which we've called in
t hese proceedi ngs the 1999 punmp di sk, we believe
absolutely that the best way to address the
renoval of groundwater is with the vertica

wel . The groundwat er collection trench design



18

19

20

21

22

23

24

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

is only included as a backup, backup, backup
type thing to only be used if the two vertica
wel s that we propose that we believe will be
very successful in neeting our objectives and/or
if athird or fourth vertical well mght be
necessary, only at that tinme -- and it didn't

cone out right. [I'Il start over.
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Q Go ahead.

The two vertical wells are our primry
devices. In the event that the vertical, the
two vertical wells do not work, finding
sonet hing that we don't believe to exist, but
sonmehow somet hing new i s going on, at that tine,
I mght propose to |ower the water level in T2
or T4 by half a foot or a foot, maybe that
wouldn't do it. If that wouldn't do it, | might
propose to install a third well. 1In the event
that | do not believe that | can get correction
of this problemwith T2 and T4, | can or | have
provi ded a design for a shall ow groundwat er
collection trench along the east side of Parce
A

Q When you say determined that it works
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wor k?
A The pernit application and the
permt -- I'"'msorry. The permt is not -- the

permt application nade a proposal to correct
data fromthe east side of Parcel A on a nonthly
and a quarterly basis. The data would then be

conpil ed annual ly and subnmitted to the Agency.

L. A REPORTI NG, 312-419-9292

593

The results of this daily collection, plus the
results of the groundwater nonitoring across
Parcel A, in addition to the volunme of water
renoved and di sposed, would all be submitted to
the Agency in | believe the formof the pernit
application which denonstrates the success of
our proposed systemand its operation

Q And in all honesty it can al so
denonstrate the failure of that systemas well,
is that correct?

A That is correct.

Q Ckay. And it could also include, your
report could also include requests for approval
of adjustnent to the system correct?

A That is correct.
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Q Okay. Now, in addition to this deep
wel | system because the landfill failed the
groundwat er i npact assessnent, have you -- do
you have | onger requirements for the treatnent
of groundwater than woul d have been required had
it not failed the G A?

A Yes, the groundwater inpact assessment
predicts the | evel of contanination that your

source woul d cause in your setting for 100 years
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passed the date of your |ast operation of your
sewers or landfill in this case.

Q Ckay. And what do we have to do in
this case?

A In this case it is proposed that we
col l ect groundwater for up to 100 years and we
woul d only stop collecting groundwater if the
renmedi ati on program was successful in cleaning
up the groundwater on the east side and that the
i mprovenents to Parcel A, the separation |ayer
the final cover, |eachate renpval system et
cetera, are significantly effective in reducing
the source of the contamni nation

Q That groundwater for the next 100
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years is going to go to where?

A The groundwater for the next 100
years, and | would point out that | believe we
woul d be successful in stopping the renoval of
groundwat er over the next 100 years fromthis
facility as the other controls are installed --

MR KIM (Objection, that is
non-r esponsi ve.
HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN: He may

proceed.
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THE W TNESS: -- will gotothe City
of Morris POTW
BY MR LARGCSE
Q When you said you believe you'll be

successful in stopping the renoval of

groundwat er over 100 years, what did you nean by

t hat ?
A | mean that the groundwater
conditions, the quality of groundwater should

i mprove enough that it will not be required

under the 811 regulations to continue extracting

the groundwater on the east side of Parcel A

Q So part of these annual submittals
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m ght be a report that we succeeded and a
request that we no |onger have to do it?

A Yes, that is spelled out in the
application.

Q Sir, the things that you' ve just
descri bed, again, with the exception of the
final cover system are generally laid out on
Exhi bit Q paragraph 11, A through J, correct?

A That is correct.

Q M. MDernont, |'mgoing to show you

one nore oversized drawing, then I'mgoing to
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let you sit down for alittle bit.

MR KIM Wre you going to offer CCC?

MR. LAROSE: Yes. Sorry. Thank you,
M. Hearing Oficer, | would offer Exhibit CCC
into admi ssion into the record.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN:  Any
obj ection, M. KinP

MR KIM No objection.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN: Exhi bi t
CCC is admitted.

(Exhibit No. CCC was adnitted.)

BY MR, LAROSE:
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Q ' mgoing to show you, M. MDernont,
what we've previously nmarked and nmade an
oversi ze of Exhibit DDD

What is Exhibit DDD, M. MDernont?

A Exhibit DDD is our draw ng sheet
nunber B3-5, which is a generally speaking north
to south cross section of Parcel A and this,
again, is provided in Attachment 4 of the Parce
A application.

MR, LARCSE: For the record, M.
Hal loran, this will be provided in volune --

excuse ne, Parcel A, Volune 1, page 0118
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BY MR LARGCSE

Q Sir, could you describe what is
depi cted on Exhi bit DDD?

A Certainly. Once again, this is a
north to south or a south to north cross
section. In other words, we've sliced the
landfill, separated it and now we're | ooking at
the landfill as if we were standing just to the

side of it.
Q Ckay. Sliced it open, what are we

| ooki ng at?
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A W' re |l ooking at the final cover or
our top line. These lines illustrate that a 3
foot protective soil layer will be put on top of
a 3 foot reconpacted | ow perneability |ayer.
This will preclude or certainly mninze
infiltration fromprecipitation fromentering
the landfill.

Q Ckay. That is the top final cover

system right, that top kind of arch?

A Yes, sir.

Q There is an arch below that, what is
t hat ?

A Yes, sir. The arch belowit is
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representative of our 3 foot separation |ayer
which is nade of clay soil. Again, it has
maxi mum permneability of 1 tines 10 to the

negative 7 centineters per second.

Q And bel ow that separation | ayer, what
is that?
A Bel ow t he separation | ayer, the dash

line represents the bottomof the landfill,
one -- sorry, that is the larger dash |ine

represents the bottomof the landfill. The Iine
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above that, which is also dashed but with
smal | er dashes, represents the existing grade,
the top of the landfill that existed in 1995
when this fly over topography was done.

Q Just for the record, the smaller
version that we have in front of us don't appear
as a dashed line there, just on the bl owp.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN:  So not ed.
BY MR LARGCSE

Q And between the smaller -- the |arger
dash line on the bottom which is the bottom
landfill, and the smaller dash line, which is
the existing grade, what is in there?

A That is the historical fill or is
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| abel ed on this draw ng previously deposited
ref use.
Q Sir, for sake of brevity so we don't

have to go over the sanme separation |ayer and
final cover systemfor Parcel B, could you
descri be what, if any, changes there would be
bet ween the Parcel B final cover and separation
system and t he one depicted on Exhi bit DDD?

A The Parcel A and Parcel B final cover



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

system desi gn both include the 3 foot protective
layer and a 3 foot reconpacted clay |ayer. The
Parcel B and the Parcel A design includes the 3
foot separation |layer and the slope is provided
on that to provide positive drainage to the
outside of this leachate collection system
whi ch consi sts of perineter piping, on Parcel A
and Parcel B, both. Parcel B has three vertica
| eachate wells in it. Parcel A has -- is
proposed to have two vertical |eachate
withdrawal wells in it that will renmpve | eachate
fromthe previously deposited refuse on A and B
Q Ckay. You can sit down at |east for a
coupl e of m nutes.

MR. LAROSE: M. Hearing Oficer,
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woul d nmove the admission of Exhibit DDD into the
record, please

HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN: M. Kin®?

MR KIM No objection

HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN:  Exhi bit DDD
is admitted into the record.

(Exhibit No. DDD was adnitted.)

BY MR, LAROSE:
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Q M. MDernmont, |'mgoing to hand you
what has previously been admtted as Exhibit R
which is the Parcel A permit. Going to |eave
that in front of you because we may be referring
to that throughout your testinmony.

Sir, is there a condition in the
Parcel A pernit regarding the fact that |eachate
i s supposed to be nmintai ned below the static
gr oundwat er ?

A Yes, sir.

Q Okay. Would you turn to page 42 of
Exhibit R, please?

Par agraph Roman nuneral 827, as it
appears on page 42 of Exhibit R is that
condition, is it not?

A Yes.
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Q Woul d you read the first paragraph of
that into the record, please?
A "The pernmitting nust nmmintain the
| eachate levels within Parcel A below the
static groundwater levels at all tines.
Period. "

Q Is it possible to conply with that
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condition at this landfill?

A Yes, it is inpossible to conply.

Q My question is is it possible?

A No, it is not possible to conply with
this.

Q Ckay. Wiy not?

A The Parcel A landfill bottom was

previously investigated and found that the
majority of it was above the water table.
Q ' mgoing to hand you what has been
previously marked as Exhibit I1I.
What is that, sir?
A This, again, is a different cross
section of the Parcel A landfill.
MR, LARCSE: For the record, M.
Hearing Officer, this exhibit appears in Vol une

A -- excuse nme, Parcel A, Volune 2, page 059.
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HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN:  Thank you.
BY MR, LAROCSE:
Q Sir, what does that docunent or what
does that docunent depict with respect to this
condition about nmintaining | eachate |evels

bel ow the static groundwater |evel?
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A The drawing illustrates a groundwater
or...Surface of the deep nonitoring zone with a
doubl e dot dash line running fromwest to east.

Q Okay. Does that line depict the

groundwat er | evel ?

A Yes, sir, it does.
Q And how does that relate to the other
things that are on Exhibit Il in relation to

this condition that we maintain | eachate |evels
bel ow that |ine?

A The line just above the colums of
dashed lines is a solid line running from west
to east, it dips dowward and then rises upward,

di ps downward again and then rises upward again

slightly.
Q Yes, sir.
A That represents the Parcel A |andfil

bottomor invert, it is |abeled as such on the
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dr awi ng.
Q kay. So, | don't have this in front
of me but | have seen this before, just a little
bit of landfill is below the static groundwater

level, is that right?
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A That's correct.
Q So for that portion would you be able

to conply with the condition?

A Yes.
Q For the rest of it would you?
A No, sir.
MR LARCSE: | would nove Exhibit 11

nto the record, please.
HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN: M. Kin?
MR KIM No objection.
HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN:  Exhibit 11
is admitted.
(Exhibit No. Il was admtted.)
BY MR LARCSE:

Q Sir, 1'll show you what has been
previously marked as Exhibit FF and ask you to
take a | ook at that, please. What is that?

A This is a drawing entitled, Figure 4,

whi ch appears in the | eachate managenment pl an,
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Attachnent 9, of the Parcel A application.
MR. LAROCSE: M. Hearing Oficer, for
the record, that document appears at Parcel A,

Vol une 2, page 0057.
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HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN. Thank you.
BY MR LARCSE:
Q Coul d you describe what this docunent

depicts, please?

A Yes, this drawi ng depicts the area of
the landfill invert, which is bel ow the water
tabl e.

Q Ckay. What is the outline that

appears on this docunent, the single line
outline?

A The outside line is the property
boundary, which is also evident on the other
Parcel A plan view drawi ngs we've seen

Q So within that property boundary then
there is a pernitted area of waste disposal ?

A Yes, sir.

Q And what do these elevation |lines nmean
on this particular docunent?

A The lines inside the outside boundary

i ndicate they're Isopacs of the depth, that
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portion of the landfill is bel ow the water
tabl e.

Q Okay. How much of the total waste
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di sposal area is below the water table?

A Fi ve percent.
Q So for 95 percent or the rest of the
landfill, this condition is inpossible to conply

with, is that correct?

A That is correct.

MR. LAROSE: M. Hearing Oficer, 1'd
nove the adm ssion of Exhibit FF into the
record.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN: M. Ki n?

MR KIM No objection

HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN: Exhi bit FF
is admitted.

(Exhibit No. FF was admitted.)

BY MR, LAROCSE:

Q M. MDernmont, there are two
conditions that are related to one another in
the pernmit regarding restriction of placenent of
waste in unpernitted areas of the landfill,
correct?

A That is correct.
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Q Ckay. Take a look at Exhibit R And

I'"mgoing to direct your attention to page 5,
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Roman nuneral 11, subparagraph |

Coul d you read Roman nuneral |1

subparagraph I, into the record, please?

A I"'msorry. Wuld you like the
i ntroduction of nunber Il as well or just the
portion?

Q I want the introduction of nunber 1|1

which will then nake the | portion nake sone
sense.

A Thank you, sir.

"The operator of this solid waste

facility shall not conduct the operation in a
manner which results in any of the follow ng:
|. Deposition of refuse in any unpermtted
(i.e., without an Illinois EPA approved
significant nodification authorization or
aut hori zing operation,) portion of the landfil
semni col on. "

Q And flipping back to page 2 of Exhibit
R, sorry, page 3 of Exhibit R, condition Ronman
nuneral |, subpart 2A. Could you read subpart

2A into the record, reading the subpart and A,
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607

pl ease?
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A "No part of the unit shall be placed
into service or accept waste until an acceptance
report for all of the activities |listed bel ow
has been submitted to and approved by the
Illinois EPA as a significant nodification
pursuant to 351 AC, Sections 811.505(d) and
813. 203, perhaps a comm, A, itemAis
preparation of the separation |layer to design
par ameters, semicolon."

Q Pursuant to the construction plan
whi ch was approved in this case, are these two

conditions read together possible for you to

conply with?

A Yes, they are inpossible.

Q My question -- just so the record is
clear. | asked if it was possible for you to

conply with them and you said, yes, it is
i mpossible. | just want to nake sure your
answer is clear for the record.
A Woul d you pl ease ask it, again?
Q Yes.
Is it possible given the construction

pl an that was approved in this case for the
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landfill to conply with these two conditions?

A No, it is not possible.
Q Ckay. And why not?
A The separation |ayer slope is above or

is greater than the present |and form sl ope,
which was illustrated in drawi ng B3-1, which was
shown or provided in this hearing in day one.

So what we're doing to inprove the ability of
Parcel A to collect leachate is increasing the

| and form sl ope above what was al r eady
previously there.

Q Ckay. Everybody has Exhibit DDD in
front of them Wuld you cone back up to this
drawi ng and show on DDD the concept that you're
tal ki ng about ?

A Certainly.

The existing grade is represented by
this line, which you can see generally speaking
has a small slope to the north and a small sl ope
to the east. This line is |lower than the two
lines directly above it, which are indicative of
a separation |ayer.

Q Okay. Why does the separation |ayer

have to cone to a peak? Wy can't you just put

L. A, REPORTI NG 312-419-9292
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it right on top of the old waste?

A The purpose of the separation layer is
that water infiltrating into the landfill will
m grate through the waste and | and on top of the
separation | ayer.

In order to collect this natter and
renove it, we have designed the separation |ayer
to have a positive drainage slope to the outside
perimeter on all four sides.

Q So where do you need to place the
waste in order to build the separation |ayer?

A I need to place the waste above the
exi sting current grade and to neet the
separation |layer construction plan in this space
bet ween the double lines and the line directly
below it.

Q Ckay. You can sit down again, M.
McDer nont .

Did you tell the EPA that in your
permit application?

A Yes, | did.

Q ' mgoing to hand you what has been
previously adnitted as Exhibit WWY that m ght

be just a duplicate of what you got but that way

L. A REPORTI NG, 312-419-9292
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you don't have to go looking for it. What is
that, sir?

A This is page 12 of the construction
plan for Parcel A that was provided in the My
2000 application.

Q Sir, is this construction plan part of
what was approved in the May -- in the August
4t h, Parcel A pernit?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. Which portion of this advises
the EPA of the need to place waste naterials in
order to construct the separation |ayer?

A The second paragraph underneath the
section entitled, separation |ayer.

Q Ckay. That has al ready been read into
the record several tinmes, so I'mnot going to
bel abor the point.

You heard Ms. Munie's testinony

yesterday, didn't you?

A Yes, | did.
Q And she said that the condition Roman
nuneral |, 2A, was only a restriction on

acceptance of waste, not placenent of waste. Do

you renenber that?

L. A, REPORTI NG 312-419-9292
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Q Wth her interpretation of that
particul ar condition, does that make any
difference as to whether we could conply with
this condition or not?

A Certainly makes a big difference on
whet her we could conply with this condition

Q I n what way?

A The separation |ayer was designed to
be placed over the existing waste, the expressed
under standing that we were trying to mnimze
t he amount of new waste that woul d be placed
above the previously deposited waste.

Q Ckay.

A This waste has to cone from sonepl ace
and if you look at Exhibit DDD, you could see
that there is a -- between the two |ines we

t al ked about before is a cross section, which

represents a volunme of additional fill that is
needed.
Q kay. Is there -- if you couldn't

accept waste to build the invert for the
separation | ayer, what woul d happen?

A Substantially, we would, CLC would go
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out of business.
Q Are you doi ng okay? Do you need sone
wat er or --
A "Il be happy to take a break.
MR. LAROSE: This a good tine to take
five.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN: Let's take

five mnutes.
(OFf the record.)

HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN: W' re back
on the record. |It's approxinately 11:00
o' clock. M. MDernont is on the stand. |
remind himhe is still under oath.

M. LaRose, you nay continue your
direct. Thank you.
BY MR, LAROCSE:

Q Sir, when you prepared the original

application, 1996, and the submttals that
foll owed that, you submtted a closure and
post-cl osure care cost estimate of approximtely

$17 mllion, correct?

A Yes, sir.
Q Did that cover both Parcel A and
Parcel B?
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A Yes.

Q O the 17 mllion, what, if any, of
that amount was attributable to the treatnment of
| eachat e, groundwater and condensate for 100
years as required by your -- | don't renmenber

whet her it was call ed an anended treat nent

program or --
A Oh, by the contingent or renediation
progr anf
Q Right. Correct.
A The amount in question was

approximately $10 mllion.
Q Are you aware of or did you
participate in any negotiations with the Gty of

Morris regarding that $10 mllion cost?

A Yes, | did.

Q When?

A That woul d have been in June and/or
July of 1999.

Q Ckay. What was the purpose of those

negoti ati ons?
A The purpose of those negotiations was

to seek a reduction of |eachate, groundwater and
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Q Fromthe Cty of Murris POTW?

A Yes, sir.

Q Did you participate in those
negoti ati ons?

A Yes.

Q Tell me about the first thing that you
di d.

A The first nmeeting | attended was with
you and the City of Morris engineers.

Q Okay. And where was that neeting
hel d?

A That was held in the city engineer's
office in Mrris, Illinois.

Q Ckay. And what was the purpose of

t hat meeti ng?
A Again, to seek a reduction of the

| eachate or of the wastewater treatnment costs.

Q Okay. And what was our proposal to
t henf
A Qur proposal to themwas to try and

reduce the anmpbunt of that based on the historic

waste fill in Parcel A that the city had
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causing for our client, CLC.
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Q As a result of that neeting, did we
reach an agreenment with the city engineers to
reduce the cost of POTW?
A No, we did not.
Q As a result of that neeting, did we
conduct additional, either neetings or

negotiations with respect to this point?

A Yes, we did.
Q And when did that occur?
A That occurred, again, late June or

early July, but this neeting was after the

nmeeting with city engineers.

Q Ckay. And where was the second
neeti ng?
A The second neeting was at the City of

Morris city hall.

MR KIM [I'mgoing to object to this
line of questioning, unless it can be shown that
there is any records of these neetings that took
place in the application, | don't think this

testimony should be adm tted.



22

23

24

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN: M. LaRose.
MR LARCSE: This is the -- this is

the negotiations that led up to the agreenent
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that Morris would treat the landfill condensate
at a reduced cost. The agreement that is in the
record and the agreenent that forns the basis of
our request to the Agency that we -- that we be
all owed to reduce financial assurance from 17
mllion down to 7 nmillion. This is just
background about the agreenent that is in the
record.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN: "Il all ow
it. Let's not gotoo far into it.
MR LARCSE: Thanks. And we're al nost
done with this.
BY MR LAROCSE:
Q Who was the second neeting wth?
A The second neeting was with the city
al derman, the mayor and the city engineer.
Q Ckay. And as a result of that second
neeting, did we enter into an agreement with the
City of Morris eventually for the reduced cost?

A. Yes, we did.
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Q Ckay. How woul d you describe the
negoti ati ons during those two neetings?
A At arm s | ength.

Q Okay. The agreement was ultimtely
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entered into in witing, correct?

A Yes.

Q I am going to show you what has been
previously admtted as Exhibit LL. | think the
only one that doesn't have a copy of this is
probably you. Here, |I've got an extra one.

What is that docunent?
A This is an addendumto the | ease dated

or made on July 20, 1999, between City of Mrris
and Comunity Landfill Conpany.
MR, LARCSE: For the record, M.

Hearing Oficer, this docunent appears in Parce
A, reviewer notes G328 and O329.
BY MR, LAROCSE:

Q Sir, could you | ook at paragraph 6 of
t hat docunent, please?

A Yes, sir.

Q Coul d you read paragraph 6 of that

docunent into the record?
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A "This agreenment shall inure to the
benefit of the |lessee, its successors and
assigns, and specifically to the State of
I1linois Environnental Protection Agency, or its

designee, in the event it is required to perform
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cl osure/ post-closure activities."
Q Ckay. Was that sonething that we put
into the agreenent on purpose?
A Yes, sir.
Q By the way, the circle around

paragraph 6, did you make that?

A | do not recall

Q Ckay.

A | must have.

Q Ckay. The purpose of paragraph 6, we

put it in there purposely, what was the purpose

of it?
A The purpose of this was in the event
of CLC not fulfilling its obligations under the

post-closure care portion of its pernmt that the
reduction in cost by the Gty of Mirris would be
passed on or assigned to the IEPA or its

desi gnee who would performthe corrective action
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for the facility.

Q And in short they'd get free | eachate
di sposal too, right?

A Yes, sir.

Q As a result of entering into this

agreenent, what did you do?
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A Based upon this agreenent, | used the
figures that were presented to ne for the City
of Morris POTWtreatment cost for our wastewater
and recal cul ated the cost estinates for
post-cl osure care for Parcels A and B.

Q Did you subnit that to the Agency?

A Yes, | believe we subnitted those
permt addendunms on August 13, 1999.

Q Ckay. And what happened as a result
of those submittals?

A The permit reviewer, Christine Roque,
called ne and said that our Parcel A and Parcel
B permits were going to be denied.

Q What did you respond to that?

A | asked if we could have a neeting to
di scuss the issue.

Q Did she get back to you on your
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A Yes, she did.
Q And what was her response?
A She said Joyce Munie was not going to

agree to any reduction of the financial

assurance anounts so there was no need for a

neeti ng.
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What happened after that?
A W received the permt denials of
Parcel A and Parcel B on Septenber 1, 1999.
Q And we appeal ed that decision to this

board, correct?

A Yes, we did.

Q And included in that appeal was an
appeal of the financial assurance condition and
the entire denial itself, correct?

A Yes, sir.

Q Did we then enter into a plan to
resol ve that permit appeal and to just fight
about the financial assurance at a later date?

A Yes, sir.

Q Ckay. What were the basic el enents of

that plan?
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A The basic el enments of that plan were
that we would resubnmit the application,
substantially identical to the 1996 application,
and we woul d include in that application
post-closure care cost estimates totalling $17
mllion.

Q Was there any part of that plan that

related to an expedited procedure?
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A Yes. It was my understandi ng that the
| EPA woul d try and accombdate an expedited
revi ew of these materials.

Q Sir, what was the -- what, if
anything, did the plan have to do w th whether
we were going to exchange drafts with the EPA?

A | believe the plan set forth a
procedure wherein we would provide themwth the
$17 million of financial assurance, in this
case, a performance bond, in exchange for the
draft permts of Parcels A and B.

Q Okay. Why was it inportant for us to
get the draft pernits?

A W wanted to make sure that we had an

accurate pernit.
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Q Ckay. And one we could live with,

right?
A Yes, sir
Q ' mgoing to hand you what has been

previously nmarked as Exhibit W, which is a
series of correspondence that appears in the
record in this case

Sir, wthout bel aboring the point,

because these docunents are already in the
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record, does that correspondent between M. Kim
and nyself and you, that sets forth the

procedure that you just described?

A Yes, it does.
Q Admittedly, M. Kimsays in that
docunent, we'll give you drafts, if we have

time, correct?

A | believe so.

Q Ckay. So he was saying, I'll try ny
best, but if we don't have time, you won't get
the drafts, and we were saying as |long as you
try your best, that's okay, right?

A Yes, sir.

MR. LAROSE: M. Hearing Oficer,
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woul d nmove Exhibit W into the record, please.
HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN: M. Kim
any objection?
MR KIM No objection.
HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN:  Exhibit W
as in victory is admtted.
(Exhibit No. W was admitted.)
BY MR. LAROCSE:
Q Sir, did you resubnmit the permt

application in furtherance of this procedure
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that we set forth?

A Yes, | did.

Q And that was submitted in May of 19 --
|'"msorry, May of 20007?

A Yes, sir.

Q Along with that application, did you
subnmit a cover letter to the | EPA?

A Yes, | did.

Q ' mgoing to hand you what has been

previously adnitted as Exhibit T, ask you to
take a | ook at that, please. That's the only
copy | have. I'mgoing to put Uin front of you

as wel | .
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Sir, both T and U respectfully are the
-- respectively are the cover letters for the
Parcel A and Parcel B May 2000 submittals of the
application, correct?

A Yes, sir.

Q Ckay. There is a paragraph in there
about submitting the financial assurance to
nerely resolve this matter and that we woul d not
wai ve our rights to seek relief fromthat at a
| ater date, right?

A. Yes, sir.
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Q Ckay. That paragraph as it appears in
T and U are identical, correct?
A Yes, sir.
Q You wote the term | need to peek
over your shoul der for a second, through

appropriate avail abl e procedures, is that

correct?

A Yes.

Q That's your term right?

A Yes, sir.

Q What did you nean by that when you
wote it?
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A Basically, | felt like there would be
two procedures which mght be used to settle the
i ssue of financial assurance for this facility.

Q Okay. The first procedure that you
had in mnd was what?

A The first procedure was the issuance
of permits for Parcels A and B, which we could
live with, and --

Q When you say we could live with, do
you nmean that didn't have conditions that we
needed to appeal besides the financial

assurance?
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A Yes, sir, that had acceptable
condi tions that were in accordance w th our
application.
Q kay. And if that was the case, if

you received the pernmit that you could live
wi th, what avail abl e procedure did you
contenmpl ate foll ow ng?

A Based on the recei pt of those
acceptable permts, we would file an additiona
significant nodification application for Parce

A and Parcel B which sought to reduce the
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post-closure care ambunt from $17 mllion to $7
mllion.

Q And what did you anticipate would
happen with that application?

A We anticipated that the Agency woul d
deny that application

Q And then what woul d happen?

A And then we woul d appeal that denial

to the board.

Q And, if necessary, through the court
syst enf?

A Certainly.

Q And what was your understandi ng of
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whet her that was the Agency's understandi ng or
not ?

A That is my understanding that the
Agency agreed with that procedure.

Q Ckay. What was the second appropriate
avai |l abl e procedure that you contenpl at ed?

A The second appropriate procedure that
| contenplated was the receipt of a permt that
woul d require appeal to the Pollution Control

Board based on unacceptable pernmt conditions.
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Q Li ke the ones that we received on
August the 4th, 2000, right?

A Yes, sir.

Q kay. Did the issue of whether we
were going to get drafts ahead of time or not
have anything to do with this second procedure,
if you will, specifically whether the permts
were going to be sonmething we could live with or
were acceptable, did that have anything to do
with our need to | ook at them ahead of tine?

A Ceneral | y speaki ng, whenever the
Agency issues a draft pernmit to the consultant
or the receiving facility, it usually helps to

facilitate a better permt for both parties,
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Q kay. So the idea was if there was
stuff you couldn't live with, we could talk to
them about it before the permt was issued?

A Absol utely.

Q And under the second procedure, what
actual |y happened in this case when we received
permts we couldn't live with, what appropriate

avai | abl e procedure did you contenpl ate
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A W cont enpl at ed appeal i ng the

financial assurance requirenents of $17 mllion

as wel | .

Q Ckay. And bringing that before the
boar d?

A Yes, sir.

Q Was there a reason why we brought it

in this particular procedure and where we --
what was the reason that we brought it in this
particul ar procedure as opposed to filing a
separate application and doing it separately,
even though we received a pernmt we couldn't
live with?

A My primary concern was that, in the
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eyes of the board or the appellate court, we
m ght somehow be criticized if we were to at a
future date file a pernit application, have it
deni ed by the Agency and then chal |l enge that.

Q And not having appealed that in this
pr oceedi ng?

A Ri ght, giving not -- not appealing it

now may prejudice ourselves for a | ater appeal
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Q Sir, regardl ess of which of these two
avai | abl e procedures you contenpl ated foll ow ng,
was this issue going to go to the board no
matter what ?

A Yes, sir.

Q And if the board rul ed adverse to
either party, it was contenplated that we were
going to let the court's decide, correct?

A Yes, sir.

Q And as far as you're concerned, that
was al so the Agency's understanding of the deal ?

A Yes, sir.

Q Let's shift for a second as to the
reason why this reduction in financial assurance
was not allowed by the Agency in the 1999

permt.
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Joyce Munie and Christine Roque have
testified in this proceeding that they didn't
allow it because it wasn't a, quote, unquote,
third-party cost?
MR KIM Cbjection as to the
characterization.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN:  You want to
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rephrase that, M. LaRose?
MR LAROSE: |I'Il try but I think that

is exactly what they said.

MR KIM Well --

MR. LAROCSE: | guess --

MR KIM That's incorrect. |'m
not -- | don't want to get into too nuch of

restating their testinony, they m ght have made
comrents |ike that concerning the 1999 permt
deni al, but they never nmade that statenent
concerni ng the August 2000 permit issuance. |
think the record will bear that out.

MR. LAROSE: W're tal king about the
1999 pernmit.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN:  Then |
think we need to clarify.

MR. LAROSE: Ckay. | wll.
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HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN:  Thank you,
M. LaRose.
BY MR, LAROCSE:
Q The permit denial in 1999, let's get
this straight, it was denied for one reason and

one reason only, they didn't approve your cost
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for reduction of financial assurance, right?

A Yes.

Q And what is your understandi ng of why
they did that based on your conversations with
t hem and based on the testinony that they gave
in this proceedi ng?

A My understanding is that they felt
that the City of Morris' cost was not
third-party since the City of Morris owns the
landfill and the POTW

Q Is the City of Mrris POTW sonehow

connected financially to the landfill?

A No, it is not.
Q Okay. Does the Community Landfil
Conpany share any revenue or -- either provide

any revenue or receive any revenue fromthe
Morri s POTW?

A. No, it does not.
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Q Does the Morris POTW have anything to
do with the basic | ease agreenent between the
City of Morris and CLC other than the recent
anendnent that allowed themto dispose of the

| eachat e, condensate and groundwater at reduced
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costs?
A Can | ask you to repeat that question?
Q Sure. Sure.

Is it part of the general |ease
agreenent, Morris POTW between CLC and the City
of Morris?

A Yes, it is.

Q Ckay. The agreenent that we entered
into with CLC -- excuse ne, with the Mrris POTW
you characterized as arnms | ength?

A Very much so

Q And why did you say it was an arnis
| engt h agreenent ?

A W were -- at the first negotiation
the responsibility with the city engi neer for
the Parcel A historical fill before seeking
approval fromthe al der man.

Q And we had negotiated with the

al derman, too, it wasn't sonme backroom deal ?
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A No, sir.
Q It's also a matter of public record

t hat these negotiations occurred?
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Q The | ease anendnent that allowed for
the reduction, reduced cost of treating the
| eachate, inures to the benefit of the | EPA?
A Yes.
Q So what does that nean, do they get
$10 million?
MR KIM (Object, that calls for a
| egal concl usion.
HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN: | agree.
If you can rephrase it.
BY MR. LAROCSE:
Q Okay. Because it inures to the
benefit of them what benefit does the | EPA get?
MR KIM Cbjection, that calls for
| egal concl usion.
MR, LARCSE: | don't think it does.
MR KIM He is being asked to
interpret what | assunme is being offered up as
an official or legally enforceable docunent,

what the inpact of that is to the IEPA. | don't
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think he is qualified to do that.
MR, LARCSE: | think he is. This

isn'"t an interpretation of a | egal docunent. It
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says it inures to their benefit, the question is
what do they get?

MR KIM Well, then | think that --
for the same reason, if that is what his
statenment is, if that is what the question is,

t he docunent speaks for its own.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN: (Obj ecti on
sust ai ned.

BY MR LARGCSE

Q If the IEPA has to step in to clean up
the landfill because the operator wal ked away,
do they get $10 nmillion of free |eachate?

A Yes, they do.

Q kay. And if, in addition to that,
they require us to put up $10 nillion in
financial assurance to treat the | eachate, how
much are they really getting?

A They woul d be getting $10 nillion
wort h of performance bonds plus the free service
for treating the | eachate and groundwat er and

condensate for a total of approximtely $20
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mllion.

Q What woul d that result in?
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A I would call that doubl e-dipping.

Q The Agency at the time that you

proposed a reduction in financial

assurance had

al ready approved the Mrris POTWcosts for

treatment of |eachate as a third-party cost,

hadn't they?

A Yes, sir.

Q Ckay. And, in fact, they had done it

with respect to the gas pernit, right?

A. Yes, sir.

Q And the 2000 pernmit application

accepts the Morris POTWcost as a third-party

cost even though Mrris owns the POTWand the

landfill?

MR KIM (Objection, these are al

| eadi ng.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLCRAN: | agree.

You're starting to |ead nore and nore and |'d

appreciate it if you can rephrase the questions.

MR. LAROSE: Trying to nove it along a

little bit.

MR KIM | have no problemwith

L. A, REPORTI NG 312-419-9292
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st andpoi nt .
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This is all substantive.
HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN: | agree.
BY MR, LAROCSE:

Q Okay. Sir, what costs did the Agency
approve for treatnent of the leachate in the
2000 application?

A | do not specifically recall the
nunber, but it approved the standard City of
Morris POTWtreat ment cost.

Q Ckay. Even though Morris owned both
facilities?

A Yes, sir.

Q Sir, you're famliar with the

reservation of disposable capacity agreenent?

A I am
Q What does that docunent do?
A That docunment nenprializes the

capacity of Parcel A in Parcel A to accommopdate
t he over-height waste in Parcel B, in other
wor ds, reserving avail abl e di sposal vol une or
capacity.

Q And who nmade that commitnment to the

| EPA in that docunent?
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A The City of Morris and Conmunity
Landfill Conpany made that conmitment.

Q Does that docunment contain any
third-party cost for waste disposal?

A No, that document does not.

Q Ckay. And the | EPA accepted that
docunent and the pernit application in this
case, right?

A Yes, sir.

Q Ckay. And that docunent still exists
with the Cty of Morris and CLC guarantying
di sposal capacity?

MR KIM Again, leading. This is a
real |eading question.

MR. LAROSE: |I'IlIl rephrase.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN:  Sust ai ned.
BY MR LARGCSE

Q What, if anything, is your
under st andi ng of whether that docunment is stil

in force or effect?

A. That docunment is included in the
Parcel A and Parcel B pernit applications. In
fact, | believe it is one of the docunments

Christine asked me to provide her a second tine

L. A, REPORTI NG 312-419-9292
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that is referenced in the Parcel A permt
application.

Q And that was something that you had to

do like -- excuse ne.

Did you have to do that between the
May submittal and the August 4 subnittal, give
it to her a second tinme?

MR KIM (Objection

THE W TNESS: Yes, we provided it
after the May application was submtted, before
the permit was issued.

BY MR LARCSE:

Q Sir, are you aware of any ot her
facilities in the State of Illinois where a
nmuni ci pality owns the landfill and owns the

publicly owned treatnent works where no

third-party cost is required for |eachate

di sposal ?
A Yes, sir.
Q VWhat facility is that?
A City Water, Light & Power.
Q Can you descri be what type of facility

the City Water, Light & Power facility is?

A City Water, Light & Power is a

L. A REPORTI NG, 312-419-9292
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departnment of the City of Springfield. They are
a public utility that generates electricity and
they have a landfill facility that di sposes of

the facility by-products.

Q So the City of Springfield owns CALP,
right?

A Yes, sir.

Q And CWLP owns a landfill?

A Yes, sir.

Q What goes into the landfill?

A Scrubbers sl udge, coal, conbustion,
waste, lime sludge, things |like that.

Q VWhat is their disposal and treatnent

option for the | eachate fromthe landfill?
A The | eachate fromthe landfill is

punped to a treatnment pond before being

di schar ged.
Q Who owned the treatnent pond?
A CWLP.
Q Who owns CWLP?
A City of Springfield.
Q Is there any cost in the closure and

post-closure care plan for that facility,

third-party or otherw se, for the treatnent of

L. A REPORTI NG, 312-419-9292



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

639
the | eachate and condensate fromthe | andfil

that CALP owns to the treatnent pond that they

own?
A No, there is none.
Q You requested in the 1996 application

atine period to either site waste pursuant to
SP172 or nove it across the street to Parcel A
correct?

A Yes.

MR. KIM Excuse ne, before we go on
can we go off the record for just a nmonent?

(OFf the record.)

HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN: Back on.

MR. KIM Considering that the witness
just gave testinbny concerning a pernit, which
has not been adnmitted into evidence, which has
not been offered into evidence, | would ask that
the testinony be stricken in that there has been
no supporting docunentation offered for his
testi mony.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN: M. LaRose.

MR, LARCSE: First of all, the w tness
testified he has conpetent, personal know edge.

Second of all, this is absolutely
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ridi cul ous and of fensive.

These are the very docunents we've
asked themto produce and they haven't. These
are the very docunents that you quashed the
subpoena on. For themto say -- Ms. Minie got

up on the stand yesterday and said | don't know

whet her CALP does this or not. | don't know
whet her there is another facility. | don't know
whet her | issued a pernit. The pernit they

provided us with doesn't spell out this
particular issue. M. MDernont is a consultant
for that facility, he testified pursuant to his
personal know edge. And for M. Kimto say that
we can't do this because we don't have the NPDES
permt that we asked them for, that they didn't
give tous, is alittle bit offensive.

MR KIM Again, |I'mnot going to
rehash. The hearing officer has ruled on the
noti on to quash, and that stands. M objection
is he is offering testinobny concerning what is
contained within a permt docunent, presumably
wi thin other docunents that have provided to the
| EPA, which described in inpeccable detail the

i nformati on which he has testified to, that
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i nfornati on has not been presented to the board,
not been offered as an exhibit, therefore,
think that testinony should be stricken

HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN: What about
Exhi bit ZZ regardi ng the Rochel |l e nuni ci pal
landfill?

MR. LARCSE: Yes, sir.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN: | don't
think that was ever offered or adnmtted and
there was testinony on that, correct?

MR. LAROSE: W're going to get into
ZZ. That is really for another point. 1t's not
for this particular point but it is for another
the one day versus five days' |eachate storage.
That permt does speak to the one day versus the
five day. | did inquire of Ms. Minie of that.
The pernmit for CALP, that they showed to us,
does not speak to this issue of the cost. Only
the cl osure and post-closure care cost estinmate
woul d speak to that which is what we asked them
for which is what they noved to quash and
which is what they didn't give us. M.
McDernont, and | can lay a little better

foundation, if you need it, is testifying from
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hi s personal know edge of dealing with this
particular facility, | think he is conpetent to
testify to that.

MR. RAC Can | ask sonethi ng?

HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN:. Sure. M.

MR RAC | had a question about this
CWALP |andfill.

MR. LARCSE: Pl ease

MR. RAOQ Just, you know, naybe this
guestion should be directed to you, it relates
to what you're discussing right now Is this an
on-site landfill, which does not require a
permt or is it a permtted landfill? Do you
have any idea?

MR. LAROCSE: M. MDernont can speak
to that. | don't know.

MR KIM And before he gives any
answer, | think that question is exactly the
type of thing which begs the introduction as
evi dence of the docunents that are being
referred to.

The docunments will be in the best --
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t hose docunents nean but | think to offer up
evi dence about a document that has not been
provi ded by the board so the board can't review
what those ternms are | think would be
i nappropri ate.

MR. LAROSE: |Is M. Kimsaying that
there wasn't a permt? They gave us the permt
yesterday. M. Rao's questions are good ones.
| welcome them |'mnot conpetent to speak to
them Certainly I'"mnot sworn as a witness. |
woul d suggest he ask the questions of M.

McDer nont and he can give the answer.

MR KIM [|If you would like to offer
the pernmt as an exhibit, then you nay do so.

If he'd like to testify as to what is contained
in the terns of that pernit docunent, he can do
so, but he is testifying.

First of all, that document hasn't
been i ntroduced.

Second of all, I"mpretty sure he is
testifying about information that is not found

in that pernmit and that is found in docunments
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MR LARCSE: That we asked themto
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provi de us.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN:  And |
granted a notion to quash

MR. LAROSE: But how can my hands be
tied that way? How can you say that this
gentl eman can't testify fromhis persona
know edge for two reasons? To show that they're
treating us differently than sonebody el se and
to i npeach Ms. Munie's testinmony when she said
don't believe that is the case.

MR KIM Well, and actually Ms.
Muni e's testinony was, | haven't |ook at those
docunent s.

MR. LARCSE: She said | don't know.

MR KIM  Well --
MR. LARCSE: She said -- | don't know
if that's the case or not, | nean, let's |eve

the playing field here. W're being treated
differently in the permt section and if we
can't present evidence that we're being treated

differently --
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opinion is so noted. | wll sustain the

Agency's objection, however, you're nore than
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wel cone to nake an offer of proof.

M. Rao, did you still want to ask a
guestion of M. MDernont?

MR KIM Just so we're clear then,
your notion to strike will cover all of the
testimony M. MDernont just provided concerning
CWP facilities?

HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN: Ri ght .

That is correct.

MR. KIM Thank you.

MR. LAROCSE: | amgoing to nmake an
of fer of proof.

BY MR LARCSE:
Q Sir, are you aware of the permtting

situation of the CWP landfill?

A I am
Q Is it an on-site landfill?
A It's a landfill located on the Gty

Water, Light & Power property, however, the

definition of on-site that you are likely
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referring to froma regulatory standpoint it is
not considered to be that.
Ckay. Does it have a pernit?

Yes, it does.
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Q Are you particularly famliar wth
that permt?

A | absolutely am

Q Okay. And you have personal know edge
of the content of that permt?

A | do.

Q Okay. Were you the pernmit applicant
in that case?

A | was not the applicant.

Q | mean, did you wite -- were you the
consultant for the permt applicant?

A Yes, | was.

Q Ckay. Were you the recipient of or

did you receive a copy of the permt in that

case?
A Yes, | did.
Q kay. The CWLP facility, is it

regul ated pursuant to the 811 regul ati ons?

A Yes, it is.
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Q Is it permitted pursuant to the 811

regul ati ons?

A Yes.
Q Was a sig nod pernit granted in that
case?
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A Yes, it was.

Q Do you have personal know edge of the
cl osure and post-closure care cost estimates in
t hat case?

A Yes, | do.

Q And do the closure and post-closure
care cost estimates in that case based on your
personal know edge contain any costs,
third-party or otherw se, for the treatnent and
di sposal of leachate fromthat landfill in the
city owned treatnment pond?

A No, they do not.

MR. LAROSE: G ven that foundation,
M. Hearing Oficer, | would nove that you
reconsi der your ruling. This gentleman is
conpetent to testify based on his persona
know edge. There is absolutely no requirenment

that he present documents based on the
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foundation that I've laid not to support his
personal know edge with respect to the
circunstances of that pernit.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN: My ruling

st ands.
MR. LAROSE: Ckay.
L. A, REPORTI NG 312-419-9292
648
HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN: Thank you,
the record will note.

BY MR LARCSE:
Q Sir, you requested in the 1996

application tine to site or nove the site or

nove the waste overfill to Parcel B to Parcel A?
A Yes.
Q And in the 2000 application, you nade

a simlar request?

A Yes, sir.

Q Did we conduct any neetings with the
Agency with respect to this issue prior to the

i ssuance of the 2000 pernmit?

A Yes, we did.
Q And what was the nature of that
neeti ng?

A The nature of that neeting was
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determ ni ng what options nmight be available to
CLCin the City of Mdrris based on the | EPA' s
vi ewpoi nt of the situation.

Q Did the neeting al so discuss the
reservation of disposal capacity?

A Yes, it did.

Q Did we discuss the idea of siting it
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or nmoving it?
A Yes, we did.
Q At that neeting, what was the Agency's

response to our request that we be allowed tine
to site it?

MR KIM (Objection, | think alittle
foundation needs to be laid as to the date of
the neeting, who was there and so forth.

BY MR LARCSE:

Q Ckay. What was your best recollection
of the date of the meeting, sir?

A My best recollection of the date of
the meeting is the spring of '97 or the spring
of '98.

kay. And where was the neeting hel d?

A Red Bedroom at the | EPA in
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Springfield, Illinois.

Q Who was present, if you recall?

A Peopl e present that | recall were --
perhaps M. Kimw |l help ne, but the | EPA
attorney, | believe her nane was Vickie or
Victoria --

MR, KIM Val erie Puchene.

THE W TNESS: Thank you, Valerie
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Christine Roque was there. | believe Ken Snith
was there. | believe and know Joyce Minie was
there. | believe Andrew Catland was there from
t he groundwat er systens unit.
BY MR LARGCSE

Q And if | renenmber correctly, Les poked
his -- Ken Les poked his head in and out?

A That's correct.

Q Who was there fromour side?

A There were nyself, a representative

anot her representative of Andrews Engi neering
for the groundwater issues and yourself, if |
recall correctly.

Q Ckay. And what did the Agency respond

to our proposal that we be given tine to site
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the waste in place based on a proposed
reservation of disposal capacity?

A The Agency was agreeable to providing
a schedule for siting in the application as wel
as providing third-party cost to transfer the
waste from Parcel B of the landfill to Parcel A
of the sane landfill provided there was a
reservation of disposal capacity agreenent.

Q Did we have any neetings with the city
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after this meeting with respect to the siting?

A Yes, we did.

Q Ckay. And what were the nature of
those neetings, just briefly describe?

A Those neetings were -- usually
i nvol ved ot her topics, but usually the city's
position on eventually siting the facility was
di scussed.

Q Do you have any experience in |oca
siting, what | termas SP172 proceedi ngs?

A Yes, | do.

Q Can you explain briefly what your
experience is in those proceedi ngs?

A | have provided led testinmony on -- or
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excuse ne. | have provided testinony on three
applications nade before county boards for
siting expansions to nmunicipal solid waste
landfills.

Q How woul d you descri be the SP172
proceedings in terns of the difficulty and the
burden on the applicant to being successful ?

A | would describe it as extrenely
difficult and extrenmely volatile.

Q And why is it volatile?
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A CGeneral |y speaking, you're asking an
unqual i fied public servant, an aldernan, a
county board menber, who does not have much of a
technical, scientific background, to | ook at
nine criteria and judge whether the applicant is
fairly representing that no harmor that the
application neets each of these nine criteria.

Q That might be the difficulty portion
What about the volatility portion?

A My belief is that the people on the
conmittee who hear these things are really
following nore their constituent's w sh and | ess

of their technical review of the subject matter.
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There is a comopn syndrone in the solid waste
i ndustry called NI MBY, which is not in ny
backyard. It causes a |ot of heartfelt enotion,
volatility, during the proceedings on a typica
basi s.

Q I can sumthat up in ten words, these

are difficult proceedi ngs because people don't

want a landfill, right?
A Yes, sir.
Q Was there a plan put in place with the

City of Morris to eventually take this overfill
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issue to local siting?
A I'"msenior. Can you rephrase that?
Q Was it our plan to eventually take the
overfill issue to siting to the City of Mrris?
A Yes, it is.
Q What, if anything, what, if any, part

of that plan was effected by whether we had a
sig nod or didn't have a sig nod?
A Agai n, could you rephrase?
Q Yes, sir.
When we went to local siting, have

anything to do with whether we had received a
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sig nmod permit or not received a sig nod permit?

A. Yes, sir.
Q Ckay. And what was it about the plan
that related to the -- whether we had received a

permt or not?

A Agai n, and under the circunstances of
non-techni cal people review ng an application
given the volatility involved, past press
rel eases in radi o and newspaper were not very
favorabl e to the continued operation of Parce
A. There was sone division on the city council

in regard to granting Conmunity Landfill Conpany
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the right to operate Parcel A back in late 1995
or '96. That was still existing on the board.
And, basically, given the difficulty of
achi eving performance or satisfaction of nine
siting criteria, we thought it would be a fata
flaw

Q Sir, did you, in your professiona

opi nion, did you consult with the client and
gi ve them any advice on whether they should wait
before they got the sig nod before they shoul d

nmove forward with the local siting?
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A The consultations were brief in that
we all agreed that we should not do that.

Q Ckay. Should not go to siting before
the sig nod?

A Correct.

Q When we got the pernit, we were given
six months to nove it or increase the financial
assurance, right?

A That is correct.

Q You did ask for a period of tinme in
the permit, 2000 pernit application to allow you
nore tine than that to site it?

A. Yes, | did.
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Q As we sit here today, if we nove as
expedi tiously as we possibly can on this issue,
when do you think we could get the initial
hearings and a decision fromthe City of Mrris
on the siting application?

A | would say at a mininumyou're
| ooking at a period of time of six nonths.

Q Okay. Six months fromthe date that
the application is filed, correct?

A CGeneral |y speaki ng, yes.
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Q kay. So if the board was to give us
relief in this case, the relief we would
request, what would we want? How | ong woul d we
want to be confortable enough to prepare this
application and push it through the siting
process as expeditiously as possible?

A Vell, we would like at least six and a
hal f nonths for the siting process and the
consul ting engineer would |ike at |east one
nonth to prepare the siting application

Q And if we, for exanple -- strike that.

You heard the nayor's testinony the
other day, he would like us to wait until after

the el ection?
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A Yes, sir.

Q So if we have to take, that election
isin April, if we nove out seven and a half
months from April, we're |ooking at the end of
the year, right?

A Yes, sir.

Q If the board gives us to the end of
the year, that would be a |ot better than just

February 1st, right?
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A Yes, sir.

Q Ckay.

A O 2001.

Q Let's talk about the condition

regarding the installation of the |eachate
systemon Parcel B and Parcel A W were given
on Parcel B until March 1st to do sone |eachate
work and until February 1lst to do the sane
| eachate work on Parcel A, right?

A Yes, sir.

Q Tell me what they want us to do by
March 1st on Parcel B?

A On Parcel B we need to install a
| eachate storage tank. W need to instal

three -- or the permit requires us to instal
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three vertical |eachate withdrawal wells. The
permt requires us to install the punps. It
i ncludes installing the forced main piping from
the -- excuse ne, with the w thdrawal devices to
the tank and connecting the tank to the sewer.

Q Sonme of that work has al ready been
done, correct?

A That is correct.
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Q Okay. You have the ability right
now -- strike that.

Do you have the ability right now to
punp and store and ship for treatment to the
POTWt he | eachate on Parcel B?

A Yes, we do.

Q Ckay. But the | arge storage tank
isn'"t required or isn't in yet?

A That is correct.

Q And the | eachate renoval wells, sone
of the leachate systemisn't installed yet,
right?

A Currently, we are, at this very
nmonent, w thdrawi ng | eachate from nine gas wells
inthe well field. The |eachate renoval, the

three | eachate renoval wells have been
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installed, but they do not have punps in them
And the tank has not been installed.

Q Ckay. The schedul e that was proposed
by the EPA, was it |ong enough for you to do
these things in conjunction with all of the
ot her things you' re supposed to do at this site?

A No, it was not.
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Q Okay. Does it make any sense, we're
trying to resolve this issue whether to site the
waste, nove the waste, what does that have to do
with the thing -- what, if anything, does that
have to do with the things you' re supposed to do
regarding the tank and the | eachate wells on
Parcel B?

A Basically, the permt would require us
to install forced main piping fromthe | eachate
renoval wells to the storage tank. This piping
woul d need to be placed in the area that is over
hei ght, which may eventually require renoval
and/ or woul d be destroyed during waste
rel ocation activities.

Q If I could summarize, again, put the
pipes in, if you got to dig up the waste and

nove it across the street, you're going to ruin
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t he pipes, right?

A Yes, sir.

Q So does it nmake sone sense to wait
until the final contours will be determ ned?

A Yes.

Q Wth respect to the stuff that you're
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supposed to do on Parcel A, they want you by
February 1st, the permt purports to require you
by February 1st to do what activities?

A Requires us to install two vertica
extraction wells, install a groundwater
collection trench and install -- and to instal
a horizontal |eachate extraction trench as well
as a storage tank.

Q You' re not talking about an additiona
storage tank, the sane storage tank that is on
Parcel A?

A Yes, we're currently proposing
internally to have one storage tank to serve
Parcel s A and B.

Q What about the piping systemfor the
| eachat e renpval ?

A Qoviously, the piping fromthe

| eachat e withdrawal devices and the groundwat er
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col l ection trench would have to be installed and
connected to the tank, the tank itself would
have to be connected to the sewer.

Q So you've got all of the activities

you described on Parcel B, right?
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A Yes.
Q By February 1st. You've got all the
activities you described by March the 1st -- al

the activities described on Parcel A by February
1st, and, in addition, you're supposed to be
nmovi ng this waste across the street or getting

| ocal siting and building a separation area,

right?
A Yes.
Q I's that physically possible, sir?
A No, it is not.
Q Ckay. You would like a little bit

nore tine to do that?

A Yes, | woul d.

Q And what woul d be your time frame with
respect to the Parcel B activities? W' re now
at March 1st. Those conditions have been staged
so we'll have a little bit nore tine. They gave

us a certain amount of tine. What would you
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like to do with the Parcel B activities, if the
board gave us the relief we're requesting?

A The Parcel B leachate activities, we

asked in the pernmit application to install the
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tank within six nmonths. That six nonths
i ncl uded construction, included preparing an
acceptance report, included purchasing the
tanks, selecting the tank, witing the
specification and having it delivered.
Q W haven't done that yet, have we?
A We have done part of that. W have
not purchased any tank
Q kay. |s that because we're fighting
about --
MR KIM (Objection, |eading question
BY MR, LAROCSE:
Q Wiy haven't we purchased the tank?
A The permit that was issued for Parcels
A and B required us to have five days of
| eachat e storage instead of our requested one
day vol une.
That is being contested in this case?
Yes, sir.

(OFf the record.)
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HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN: Back on the
record

BY MR, LAROSE:



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

Q | don't renmenber whether you got to
answer this question before we changed or not,
I'"'mgoing to ask it one nore tinme, nmake sure the
record is clear. W didn't buy the tank yet

because that's what we're contesting in this

appeal ?
A Yes, sir.
Q So back to the question. | know what

the application said. Tell me what you'd like
the board to do for us in this case, not
specifically, but generally, in terns of giving
us nore tine to conply with the Parcel B
activities?

A | would like for the board to rule in
our favor that only one day storage is
applicabl e and then give us the same requested
time-line of six nmonths to install that tank and
submit the acceptance report to the I EPA for
approval .

Q Then what about the other Parcel B

activities?
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A. The other Parcel B activities for

| eachate withdrawal fromthe three vertica
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| eachate renmoval wells, our proposal before
installing the pernanent piping was to take
advant age of the existing gas header system and
allow the | eachate flow into the condensate tank
before being sent to the City of Mrris POTW
The application says that we woul d

like for installing punps to be able to only
gi ve the Agency two weeks of approval, a period
of time to issue approval, and/or inspection of
the punps before we start operating them

Q Okay. Back to the question

How nmuch nore tine do you need to do

the Parcel B stuff?

A If I do not have to give the Agency an
acceptance report for operating the Parcel B
| eachate withdrawal punps, | believe within 45
days those punps could be running fromthe date
t he acceptance report of the | eachate storage
tank is received.

Q Ckay. And with respect to the piping
systemthat you said would have to go through

the final contours, would your proposal be that
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we wait until we determ ne whether we're noving
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the waste or siting the waste?

A W would just wait until the fina
shape of Parcel B has been determ ned.

Q In the nmeantine, nove the |eachate to
t he condensate tank?

A Continue to nove the present |eachate.

Q Wth respect to Parcel A activities
that you described, which we have now been
given, let's |leave aside building the separation
| ayer, the other Parcel A activities that were
required to be performed by February the 1st,
how much nore time would you like to do those?

A In regard to the | eachate
requirenents, | would like perhaps six to nine
nonths to construct the horizontal |eachate
collection trench. And | would like
approxi nately one year in order to install the
two vertical |eachate w thdrawal wells.

Q Okay. And you already have wells T2
and T4 in place, correct?

A In regards to the groundwater system
yes, that is correct.

Q So that system if approved, the
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permit doesn't allow us to use that, but that
system if approved, can renove |eachate --
excuse ne, groundwater fromthe facility

i medi atel y?

A Not quite inmediately.

Q Okay. Tell ne what you -- what tinme
you need to do that?

A W& woul d need approximately 60 to 90
days to in -- to not install T2 and T4 instead
of the groundwater collection trench but to
install the piping, purchase the punps and
install the electricity to operate the punps.
This tinme period would be after the acceptance
report on the |l eachate storage tank was
approved.

Q Put in the | eachate storage tank, put

in the punps, ready to go?

A Yes, sir.

Q When you punp the groundwater from T2
and T4, are you -- what, if any, contaninants
fromthe historic fill area are you picking up

in the groundwater?
A Can you rephrase?

Q Yes.

L. A, REPORTI NG 312-419-9292
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When you pick up the -- when you punp
the groundwater from T2 and T4 for treatnent,
are you picking up any | eachate or contam nants
fromthe landfill?
A Yes. The groundwater that we're
renovi ng woul d be -- woul d have been

contam nated by the previously placed waste in

Parcel A.
Q kay. Sir, the permt denied five
days -- excuse ne.

The permit required five days | eachate
storage, denied our request to have only one day
| eachat e storage, correct?

A Yes.

Q Are you famliar with the 811.309(e)
regulation as it relates to the off-site
treatment of |eachate?

A Yes, | am

Q And woul d you need to refer to -- |
have it here, if you want to refer to it, do you
want to refer to that particular regul ation?

A Yes, please

Q kay. |1'mgoing to hand you what has

been previously adnitted as Exhibit RR which is

L. A REPORTI NG, 312-419-9292
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a copy of 811.309 in its entirety which contains

309(e).

option tha
a direct s

A

Q
wher e?

A
condensat e
| eads to t
i nstall ed.

Q
have you r

A

Q
storage ta
connection

A

Q
this case?

A

Q

Does 811.309(e) -- strike that.

The | eachate di sposal and treat ment

t we selected at this site is --
ewer connection?
Yes, it is.

Direct sewer connection going to

is it

The direct sewer connection fromthe

tank to the forced mai n sewer,

he City of Morris POTW has been

Sir, the 809.811.309(e) regul ati
eviewed that?

Yes, | have.

Does it require the construction
nk where there is a direct sewer
?

| do not believe it does.

And did you tell the Agency that

Yes, | did.

What did they say?

L. A, REPORTI NG 312-419-9292
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A They said that they did not share ny
same interpretation.

Q You di d propose a one day |eachate
storage tank in this particular case?

A In this particular case, the Agency
themsel ves recommended it as an alternative to
nmy interpretation of these regul ations.

Q Sir, the -- and that is what is
i ncluded in the application?

A Yes, sir.

Q You're familiar with 811.309(d)
regul ation, correct?

A Yes, sir.

Q Ckay. And it requires, in order to
have one day, it has to have two neans to --

MR KIM (Objection, this is M.
LaRose testifying at this point.
BY MR LARGCSE

Q Wiy don't you read the regul ation
sir. 811.309(d)(6).

A Wul d you like that outloud or to
nysel f, sir?

Q Cut | oud.

A "811.309(d)(6), a facility may have
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| ess than five days' worth of storage capacity
or accunul ated | eachate as required by
subsection (d)(1) of this section, if the owner
or operator of the facility denbnstrates that
multiple treatnments, storage and di sposa
options in the facility's approved | eachate
management system devel oped in the accordance
wi th subsection (b) of this section, wll
achi eve equival ent perfornmance, period."

Q Okay. Even though it was your
interpretation of the 811.309(e) regul ation that
no storage tank was required, did you propose

two options for transporting the | eachate to the

Morris POTW?
A Yes, | did.
Q I'mgoing to hand you what has been

previously marked as Exhibit XX. And ask you to
take a | ook at that, please.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN:  And, for
the record, XX has been adnmitted.

MR. LARCSE: Yes. Thank you

HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN:  Thank you.
BY MR. LAROCSE:

Q Sir, what is that?
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A This is page 11 of the leachate
managenent plan, Parcel A application, simlarly
t he sane | anguage exists in the Parcel B
application.

Q Is that where you identify a tank
truck as a neans to transport |eachate to POTW?

A Yes, it is.

Q In your opinion, does a direct
connection to a POTWand a tanker truck bringing
it to the sane POTW neet the requirenents of

811.309(d) (6) allow ng one day's |eachate

st orage?
A Yes, it does.
Q And was this in your understandi ng

al so the Agency's interpretation of this
particul ar regul ation, with the exception of
their decision in this case?

A Prior to the denial of the 1999
application, that is exactly my understandi ng of
their final interpretation.

Q ' mgoing to hand you what has been
previously marked as Exhibit ZZ.

MR. LAROSE: |Is this the one you said,
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HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN:  Yes.
That's mny under st andi ng.
BY MR LARCSE:
Q Ckay. What is that docunent, sir?
A This docunent is a permt issued by

the bureau of land to the City of Rochelle as
owner and to Rochell e waste disposal as
oper at or .

Q Sir, directing your attention to page
20 of that permt --

A Yes, sir.

Q Ckay. -- paragraph 7, are they -- is
t he Agency allowi ng one day's | eachate storage
with only one connection to a POTW pursuant to
par agraph 7?

A That's nmy interpretation, sir.

Q Ckay. How many permits to dispose of
| eachate at the POTWdoes the Rochelle facility
have?

A They have one.

MR. LAROSE: M. Hearing Oficer,

woul d nove the adm ssion of ZZ into the record,
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any objection?
MR KIM No objection
HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN:  Exhibit zzZ
is admitted into evidence.
BY MR. LAROCSE:

Q I"'mgoing to hand you -- | want to
back up for a second, probably nuch to the
chagrin of everybody in this room | forgot one
thing that | wanted to talk to you about. |
hand you what has been previously marked as
Exhi bit EE and ask you to take a look at it.
What is Exhibit EE, sir?

A Exhibit EE is the | eachate thickness
drawi ng, which illustrates the amount of liquid
or |leachate in the bottom of Parcel A above the
invert or bottomof the landfill.

MR LARCSE: For the record, M.
Hearing O ficer, this docunent appears in the
record at Parcel A, Volume 2, page 0056.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN:  Thank you.

BY MR LARGCSE:
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Q On this drawing to the I ower |eft-hand
portion there is a line that says, existing

waste collection trench, I'msorry, waste
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| eachate col I ection trench.

MR KIM Before we continue, this
docunent, as it has been provided, is not the
docurment that has been identified in the record.

MR, LARCSE: |Is the record different
than this?

MR KIM It is.

MR. LAROSE: May | see it?

MR, LARCSE: So the -- isn't this in
your permt review --

BY MR LAROCSE:
Q Woul d that be the A application -- can
we go off the record?

HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN:  Yes.

(OFf the record.)

HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN: Back on the

record.
BY MR LARGCSE:
Q We probably won't mark this one

separately, just refer to it as a record
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MR KIM That's fine.
MR. LAROSE: GCkay with you?

BY MR, LAROCSE:
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Q ' mgoing to show you Parcel A, Vol une

2 of the record and refer your attention to page

000056.
A Yes, sir.
Q What is that docunent?
A This is the | eachate thickness

docunent showi ng the | eachate el evati on above
the Parcel A invert bottom

Q And what is the significance of that
docunent ? What does it show?

A The significance of this docunent is
that the Isopach Iines show the relative
t hi ckness of the |eachate in Parcel A based on
the various nonitoring points in Parcel A

Q Okay. The leachate trench is going to
go in parcel -- or the |eachate trench that the
permit requires us to dig is going to go into
Parcel A, correct?

A. Yes, it is.
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Q Is it going to intersect any of those
areas where there is thick anbunts of | eachate?

A No, it is not.

Q In your professional opinion, the

schedul e that has been presented by the | EPA
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for us to dig the leachate collection trench,
woul d any environnental harm occur if that
schedul e was del ayed for the period of tine that

you outlined in this case?

A Can | ask you to ask that one nore
time?
Q Yes.

If we delay the digging of the
| eachate collection trench, are we going to
cause any environnental harn?
A No.
Q Thank you
T2 and T4 then we're done, until M.
Ki m st eps up.
You requested perm ssion for the T2
and T4 systemthat we've heard a [ ot about from
M. Skouby, M. Silver, Ms. Roque and now you

and that was denied, correct?
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A That is correct.

Q Okay. Your original proposal
however, was to install the groundwater in a
separate trench, correct?

A Correct.

Q Did you conduct a punp test with
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respect to that original proposal?
A In 1998 we conducted a trench punp
test, yes.
Q And were the -- just briefly describe

that test, what did you do?

A That punp test was conducted over
Labor Day weekend, 1998. W dug a small short
section of trench, approximately 20 to 25 feet
deep, installed two punps in the trench and
nmoni t ored groundwat er el evati ons around the
trench while we were punping fromit.

Q As a result of that punp test, did
you, Andrews Environnmental, and the Agency have
any questions as to the efficacy of the trench
syst enf?

A Yes, we did.

Q What did you do, if anything, to
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address those questions?

A Based on that concern being rai sed and
draft denial permt letter, | contacted -- or
yes, that was nme, | contacted M. Skouby.

Q Ckay. And what was the purpose of

contacting M. Skouby?

A To take advantage of his years of
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dewat eri ng experience.

Q And what did you -- what questions did
you ask himor what issue did you ask himto
addr ess?

A W basically asked hi mwhy we had 3

feet of drawdown in piezoneters, 450, 890 feet
away fromthe punp test area, trench test area
but the shallow nonitoring well approxi mately 50

feet away showed much I ess than a foot of

dr andown.
Q VWhat did he tell you?
A He concluded in a matter of seconds

that the facility or site was underm ned.
Q Did you then send himsone data to --
for himto | ook at?

A In fact, | argued with him and sent
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Q As a result of this -- well, you
argued with him Are you still arguing with
hi n?

A Absol utely not.

Q Do you agree with his concl usion that

the site is underm ned?

A Posi tively.
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Q And to your know edge, the Agency
agrees with that as well?
A They have testified to that, too.
Q I's that when you shifted to the deep
wel | system strategy?
A Sort of. After the trench test was

done and based on the Agency's denial letter, we
performed anot her punping test using two wells,

what we have comonly referred to as T2, T4.

Q And how long did this test take?

A The test | asted approximately four
nont hs.

Q And approxi mately when was the test

conduct ed?

A. In the first four nonths of 1999.
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Q kay. Did the results of the test
tell you anything about whether the deep wel
system woul d be effective for the renoval and
treat ment of contam nated groundwater?

A The deep well systemindicated that
based on the -- based upon the test results of
the deep well punping test, it was shown to us
conclusively that it was the preferred nethod

for treating the groundwater.
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Q During the four nonth test, was the
nm ned area ever conpl etely dewatered?
A No, sir.
Q What was your punping rate during that
test?
A Pumping rate during the test -- or we

used a pump with a capacity of 190 gallons per

m nut e.

Q Did you run that punp at capacity al
the tine?

A We had three phases of this test. W

started out at 100 gallons per minute. Wen you
start a punping test, you want to see how your

environnent is going to react and we ran that
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test, ran the test at 100 gallons per nminute for
a period of tine, concluded that we could
el evate the punping rate to 190 gal |l ons per
m nute or maximum capacity of the punp we were
using. And then later in the test, we reduced
our flowrate to 80 gallons a mnute and tried
to establish steady state conditions.

Q Did you ever observe any indications
of depressions or possible subsidence on the

facility?
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A | have observed two areas that |
becanme suspi ci ous about, once we determ ned that
undernining at the site had i ndeed occurred.

Q Did you have any conversations with
M. Silver about your suspicions that
under m ni ng and subsi dence had occurred at the
facility?

A Yes, | did.

Q Did you ask M. Silver to do anything
with respect to his initial mass stability study
as a result of T2 and T4 punping and as a result
of M. Skouby's conclusion that the site had

been under m ned?
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A Yes. W asked himto correct or
nodi fy his existing report as necessary based on
the di scovery of these subsurface conditions.

Q The 1999 pernit was -- in 1999, the
permt was deni ed and one of the denial points
was T2 and T4, right?

A That is correct.

Q Even though the application in 2000
was going to be substantially simlar to the
previ ous application, was this T2 and T4 issue

an exception to that?
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A I"msorry. You need to rephrase.
Q Sur e.

Did you intend to subnit additiona
information on T2 and T4 to address the denial
point in the Septenber 1st submittal -- |'m
sorry, in the May submttal ?

A Yes, we did.

Q Okay. And what did you do to attenpt
to address that?

A The primary concern or primary way
that we attenpted to address that was the

nodi fication of the previously perforned sl ope
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stability analysis on the project.

Q At any time, sir, did you intend to
conpletely dewater the mning area during either
the punp test or in your proposal to operate T2

and T4 as the primary groundwater renediation

net hod?
A No, sir.
Q Did you tell the Agency that you

i ntended to maintain a specific groundwater

| evel ?
A. Yes, | did.
Q And what did you tell then?
L. A, REPORTI NG 312-419-9292
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A. | told themthat we would maintain a

groundwat er el evati on of 500 or approximtely 7
feet of drawdown.

Q Okay. |Is that contained in the
application or was that a verbal ?

A That is contained in the application
i n nunerous | ocations.

Q Did your application contain any
proposal for continuing either nmaintenance,
nonitoring or reporting of the systemas it went

forward, if it was approved?
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A Yes, it did.

Q Can you describe that briefly?

A Briefly, we proposed to take nonthly
and quarterly readi ngs of the system the anopunt
of water it discharged, the water readings,
whi ch would translate into water elevations and
the various baroneters in water wells.
Basically, report the effectiveness of the
systemto the | EPA based on the collection of
this data at | east once every year

Q So you weren't going to just put the
punps in and | eave then?

A. No, sir.
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Q ' mgoing to hand you what has been
previ ously nmarked as Exhibit EEE.

A Yes, sir.

Q My brother's shoe size.

What is Exhibit EEE, M. MDernont?

A Exhibit EEE is a plan sheet that
exists in the Parcel A application entitled, fig
or F-1-G - CRP.

MR, LARCSE: For the record, M.

Hearing O ficer, this drawi ng appears in the
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record at Parcel A, Volune 6, page 0276.
HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN:  Thank you.
BY MR, LAROCSE:

Q M. MDernont, without belaboring the
i ssue too nuch, does this particular draw ng
depict the T2 and T4 deep well groundwater
treatment systemthat you propose?

A This drawi ng does indeed depict the T2
and T4 wells along with the geol ogic setting of
the eastern side of Parcel A

MR. LAROSE: Wth that, M. Hearing
Oficer, | would nove the adnission of EEE
HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN: M. Ki n?

MR KIM No objection.
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HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN:  Exhi bit EEE
is admtted.
BY MR, LAROCSE:

Q Sir, have you forned an opinion as to
the efficiency of T2 and T4 versus the
groundwat er trench?

A Yes, | have.

Q And what is your opinion?

A There is no question in ny nmind that
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the use of T2 and T4 is preferable to the
groundwat er col l ection trench.

Q Sir, when is the first tine that you
heard that the Agency was criticizing the T2 and
T4 use based on their review of the Streeter
El S?

A After the permit was issued and the
special condition about not utilizing T2 and T4
was in the permt itself.

Q So you didn't consult Streeter EIS in
presenting this pernit to the Agency?

A No, | did not.

Q Do you profess an opinion, in your
pr of essi onal opinion, did you have any reason to

consider the Streeter EIS?
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A No.

Q Until they told us about it, you
didn't even know that it existed, right?

A That is correct.

Q Had you even read the Streeter EIS?

A No, | have not.

Q Was it always the intent of the

groundwat er renedi ati on programthrough T2 and
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T4 to nmaintain a punping | evel above the bottom
of the coal ?

A Yes, sir.

Q Sir, if the board grants us relief in
every one of the conditions that we've sought
relief on in this case, have you forned an
opi nion as to whether granting that relief would
cause any harmor potential harmto the hunman
heal th or environment of the people or the |and
of the state of Illinois?

A The granting of our request for
operation T2 and T4 woul d not cause any harm

Q Ckay. What about all of the rest of
the conditions that we've sought relief for in
this case?

A Simlarly as well, no harmwoul d

L. A REPORTI NG, 312-419-9292

686
result.
MR, LARCSE: That's all | have for
now, M. Hearing Oficer.
HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN:  Thank you,
M. LaRose.
(OFf the record.)

HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN: W' re back
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on the record, we're going to take a lunch break

for 45 mnutes. W'Il be back at 1:15. Thank

you.
(Lunch recess.)
HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN: W' re back
on the record fromlunch recess. It is

approxi mately 1:25.

I want to note for the record that,
again, there are no nenbers of the public here.
If they were, they'd be allowed to testify,
subj ect to cross-exani nation.

There will be a period where they can
have public comment after the hearing is over
and after the transcript is provided.

W have M. MDernont on the stand and
I would remind himthat he is still under oath.

M. Kimis about to cross-exanine this w tness.
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CROSS- EXAM NATI ON
BY MR KI'M
Q M. MDernont, I'Il tell you right
fromthe beginning that ny questions are skew
about me, so bear with me. 1'll try and do this

as conprehensively, topic by topic as |I can, but
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| may have to junp back and forth.
Let's start with the issue of one day
| eachate storage versus five day | eachate
st or age.
If you could, direct your attention to
Exhibit XX, which, | think, is in front of you.
This is the portion of the
application, the May 2000 sig nod application
is it not, that addresses Conmmunity Landfill's
request to be given one day storage, to be
subject to only one day's m ni num storage versus

five days' m ni mum storage of |eachate, is that

right?

Let me rephrase that.

Does this page represent the request
by Conmunity Landfill to be subject only to the

one day versus the five day nini mum storage

requi renents for | eachate storage?
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A No, it does not.
Q Where in the application is that
request nade?
A It is in the | eachate nmanagenent plan

whi ch this docunent cane from It just appears
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later inthe -- later or earlier in the text. |
can't recall which.

Q Ckay. I'mgoing to provide you with a
portion of the adm nistrative record, this is
Parcel A, Volunme 2, and begi nning on Bates
stanmped 0051, there is Attachnent 9 that is

| abel ed, | eachate nanagenent plan, is that

correct?
A Yes, sir.
Q Ckay. And you're saying within

Attachnent 9 is the request by CLC to be subject
to only one day's |eachate storage as opposed to
five days' |eachate storage?

A That is correct.

Q Can you | ook through that attachment,
and if it is in nore than one place, as you cone
across the request, can you just identify the
page nunber?

MR. LAROCSE: By Bates?
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MR KIM By Bates stanp.
THE WTNESS: Wbuld you |ike nore than
one request or the first one | cone to?

BY MR KI M
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Q I would Iike every request that is in
that attachnent, because | think you testified

it is in several places, is that right?

A I do not know that that is my exact
testi mony.
Q Any reference or request nmade within

that attachnent seeking the one day storage
versus five day storage, 1'd like you to
identify that, please.

A The primary place it is spelled out is

Bat es page 0061, which is page 10 of the

docunent .
Q And what portion of that page?
A The | ower portion of the docunent

specifies the one day storage volune for the
different wastewater item zations for
condensate, |eachate storage and groundwat er

Q Ckay. And so you're stating that that
bottom portion of that page represents a request

on the part of the landfill to seek one day
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versus five days' storage, is that correct?
A Yes, it is.

Q I's there any other portion in
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Attachment 9?

A I do not believe there is any other
reference in this attachnent.

Q Ckay. Thank you.

If you can | ook back at exhibit -- if

you can return your attention to Exhibit XX
pl ease. The bottom of that page has a section
that is headed, with the reference to di sposal
is that correct?

A Yes, sir.

Q In the text that falls bel ow --

HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN: Let's go
off the record for a mnute.
(OFf the record.)

BY MR KI'M

Q The second paragraph in that section
woul d you read that into the record, please?

A "The sanitary sewer adjacent to the
landfill is a forced main, therefore, a punp may
be necessary to discharge the contents of the

tank into the forced mai n dependi ng upon the
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operating and anticipated feature design

pressure of the forced nmain. In addition, a
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val ve and flange connection will be provided to
facilitate transfer of liquid to a tank truck or
a truck tanker as may be needed. The transfer
punp will alternately allow | oading of a tank
truck should it be necessary."

Q And, I'msorry, | don't nean to do
this out of order, can you also read the first
section of that section as well?

A "The primary met hod pl anned for
treatment and di sposal of |eachate generated by
this facility will be disposal at the Mrris
POTW The connection to the Mirris sewage
treatment plant has been installed via sanitary
sewer. A copy of the pernmit regarding | eachate
di sposal is attached."

Q So this language states that the two
nmet hods of treatment and di sposal of |eachate at
the facility, will be, one, disposal at the
Morris POTW and, two, transfer to a truck
tanker, as may be needed, is that correct?

A Yes, sir.

Q Is there any description in this
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provision or in any other portion of the
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application that describes the capacity of the
truck tanker?

A No, sir.

Q Is there anything in this | anguage or
in any other part of the permt application that
descri bes where the truck tanker will be goi ng?

A It is inplied that the truck tanker

Q I'"masking you is it stated anywhere
where the truck tanker will be going?

A | have a POTWpernit for Morris.
That's the only place I"'mpermtted to go to.

Q M. MDernont, |'mgoing to ask you
again. Does this pernit application anywhere
state where this truck tanker will be going, yes
or no?

A | believe the first paragraph, the
first line says the primary nethod planned for
treatment and di sposal of |eachate generated at
this facility will be disposal at the Mrris
POTW

Q So you believe that the answer to ny

guestion is yes, is that what you're saying,

L. A REPORTI NG, 312-419-9292
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that it is described where this truck tanker
will be going --
A Yes, sir.
Q -- is that right?
Coul d you draw your attention, please,
to Exhibit RR please?

MR. LAROSE: Do you have that in front

of you?
BY MR KI'M

Q Do you have that?

A I amlooking. | have Exhibit RR yes,
Sir

Q Thank you.

MR. LAROCSE: | don't have a copy of
RR.  What one is that?

MR KIM 811 --

MR. LAROSE: Ckay.
MR KIM Do you --
MR. LAROCSE: No. No. That is okay.
BY MR KM
Q Isn't it correct that the permt

application does not contain any references to
Section 811.309(d) in regards to your proposal

to store | eachate on site?

L. A, REPORTI NG 312-419-9292
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A Rephrase that again.

Q The application doesn't cite or
reference 811.309(d), does it, anywhere in the
application?

A The application does not call out the
regul ation, that is correct.

Q But it is your testinony that that was
what you were relying upon in asking for the
relief, specifically Section 811.309(d) says, is
that correct?

A That, and based upon the neetings with
the Agency that we've had up to this date.

Q I'"'masking for the regulatory
citation. | should have made that clear. The
regul atory authority that you in your opinion
wer e basing your request to seek one day storage
versus five day storage was 811.309(d)(6), is
that right?

A | believe that is correct unless it is
contained in Volume 1.

Q Okay. Thank you.

So you're saying that you m ght have
included a citation, that citation in Volume 17?

A Yes.

L. A REPORTI NG, 312-419-9292
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Q Ckay. | believe you also testified on
direct exam nation that the permt application
described two options to transport to the Mrris
POTW is that correct?

A Yes, sir.

Q Ckay. Now, |ook, again, at Exhibit
RR.  And specifically Section 811.309(d)(6).

And specifically within that subsection the
second sentence that begins, such options, can
you read that into the record, please?

A "Such options shall consist of not
| ess than one day's worth of storage capacity or
accunul ated | eachate plus at |least two
alternative neans of managi ng accumnul at ed
| eachate through the treatnent or disposal or
both treatnent and di sposal, each of which neans
is capable of being -- of treating or disposing
of all |eachate generated at the naxi mum
generation rate on a daily basis."

Q kay. Is it your interpretation of
that | anguage that that sentence neans that you
need to have, in addition to one day's worth of
storage capacity, two alternative neans of

transportation of the |eachate to facilities

L. A REPORTI NG, 312-419-9292
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that can either store or dispose of the

materi al ?
A | do not believe facilities is plural
Q I"'msorry. |'mfocusing on the word
transport.

Is it your interpretation that when
this regul ation says, you need at |east two
alternative neans of nmnagi ng, are you saying
that that nmeans -- is it your interpretation
that nmeans two alternative neans of transporting
the | eachate to a facility or facilities that
will treat or dispose of |eachate?

A Yes, | believe that is true.

Q Okay. If the Illinois Pollution
Control Board were to issue an order that stated
that, in fact, this interpretati on does not mean
transport, but this neans that those are two
alternative nmeans, refer to two alternative
| ocations of treatnent or disposal, then would
you agree that your interpretation is
i nconsistent with that concl usion?

MR. LAROSE: Objection to the form of
t he questi on.

Does he nmean issue an order in this
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case?
HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN: M. Ki n?
MR KIM That's what I'mreferring
to, yes.
HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN:  Wbul d you
rephrase it then, please?
MR KIM | will.
BY MR KI'M
Q If the Illinois Pollution Control

Board enters an order in this case that states

that -- the sentence that you just read into the

record, does not nmean at |east two alternative
nmeans of transportation of |eachate to a
facility or facilities for treatnent or
di sposal, but instead neans two alternative
facilities that can either treat or dispose of
the accunmul ated | eachate, then would you agree
that your interpretation is inconsistent with
that interpretation?

MR. LAROSE: |I'mgoing to object to
the relevancy, the fact that it calls for a
| egal conclusion. | guess what M. Kimis
asking, if we lose the case, do we |ose the

case. | don't get it.
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HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN: M. Ki n?
MR KIM \What I'mtrying to get at
is -- you know, I'Il just wthdraw the question
HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN:  Thank you.
MR KIM Of the record.
(OFf the record.)
BY MR KI'M
Q First of all, M. MDernont, can you

find Exhibit Zz? That is the City of Rochelle

permt.
MR, LARCSE: | think | took that back
Hol d on.
BY MR KI'M
Q Okay. Would you turn to page 20 of

that and specifically paragraph 7 on page 207

Does that |anguage -- why don't you
take a monent to | ook that |anguage over. You
don't have to read it into the record but | ook

it over and |l et me know when you' ve had a chance

to do so.

A Ready, M. Kim

Q Al right. That paragraph does not
make any reference or citation to 35 Illinois

Adm ni strative Code Section 811.309(d)(6), does
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it?

A Does not appear to.

Q And that condition does not include a
description as to where the | eachate that would
be hauled -- when it nmakes reference to | eachate
haul i ng capabilities, does not reference where
that | eachate will be going to, does it?

A No, it does not.

Q Ckay. |1'mgoing to show you what |'ve
mar ked as Exhibit FFF. And just as a little
background, M. MDernont, this is one of the
permts that was provided to you through the
course of the Illinois EPA's response to the

subpoena duces tecum Do you recogni ze the

landfill as being on that list?

A Yes, | do.

Q Ckay. Would you please turn to
page -- let ne -- you may find it before | do.
Page 29.

A Yes, sir.

Q Par agr aph 8.

MR LARCSE: Hold on a second.

MR KIM Sur e.
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Q Woul d you please read this -- would

you pl ease read that paragraph into the record?

A Yes, sir.

Q Thank you

A "Speci al condition Roman nuneral VII
- VI, permit nodification nunber 6

acknow edges that the facility is in conpliance
with the 35 Il Administrative Code
811.309(d) (6) pertaining to the | eachate storage
systems. This nodification nunber 8 allows the
operator to use the existing 10,000 gallon
doubl e wal l ed | eachate storage tank and to

mai ntain three additional options to dispose of

| eachate off site as specified in the
application | og nunmber 1998-337. Since the
operator denonstrates the conpliance with the 35
I1linois Adnministrative Code 811.309(d)(6), the
operator is no longer required to instal
addi ti onal |eachate storage tanks that were
previously proposed and approved in the
application in | og nunber 1998-028."

Q Thank you.
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in Exhibit FFF to the permt that was referenced
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as Exhibit ZzZ of the second pernmit, which the
Settler H Il recycling and disposal pernit does

i nclude a section to 811.309(d)(6), doesn't it?

A Yes, it does.
Q And this | anguage does state that
there are -- that it does acknow edge that there

are three additional options to dispose of
| eachate off site, does it not?
A Yes, it does.
MR KIM M. Hearing Oficer, | would
nove that Exhibit FFF be admitted into evidence.
HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN: M. LaRose?
MR. LAROSE: No objecti on.
HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN:  Exhi bi t
FFF, Respondent's FFF is admtted into evidence.
MR. LAROSE: M. Hearing Oficer, |
guess | would say no objection with the caveat
that | hope we're not going to go through every
one of these permits to show that they've -- |
mean, this one is okay, but if he intends to

submt every one of these with respect to the
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respect to storage tank, without having given us

the POTWpermts, | would object. This one is
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okay. I'mcertainly not going to nmake this --
HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN:  So noted
for the record.
MR KIM And just to head this off,
this is the only pernmit that | will be --
MR. LAROSE: Thank you
HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN:  Thank you.
BY MR KI'M
Q M. MDernmont, we're done with those
exhibits, by the way.
You were describing the nunber of
groundwater wells at Community Landfill, |
beli eve, specifically on Parcel A and | think
this was through the course of your description
of pollution control devices while you were
referencing Exhibit CCC. Do you recall that?
A Ceneral | y speaki ng, yes.
Q | believe you noted that the new
permt would provide for nore groundwater wells

than the previous permt. | believe the new
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permit has 9 water wells referenced and the old
has 6 referenced, is that correct?
A Can | ask which parcel ?

Q Parcel A
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A No, that is incorrect.
Q Okay. Well, set aside the numbers,
was it your testinony that there were nore
groundwater wells to be required under the new

permt than there were under the old permt?

A Yes.
Q When we say new pernmit and old permt,
are we referring to pernmits -- an old pernit

being a pernit issued pursuant to Part 807 of
Title 35 of the Illinois Administrative Code,
and the new permt would be the permt pursuant
to Part 811 of Title 35 of the Illinois

Admi ni strative Code?

A When | refer to old permt, it
basically would include a variety of permts for
Parcel A that were indeed issued under 807, not
one single permt.

Q Ckay. But you woul d agree that the

old pernit was -- or pernmits were issued
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pursuant to 807 and the new pernits that we --
that are the subject of this appeal were issued
pursuant to Part 811, is that correct?

A Yes, sir.

Q You woul d al so agree, wouldn't you
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that Part 811 by its terns are nore
conprehensive in its scope than Part 8077

A Yes, it is.

Q Part 811 i nposes nore requirenents on
landfill owners and operators than did Part 807,
correct?

A Yes, it does.

Q I'd like to -- | would -- I"'mgoing to

draw the witness' attention to the
adm nistrative record, Parcel A, Volune 6?
MR. LAROSE: Hold on
MR KIM Sure.
MR. LAROSE: Cot it.
MR KIM And specifically portions of
the renedi ati on plan, which begin at Bates 0252.
MR. LAROSE: Ckay.
BY MR KM

Q And what I'mtrying to find, M.
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McDernont, and you might be able to do this
qui cker than ne, is the portion -- you're

famliar with that attachnent, are you not?

A Yes, | am
Ckay.
Co- aut hor .
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I"msorry?
| was co-author on that.
Q Thank you
And isn't it true that the reference
to the horizontal groundwater collection trench
as a backup to the use of wells -- the proposed
use of wells T2 and T4 is contained in that
attachnent ?
A Yes, it is.
Q Do you know if -- I'mgoing to present
this to you. Can you find in that attachment

where that reference is nmade?

A Can you tell nme your question?
Q I'"masking you to find it in the --
well, my question is would you please find in

the record the place or places where the

hori zontal groundwater collection trench is
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characterized as a backup or a contingency to
the deep wells, wells T2 and T4.

Have you found that place?

A Yes, | believe | have.

Q And what is the Bates stanp page,
pl ease?

A That woul d be 0278.
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Q VWhi ch is al so page 24 of the
renmedi ation plan, is that correct?
A That's correct.
MR LARCSE: Hold on one second. Let

me get there. Ckay.

BY MR KIM
Q And | believe, you correct ne if |I'm
wrong, | believe you're directing ny attention

to the bottom portion of that page that begins
with the section header collector trench

installation, is that correct?

A That's correct.
Q And coul d you read the portions of
that -- the portion of the application in that

subsection that describes how the groundwat er

collection trench could be a contingency or a
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backup as proposed to wells T2 and T4?

A | woul d point out that the docunent
prior to this section tal ks about the
groundwat er coll ector trench and al so tal ks
about the vertical wells.

Under Section 4.4 entitled, collector
trench installation, the sentence reads, second

sentence of the first paragraph reads,
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"Therefore, we are requesting to delay the
installation of groundwater collector trench
W believe it would be appropriate to discuss
the future need for the groundwater collector
trench when the one year report on the
groundwat er renedi ati on program as submitted to
| EPA for review "

Q And 1'd also like to draw your
attention to page -- Bates stanp page 0255,
whi ch woul d al so be page 1 of the renediation
plan. And would you just | ook over the first
hal f of that page and |let ne know when you've
done that?

A Yes, | have it. | reviewed it.

Q Is there any reference on that page to
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t he proposed role of the horizontal collection

trench in regards to wells T2 and T4?

A I"msorry. You nean this?
Q I"'msorry. Let ne wthdraw that
guesti on.

Is it safe to say that there night be
anot her reference sonewhere w thin that
attachnment that woul d describe the horizonta

collection trench as a contingency to the use of
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wells T2, T4?

MR. LAROSE: (bjection to the form of
t he question, asking himto specul ate.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN: M. Kin®?

MR KIM Well, M. --

MR. LAROSE: | know you're trying to
speed it up, put the docunment --

MR KIM M. MDernont is the
co-author, so I'msinply asking himif, based
upon his recollection, if that reference m ght
be included in his work as well.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN: Coul d - -

MR, LARCSE: The docunment is in front

of him
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HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN: Ri ght .
MR. LAROSE: W ought to really
establ i sh the pages.
HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN: | woul d
sustain M. LaRose's objection
MR KIM That's all right.
BY MR KM
Q The page that you cited to was
| anguage that stated that you were requested to

delay the installation of the groundwater
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collector trench, you thought it would be
appropriate to discuss that in the future after
one year report on groundwater renediation had
been subnitted for review, is that correct?

A Yes, in addition to any ot her

references that may be in that attachment of the

report.
Q kay. And then the second sentence
after that -- or the next sentence does state

that you are, however, at present maintaining
t he groundwat er collector trench in your design,
is that correct?

A And that is correct.
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Q Do you believe that contained within
Attachnent 25, the renmediation plan, there is
any further elaboration as to when the

groundwat er collector trench would be put into

use?
A Yes, sir.
Q Ckay. And what is your testinony?

When woul d they be put into use as proposed?
A Ask your question once nore.
Q What series of events would have to

t ake place before you woul d, pursuant to the
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proposal in your application, feel obligated to
use groundwater collector trench instead of
wells T2 and T4?

A Pursuant to the application, the
application states that we believe that T2 and
T4 would be nore effective at controlling
cont am nati on than the groundwater coll ector
trench. W proposed in the application each
year to submit a report on the use or on the
results of the renmedi ation system and only at
such tine as a condition was identified that

woul d be better corrected by the use of the
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groundwat er collector trench would we tell the
Agency we're going to use it.

The report also has a -- | believe it
has an initial date of construction that when we
woul d start that after that condition was so
identified, start construction of the
groundwat er col |l ector trench

Q And you believe those -- |I'm not
asking you for the pages, but you believe those
series of events are described within the permt

application, is that correct?
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Q Let's turn our attention nowto the

use of the question of revising the cost
estimate. And what |I'mreferring to there is
the i ssue of whether or not the Agency took into
consideration a request to revise downward the
cost estimate that has been previously approved,
17 mllion to 7 million. | believe you
testified that the -- your belief for -- as
justification for that request was that $10
mllion that had been previously approved --

well, let's start it this way. 10 million of
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the 17 million that had been previously approved
was attributable to disposal costs for the

| eachate and | eachate condensate, is that
correct?

MR. LAROSE: |I'mgoing to object to
the formof the question only to the extent he
uses this termpreviously approved. | don't
know where that fits, previous to what, there
has to be sone foundation. | don't know what
time frame.

MR KIM No, | can change the
guesti on.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN:  Thank you,
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M. Kim
BY MR KI'M
Q There is only one approved cost
estimate for this landfill, is that correct?
A That is correct.
Q And the present approved cost estimate

i ncl udes, anobng other things, approximtely $10
mllion related to disposal costs for |eachate,
| eachat e condensate. |s there anything el se

that is included in that $10 nmillion, |eachate,



11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

| eachat e condensate and cont am nat ed
groundwater, is that correct?

A Yes. That's correct.

Q And the $10 million that is approved
in the cost estimate, is a figure that was
derived fromthe costs that the City of Mrris
publicly owned the treatnent works, or the POTW
woul d nornmal |y charge for the acceptance and
di sposal of those wastes, is that correct?

A Yes, sir.

Q That figure doesn't represent a
di scounted rate, does it?

A That figure represents an acceptable

rate that the bureau of |and woul d approve, yes.

L. A, REPORTI NG 312-419-9292

713

Q Ckay. And | believe you al so
testified that you were concerned that there was
a possibility that the Agency woul d sonehow be
doubl e-di pping fromthe $10 million that had
been set aside for financial assurance, if we
didn't accept a revision dowward on the cost
estimte, is that correct?

A Can you rephrase that?

Q Let me ask you this.
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A I"msorry. Can you reask the
guesti on?

Q I don't knowif | can exactly the way
| worded it.

Was it your testinony that if the

Agency does not revise downward the cost
estinmate as you would like themto do, that in
effect that can create the potential for a
doubl e di pping on the part of the Illinois EPA
as to the $10 million in cost estimtes related
to the POTW charges?

A | believe ny testinony was given in

regard to the occurrence of an operator

default --
Q kay.
L. A REPORTI NG, 312-419-9292
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A -- where the -- or the |ease
anendnent is being -- is applicable for those

reduced wastewater treatnment rates to the
Agency, in addition to the perfornmance bond,
financial assurance that is in place for $17
mllion.

Q Vell, let's ook at a different

figure. |If the Agency were to accept the
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revision that you would or Community Landfil
would Iike to receive, when | say the revision
I mean the $10 million reduction, and that has

been proposed to be reduced in recognition of

the | ease addendum and the | easing -- the |ease
agreement between the city of -- POTW and
Community Landfill. If the Agency were to

accept the revision dowward, the cost estinate,
and if the Mrris POTWwere to shutdown, then
what -- where would the | eachate, |eachate
condensat e and cont ani nated groundwat er be taken
to?
They woul d be taken to a POTW ot her

than the City of Morris, is that correct?

A I'"mnot aware of any POTW serving the

community the size of Mrris shutting down, sir.
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Q My question is not whether or not that
is going to happen. M question is if that does
happen, it would have to go to a POTW ot her than
the City of Morris, is that correct?
MR. LAROSE: M objection is
specul ati ve.

MR KIM This is no different than
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during direct.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN: | agree.
Overrul ed. You can answer.

THE WTNESS: A permt would have to
be obtained for a facility that was operating
and the |l eachate would have to go to where it
was permitted, that is correct.

BY MR KI'M
Q So it would go to a facility other
than the City of Morris, POTW is that correct?
A It would have to go to an operationa

permtted facility, yes.

Q So the answer is yes?
A Yes.
Q Okay. And do you know of any

agreenents that exist between Comunity Landfil
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and any other POTWother than the City of Mrris
where any ot her POTWwoul d accept | eachate,
| eachat e condensate and contam nat ed groundwat er
fromthe Community Landfill free of charge?

A No, sir.

Q No such agreenent exists, does it?
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A No, sir.
Q And if that were the case, and if the
POTWwere to fail, if the Illinois EPA were,

pursuant to the regul ations, have to exercise
its oversight authority, the Illinois EPA would
be responsible for paying those costs, woul dn't
t hey?

MR. LAROSE: Objection to the form of
t he question, conpound and al so specul ati ve.

MR KIM It's conmpound only in the
sense that it is building upon -- I'mjust
describing the facts that would lead up to ny
guesti on.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN:  Overrul ed.
He nay answer the question, if he is able.

THE WTNESS: Could you restate the
guesti on?

BY MR KIM
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Q The question is this, if the Mrris
POTW shuts down, if the Illinois EPA had agreed
previously to revise downward the cost estimte
and if the Illinois EPA were to have to step in

and take its -- exercise its oversight authority
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pursuant to the regul ations and transport and
di spose of that |eachate at another POTW the
I1linois EPA would be responsible for those
costs, wouldn't it?

MR. LAROSE: Sane objection

HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN: M. Kim is
there any way to break that down a little nore?

MR KIM Well, it is one question
based upon one set of conditlons. [It's just
t Hat theconditions are mulLtiple, not a conpngnd
guesti on, seeks one answer.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN: My probl em
is not with the speculation but just with the

conmpound nature of it.

BY MR KM
Q Let's ask this. It's a possibility,
isn'"t it -- let's assune for the sake of

argunent that we were to approve the cost

revi sion downward, okay? Yes?
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A Yes, sir.
Q And let's then assunme that the Gty of

Morris POTWwere to shutdown, okay?
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Q And then let's assune that the
Illinois EPA would have to exercise its

oversi ght authority pursuant to the regul ations,

okay?
A Yes, sir.
Q Wt hout commenting on your persona

belief as to how likely those series of events
are, it is possible that all of those events
could occur, is it not?

A Yes, sir, it is.

Q If that were to happen, the Illinois
EPA woul d be responsible for the disposal costs
of the | eachate, |eachate condensate and
cont am nat ed groundwater, wouldn't it?

A Yes, sir.

Q And let's take one step back. Let's
| ook at the application as a whole.

I know you testified as to what you
bel i eved your -- your meaning of the word

appropriate, avail able procedure was, and that's
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719
fromlanguage found in the cover letter that you
supplied with the pernmt application but, in

fact, there is no specific request in the pernit
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application asking the Illinois EPA to revise

the cost estimate, is there?
MR LARCSE: You nean with the

exception of the cover letter?

BY MR KI'M

Q ' masking. There isn't any specific
request made anywhere within pernmit application
whereby Comunity Landfill asks the Illinois EPA
to revise the cost estimate, is there?

A I would say that the cover letter --

Q It's a yes or no question. |Is there a
specific request anywhere in the permt
application?

A It is inmplied through various pl aces
in the permit application

Q Do you recall being asked this sane
guestion during your deposition?

A No, | do not.

Q I'"mgoing to read for you a portion
fromyour deposition transcript.

MR. LAROSE: Page, please.
L. A REPORTI NG 312-419-9292
720
BY MR KI'M
Q Pages 59 through 60, and I'll read you
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t he questi on.

MR. LAROCSE: \What page?

MR KIM Line 17.
BY MR KI'M

Q Page 59, line 17.

"Question. So, having made that
statenment, is there any specific request nade
wi thin any document within the permt
application whereby Community Landfill asks that
the Illinois EPA revise the cost estinmate for
the landfill?"

"MR LARCSE: In the permt app or in
the record?"

"MR KIM In the pernit application."

"Answer. No."

Do you recall giving that answer?

A Yes, sir.
Q So there is no specific request in the
permit application asking the Illinois EPA to

revise the cost estimate for Conmunity Landfill,
is there?

MR. LAROSE: Objection, that is

L. A REPORTI NG, 312-419-9292
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i mproper inpeachment.
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HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLCORAN: How so?
MR, LARCSE: That's because the
i npeachnent -- with the reading of the
deposition, you can't argue with the witness
with what he said. He said one thing here.

Read the deposition. That is the end of the

i mpeachnent .
HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN: | agree.
Sust ai ned.
BY MR KI'M
Q So you're now testifying that your

testinmony during the deposition was incorrect,
is that correct?

A | believe so.

Q And you're testifying instead that
there was an inplication nmade in the cover
letter asking that the Illinois EPA revise the
cost estimate, is that correct?

A Yes, sir.

Q And | believe you testified that you
had an under st andi ng, your personal opinion, as
to what you neant? Let's direct your attention

to Exhibit T and Exhibit U
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Q Those being the cover page to the
permt application.
And the words, appropriate, avail able

procedures, is found at the bottom of that page,

isit not?

A Yes, sir.

Q And you testified that your opinion of
that -- of what those words nmeant was that

either 1, if the pernmts for Parcel A and Parce
B were issued and if it was sonething that
Community Landfill could live with, then
Community Landfill would later file an
additional sig nod pernmit application for
Parcels A and B to reduce the cost estimte, is
that correct?

MR. LAROSE: |I'mgoing to object. The
testinmony wasn't that it was his opinion as it
was because he wote it. It was that -- it was
what he intended. There is a difference. He is
not interpreting that, he is --

BY MR KI'M
Q | can change the word.

WAs it your intention that that is

L. A, REPORTI NG 312-419-9292
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what that neant?
A Yes.
Q It was also your intention that if
that anticipated pernmit application relating to
specifically to the cost estimte was deni ed

than there woul d be an appeal that would foll ow,

right?
A Yes.
Q It was also your intention that if you

received a permit pursuant to those pernit
applications that you didn't find was sonething

you could live with, then you would file an

appeal, is that correct?
A Yes, sir.
Q And that if you did file an appeal,

you woul d additionally raise the financial
assurance question therein, is that correct?

A Yes, sir.

Q Asi de from your testinmony today about
what your intention is, is there anything in
this permit application that nenorializes or
makes reference to those intentions or do you
think it is contained within that paragraph in

Exhibit U and Exhibit T?

L. A REPORTI NG, 312-419-9292
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A I'msure you want ne to answer yes or
no.

Q Well, it is a question that asks for a
yes or no answer.

A I would have to examni ne the
application to conclude that the answer is no.

Q Okay. Part of the justification that
was of fered up as you intended to seek this cost
revision was the | ease addendum this is Exhibit

LL, between the City of Morris and Conmunity

Landfill, is that correct?
A Yes.
Q Do you have Exhibit LL before you?
A Yes.
Q And | believe you testified that you

were involved in the discussions and
negotiations that led up to the execution of
this amendment or addendum is that correct?

A Yes.

Q Did the Illinois EPA participate in
any of those negotiations between Conmunity
Landfill and City of Morris?

A I"msure you and M. LaRose discussed

this in earnest, yes.

L. A, REPORTI NG 312-419-9292
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Q There was no representative of the
Il1linois EPA that attended any of the neetings
bet ween Conmunity Landfill and the City of
Morris that led up to the entry of this addendum
of the | ease agreenment, did they?

A That is correct, yes.

Q How long is this lease in effect, the
underlying | ease?

Do you know the answer to that

guesti on?

Do you know how long the lease is in

effect?
A | need to finish reading the document.
Q I"'msorry. Go right ahead.
Have you read the terns of that
exhi bit?
A Yes, | have.
Q kay. And, again, |'masking you how

long is the lease to which this addendumis in
effect?

A Thi s docunent says in paragraph 3 the
second sentence, "Should the parcels reach fina
di sposal capacity prior to July 2010, the

landfill shall close, but this | ease shal
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continue for |essee to conduct closure and
post-closure care and renedial activities as
required by applicable | EPA pernits.”

Q Ckay. Now, you're not a |lawer, are
you, M. McDernont?

A No. Thank you.

Q You consider that a good thing, don't
you?

A At this point, this week, yes, | do.

Q | don't think many people woul d

di sagree with you.

MR. LAROCSE: | wouldn't.
BY MR KM
Q Since you're not a |lawer, you

woul dn't feel qualified to make any testinmony as
to the rights or ability of the Illinois EPA to
enforce any termof this addendum would you?

A No, I'"'mnot a |lawer. And no, | don't

speak for the | EPA

Q My question is, and since you're not a
| awyer, you don't have any -- you don't have any
source of know edge -- or you're not qualified,

are you, to testify or to present an opinion as

to whether or not -- as to what rights or what
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benefits the Illinois EPA derives fromthis
docunent, do you?

MR. LAROSE: |I'mgoing to object to
that. He was never asked to render any opinion

as to the rights of the EPA. He read the
docunment that it inures to their benefit. |
didn't ask himto render any |egal opinion. |
think M. Kimis saying, even though you didn't
render one, you're not qualified to render one.
| don't think that is appropriate.

MR KIM | think that is a fair
guesti on.

I'mnot asking himto render one. |'m
getting himto testify that he is not in a
position to do so.

MR. LAROSE: It's the negative of
sonet hing that never occurred. | don't think it
is an appropriate area of inquiry.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN:  Sust ai ned.
BY MR KI'M

Q Okay. Let's turn our attention nowto
t he question of the over-height waste of Parce

B
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Is it your testinobny that part of the
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reason that Comunity Landfill never sought
| ocal siting approval from August of 1996 to
August of 2000 was because they had not at that
time yet received the sig nod permt?

A That is correct.

Q And is it your testinony that w thout
that permt you felt that there would be sone
negati ve backl ash either from menbers of the
revi ewi ng body or nenbers of the public, is that
correct?

A | thought there would be substantial
backl ash, yes.

Q Did you testify that the people making
t hese siting decisions sonetinmes do not focus on
the technical points but sonetimes are nore
wei ghed by enotional concerns? Is that a fair
characterization?

A Perhaps a little stronger than | would
i ke repeated, but, yes.

Q | understand you have to do these in
the future, so |'msure no one will read this

transcript, beyond the purposes of this hearing.
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But fromthe tine --

MR. LAROSE: If they do, they got a
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sad life.
BY MR KI'M

Q Fromthe tine between August of 1996

and up until the issue of the sig nod permts in
August of 2000, Comunity Landfill did have
permts issued to it that authorized and
addressed its operation, did it not? Wen | say
permts issued to it, | nmean by the Illinois

EPA, did it not?

A | amgoing to answer it in a two part
answer .

Q kay.

A I firmMy wthout any doubt have seen

these pernits, know they existed, worked on the
application formand reviewed the resulting
permts fromthe | EPA
On the other hand, |'ve also read
various conclusions by the I EPA that we are
operating wthout a permt.
Q Ckay. Let nme reword the question

t hen.
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In your opinion, from August of 1996
to August of 2000, just before the sig nod

permts were issued, did Community Landfill ever
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act or ever conduct operations wthout a pernit?

A No, sir.
Q And do you believe that the genera
public and the nenbers of -- the politica

menbers of the local unit of governnment that
woul d consider the siting application or any
siting application that m ght be offered by CLC,
woul d they have an appreciation for the

di stinction between a Part 807 pernit and a Part
811 pernit?

A W were successful in a neeting with
the city council of the City of Mrris in
convincing nore of themthat there was indeed
such a distinction. There were still a nenber
or menbers on the board who still did not
under stand t hat.

Q So they really didn't care so nuch
about what the nunber you associated with a
permt, they were sinply concerned about broader

aspects of having a landfill in the Cty of
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A The broader aspects of the landfill in
Morris, whether it is operating with or w thout

a permt. Even if | recall correctly the permt
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now for Parcel A says we're operating without a
permt.

Q So, in addition to the fact that no
sig nod permt had been issued, were there any
ot her reasons that you believe prevented
Community Landfill from seeking local siting
approval anytine between August of 1996 and
August of 20007

MR. LAROSE: |I'mgoing to object to
the formof the question. | don't believe
anyone has ever said that we were prevented but
that we thought it wasn't w se, so, technically,
the word prevented is the form the word that
causes ne a problemw th the formof the
guesti on.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN: M. Ki n?

MR KIM "Il break it up in two
guesti ons.

MR. LAROSE: Thank you
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HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN: Thank you.

BY MR KIM
Q Was there anything that you felt
prevented Comunity Landfill from seeking | oca

siting approval between August of 1996 and
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August of 20007?

A | believe we were prevented from
seeking siting approval if we expected to be
successful during that period of tine.

Q So you're not saying that there was
anything to prevent you fromdoing that, you're
just saying that you didn't think the |ikelihood

was very good, is that correct?

A That is correct.
Q And, again, you have been invol ved
in -- strike that.

I'"mnow going to do what | told you I
have to do. | skipped over a question | neant
to ask you.

Could you pull the exhibits, which are
the Parcel A and Parcel B permts? | believe
that's Exhibits Rand S. Do you have those in

front of you?
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A. | do not.

Q R and S.
MR, LARCSE: | took those back. 1've
got -- Ris that Parcel A and Sis Parcel B

Do you have S?

HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN: S is Parcel
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B
MR, LARCSE: This is R That's S.
BY MR KM
Q I'"m backtracking a little bit to the
guestion of -- the cost estinmate question as to
the Illinois EPA's act or non-act in considering

that issue.

Wul d you look to Exhibit R which is,
| believe, the Parcel A permt, and specifically
| ook on pages 2 and pages 3?

A kay.

Q At the bottom of page 2, there are two
paragraphs 1 and 2, is that correct?

A Yes, sir.

Q And the |ine above that, could you
read that line into the record?

A Begi nning with the word pernit?
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Yes, please

Permit nunber 2000-115.

MR. LAROCSE: |I'msorry. Were are we?
KIM Page 2 of the parcel.

LARCSE: O R

KIM  Yes.

5 2 3 3

LARCSE: kay. Sorry.
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BY MR KI'M
Q Go ahead, please.
A Once again, "Permt nunber
2000- 155- LFM does not approve the foll ow ng,
colon."
Q And then what follows below are the

t hree paragraphs nunbered consecutively 1, 2, 3,
is that correct?

A Yes, sir.

Q And nunber 1 relates to the proposed
use of pumping wells T2 and T4, is that correct?

A That's correct.

Q Nurmber 2 relates to the proposed one
day's worth versus five days' worth of |eachate

storage, is that correct?
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Q And item nunber 3 relates to the use
of saw dust and sonme other materials as ultimate
daily cover, is that correct?

A Yes, sir.

Q There is no nmention here of a request
to revise a cost estimate, is there?

A No, sir.

Q Ckay. Can you turn your attention to
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Exhibit S, which is Parcel B pernit, and on page
2 of that pernmit in the mddle of the page,
we'll just sort of speed this up, there is
anot her sentence that states what is not
approved in the permt, is that correct?

A Yes, sir.

Q And then what follows are four

nunber ed paragraphs, is that correct?

A Yes, sir.
Q And wi t hout goi ng through each
par agraph, there is no nention in either -- in

any of those paragraphs as to a request to
review the cost estimate, is that correct?
A That is fair.

Q Woul d you like to take about a five
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m nut e break?

A When it woul d be convenient for you.
Q Now i s as good of a tinme as ever.
A Thank you.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN:  Sure, the
Hearing O ficer will allow a five m nute break.
(OFf the record.)
HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN: It's

approximately 2:50. M. Kimwll be continuing
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hi s cross-exani nation of M. MDernont.

BY MR KIM
Q You have testified as to your
understanding -- oh, I'"'msorry. Strike that.

You testified as to the schedul e that
was inposed in the pernmt for Parcel B for the
conpl etion of work on the | eachate renoval

system do you renenber that?

A Yes, sir.
Q And when | say that |'mreferring
to -- well, you recall the condition I'mtalking

about, is that correct? Condition Ronman nuneral
6-7 and Roman nuneral 6-9 of Exhibit S, which

woul d be found at pages 20 and 21 of the permt.
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A Ckay.

Q And | believe you also testified that,
under questioning from opposing counsel, that
the schedule that the Illinois EPA inposed of
the permt for Parcel B did not provide you with
what you felt was enough time to conplete those
activities, is that right?

A And | testified to two things.

Q Vell, let me ask you this. Did you

testify that the schedul e that was proposed in
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Parcel B, in the permit for Parcel B as to the
concl usion of the work for the | eachate renoval
system did not give you enough tinme to conplete
all of those tests in the tine allowed?

A Yes.

Q Okay. But there was no schedul e,
other than a reference to the | eachate storage
tank, there was no schedul e that was provided in

the application for those tasks, was there?

A No.
Q I'd like to draw your attention then
to the condition concerning the -- okay. |[|'d

like to turn your attention nowto the -- to
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Exhibit R which | believe is the permt for
Parcel A  And condition Roman nuneral 8-23,
which is found at page 30 -- I'msorry, page 41
of the permt.

There, again, | believe your testinmony
was that the time periods provided in the permt
for conpletion of the activities described was
not sufficient to conplete those tasks, is that
correct? Is that right?

A | believe | testified that in

conjunction with the other inprovenents that had
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to be nade in Parcel A that the groundwater
collection trench could not be conpleted in six
nont hs, yes.

Q But the pernit application did not
i nclude a proposed tine-1ine or schedule for

conpl etions of those tasks, did it?

A Nor did it include --

Q It's a yes or no question
A No.

Q Thank you.

And did the permt application for

Parcel B contain a plan which described proposed
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wast e rel ocation of the over-hei ght waste,
Parcel B, is that correct?
A Coul d you rephrase your question?
Q In the Parcel B pernit application,
there was a plan included wthin that
application, wasn't there, that addressed
rel ocating or the proposed relocating of the
over-height waste in Parcel B, the nmethods by
whi ch you would do that, if you did do that?
A Again, M. Kim | think you need to
rephrase your question.

Q Maybe | can see why you ni ght have
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been confused by my question.
I'"'mgoing to refer to the
adm nistrative record, Parcel B, Volume 3.
MR. LAROCSE: \hat page, John?
MR KIM 0293 Bates stanped.
MR, LARCSE: Hold on one second. |
don't have Bates stanp. | just have 293.
MR KIM That's correct, 293.
BY MR KI'M
Q And that is also referenced as page 10

of the closure plan, post-closure plan and cost
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estimates, is that correct?

A Yes, sir.

Q VWhat is the heading on the top of that
page?

A Waste rel ocation

Q Are you famliar with the information

and the text in that section?

A Yes, | am

Q Does that text describe how
over - hei ght waste, Parcel B, would be rel ocated,
if that was necessary?

A It -- | would characterize it nore as

referring to a schedul e.
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Q Okay. And you believe then that there
isa--1"m-- you believe that there is a
schedul e contained within that section that
addresses tine periods for noving the
over - hei ght waste from Parcel B?

A Yes, sir.

Q I'd like to now draw your attention to

t he proposed use of wells T2 and T4.
| believe you testified as to a four

nonth test that was perforned involving wells T2
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and T4. Do you recall that?
A Yes, | do.
Q And, in fact, that four nonth test
i nvol ved collecting data fromother wells in
addition to wells T2 and T4, did it not?
A O her wells and piezoneters, yes, sir.
Q kay. And | believe you testified
t hat based upon those results, it was shown that
the use of wells T2 and T4 was the preferred

nmet hod for renoving groundwater, is that

correct?
A Yes, sir.
Q And | believe you also testified that

the m ned area was never conpletely dewatered
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t hrough the course of those -- that punp test,
is that correct?
A Yes, sir.
Q What about those test results to you

denonstrated that the use of wells T2 and T4 was
preferred? And when you say preferred,
preferred as opposed to what --

A vell --

Q -- the groundwat er collection trench?
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A Yes, obviously that is nmy preference.

Q kay. And what were the reasons for
your preference or what were the reasons you
stated that was preferred?

A The advantages | find for the vertica
wel I's over the groundwater collection trench is
ease of installation, ability to adjust the
systemwith a single -- I'"msorry, just easier

to adjust the system if 1'd |like the water

level to go up or down a little bit, | can
easily adjust that. | do not have concerns from
pi pes that are -- may clog or then becone scal ed

up with tine, certainly easier to install
certainly easier to maintain, easier to operate,

easier to nonitor. | think the results | get
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are nore uniform The deep groundwater is being
renoved, whi ch causes the shall ow groundwater to
be renmoved as well. The 1998 trench test we
punped at approximately 80 gallons a mnute, and
admttedly enough it is a shorter test, but ny
control of the shallow groundwater decline was
not as rapid as with the vertical extraction

systemwel I's during the sane period of tine.
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The primary flow that we received in the
groundwat er collection trench was fromfracture
flow and not fromrenoval of a nore perneabl e
zone. So, just overall | feel that T2 and T4
are better methods for doing what we need to do,
plus if | need to expand, | can install another
vertical well and have it operational in, you
know, | always assune everything is going to
wor k out perfectly, but you can sinply do that
i n about a nonth.

Q And were all of those reasons you j ust
described included in the permt application?

A No, sir, they were not.

Q When you testified that the mned area
was not conpletely dewatered, would there be a

problemin your opinion with conpletely
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dewat eri ng the nmined well?
A Yes.
Q And what woul d the probl em be?
A M. Skouby testified that the nmne is

fl ooded, and that the strata above the nine to
the elevation, the groundwater as well as the

undercl ay bel ow the coal, are saturated. They
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have swel |l ed up, expanded in vol une and becane
soft. If you conpletely dewatered the mine and
enough tine passed in order to dry out those
soils, they would shrink. This to ne is going
to take a considerable amount of time. It is
not sonething that can happen in a day. And
thi nk you're tal king nmore about geol ogical tine
of years.

So, with that understanding, plus the
addi ti on of sone chenical and physical reactions
that may be going -- that mght occur with the
resulting or remaining coal, you can get sone
ot her undesirabl e actions occurring as well.

Q Do you believe that if the mned area
were dewatered it would al so be a potential for
or a greater potential for subsidence in those

dewat ered areas?
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A | believe that if the water was indeed
renoved fromthe saturated substrata soils that
woul d i ncrease settlenent potential at the
landfill, but | do not believe that settlenent
woul d be catastrophic at all.

Q You also testified that there would --
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that permt application does include references
to -- strike that.

I think the last question |I have for
you on cross-exani nation concerns, if you can
direct your attention to Exhibit R which is the
permt for Parcel A and page 3 of that permt
and, specifically I'mfocusing on condition
Roman nuneral 1, paragraph 2, subsection A

Do you see the section |'mreferring
to?

A Yes, sir.

Q That section was not included as one
of the conditions as being contested in this
permt appeal, is that correct?

A I would have to exanine the perm't
appeal to be certain.

Q Wuld you like -- do you have

exhibit --
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A No, sir, it's not --

Q -- before you?

A No.

Q You do not -- just a nonment. |'Il

hand it to you.
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Exhibit P. Wuld you turn to page --
I"'mdirecting your attention to pages 5 and 6 of
that exhibit. And specifically paragraph 13, do
you see that paragraph?

A Yes, | do.
Q And there are a nunber of subsections
to that paragraph, beginning with the letter A

and going through the letter H, is that correct?

A That is correct.
Q And included within those descri bed
contested conditions -- let ne rephrase that.
Conditi on Roman numneral |, paragraph

2, section A of the Parcel A permt is not
i ncl uded anong those contested conditions, is
that correct?
A That is correct.
MR. LAROSE: Thank you. At this point
I have no further cross-exam nation questions

for M. MDernont.
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Can we go off the record for a nonent?
(OFf the record.)

HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN: Back on the

record.
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MR KIM No, | don't have any further
questions for M. MDernont.

REDI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY MR LARGCSE

Q ' mgoing to hand you Exhibit P
agai n, please

A Yes.

Q Take a | ook at that.

You said to M. Kimthat Exhibit C
doesn't specifically reference condition -- |'m
sorry. Paragraph 13C doesn't specifically
ref erence conditi on Roman nuneral |, 2A, on page
3 of Exhibit R correct?

A That is correct.

Q But it does, does it not, speak to the
need to place the waste in order to build the
separation | ayer?

A Absol ut el y.

Q And the condition that is cited in

this particular paragraph, 13C, if you'll flip
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to page 5, condition Roman nureral 11(i),
doesn't it reference sonething that would rel ate

back to the other section?
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A Yes, it's nmy opinion that the two are
definitely rel ated.

Q Okay. How so?

A The question comes about in preparing
the separation layer or the first step of
installing the separation |ayer, our
construction tal ks about placing waste above the
exi sting grade on Parcel A before starting
construction of the first layer of the 36 inch

thick clay separation |ayers.

Q How are the two related, sir?
A The two are related because if | can't
pl ace waste there, | can't start construction of

t he separation |ayer.
Q And doesn't the condition on page 5
reference a significant nodification permt?
A Yes, it does.
Q Is that the sig nbd permt in your

opinion that is referenced under condition 1,

2A?
A Yes.
L. A REPORTI NG 312-419-9292
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Q M. MDermont, in a series of

guestions that M. Kimasked you about the
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Morris POTW stopping to accept waste, going out
of busi ness basically, do you believe that to be
a likely scenario?

A No, | do not.

Q Ckay. If | was to tell you or ask you
your opinion, using the scale of 1 to 100, 1
being the least likely and 100 bei ng the nopst
likely, what nunber would you assign to the
likelihood of the POTWin Mrris going down?

A Coul d you repeat your range?

Q Yes. M range is 1 to 100. 1 would
be the least likely that it would go off-line
totally and pernmanently, 100 would be the nost
likely. Could you assign a number to that?

A I would assign a nunber of 1 to that.

Q Ckay. Would it have to be sone kind
of catastrophic event?

A It would have to be nore than
catastrophic. It would basically have to renmove
all treatnent devices fromthe treatnent plant.

MR, LARCSE: That's all | have, M.

Hearing Oficer.
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HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN:  Thank your,
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M. LaRose.

M. Kim any re-cross?

MR KIM Yes.

RECROSS- EXAM NATI ON
BY MR KI'M
Q M. MDernont, the purpose of posting

financial assurance in an anount equal to the
approved cost estimate is to provide the state
wi th nonies equal to that which they woul d have

to spend if they had to step in and performthe

descri bed activities at the landfill if the
andfill were not able to do so, is that
correct?

A Yes, sir.

Q And are you fanmiliar with the
regulations in Part 811 -- in Part 811 that

describes how to cal cul ate cost estimates?

A In general, yes, sir.

Q And there is no reference in those
cost estimate provisions in Part 811 that refer
to the likelihood of this or the likelihood of
that in the manner that M. LaRose has

descri bed, is there?
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A No, sir.

MR. KIM Thank you. Nothing further.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN: M. LaRose?

MR. LARCSE: No, sir.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN:  Thank you,
M. MDernont, you nmay step down.

MR. LARCSE: Before he does, can we
take about -- we need to take about 2 minutes.
W received a fax from M. MDernont's office
regarding this CALP thing and | want himto take
a look at this docunment so that -- see if | can
lay a foundation for it, either so -- as | said
before, either so we can have these permts
submtted as an offer of proof or so that you
can | ook at themand see if you want to
reconsi der your ruling on the CALP issue.

(OFf the record.)

HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN: Back on the
record.

MR. LAROSE: M. Halloran, |I'm going
to show -- here, this is for M. Kim |'m going
to show this to you. This is the only copy I
have. So you can take a look at it before he

does and this is a copy that you can have.

L. A, REPORTI NG 312-419-9292
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REDI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY MR, LAROCSE:

Q M. MDermont, we earlier had
di scussed City Water, Light & Power facility and
it's, in fact, at |east your testinobny that was
later stricken fromthe record, that it had a
landfill and a treatnent facility both owned by
the City of Springfield and that there was no
cost associated with the disposal of |eachate
into the treatnent facility, is that correct?

A That is correct.

Q ' mgoing to hand you what has been
previously marked as Exhibit GGG which is a
copy of the nobst recent permt, 811 permt for
the CW.P, and that pernit, that docunent was
provi ded for us, provided to us by the |IEPA
pursuant to the subpoena.

Have you seen that document before?

MR KIM [I'msorry. You're saying
this docunent was provided to you?

MR. LAROSE: No. No. GGG The
permt.

MR KIM Ch, I'msorry. | apol ogize.

I have HHH.

L. A REPORTI NG, 312-419-9292
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MR. LAROSE: But GGG is the permt.
MR KIM That's what you're referring
to?
MR. LAROSE: Right. GGG Right.
Right. Right.

BY MR LARCSE:

Q kay. Sir, are you familiar with that
permt?

A Yes, | am

Q Were you the consultant on that
permt?

A Yes, | was.

Q Even though we have the permt in

front of us, would anything in that permt
substantiate your testinony, either substantiate
it or discredit your testinony that there was no
third-party cost for the treatnent of |eachate?

A This particular permt would be silent
on the issue.

Q It would just say follow ng your
cl osure and post-cl osure plan?

A Ri ght, there would be a speci al
condition in here approving of that.

Q Ckay. It doesn't describe what is in

L. A REPORTI NG, 312-419-9292
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the cl osure, post-closure plan?

A That's correct.

Q ' mgoing to hand you now what has
been marked as Exhibit HHH and ask you to take a
| ook at that, please.

MR KIM Just for the record, and
think this would be sort of just a corollary to
the previous question to strike, the Agency asks
that any testinobny concerning HHH be stricken
fromthe record since that was not a document
that was provided or properly before the
Community Landfill or the | EPA or the Pollution
Control Board.

MR LAROCSE: I|I'mtrying to lay a
foundation to see if --

HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN:  You can
proceed and we can address M. Kims --

MR. LAROSE: GCkay. Good.

BY MR LARGCSE

Q Sir, where did you get that docunent?

Let's ask that differently. How did
you get that docunent?

A At lunch today | called ny office and

asked if they could print it out of the computer
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and have it faxed to your |aw office.
And did they do that?
Yes, they did.
Then it was delivered here?
That is correct.

Did you prepare that docunent?

> 0 » © » O

Yes, | did.

MR KIM At this point, I1'd like to
formally object. This docunent was not provided
by the | EPA through the course of any approved
or normal discovery or docunent disclosure.

Thi s docunent was provided by the consultant

hi nsel f on the day of -- the |ast day of

hearing. | ask that any testinmony on the
exhibit all be stricken.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLCRAN:  You may
conti nue, M. LaRose. It's noted for the
record.

MR KIM Are you reserving your
ruling on that?

HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN: |11
reserve -- right, because | have questions to
ask.

MR. KIM Thank you
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BY MR, LAROCSE:

Q Sir, the docunment in front of you, you
did prepare that docunent?

A Yes. It was prepared in Septenber of
1994.

Q And you subnmitted that to the | EPA?

A Yes, sir.

Q Was it approved?

A Yes, it was.

Q Coul d you direct the hearing officer

and the I EPA to the pages, page or pages of that
docunent that would represent the closure and
post-cl osure care cost estinates?

A The pages in question --

MR KIM VWhile he is looking, I'm
goi ng to pose another objection in that since
this docunent was not provided by the | EPA
t hrough the course of our review of the
underlying file, we don't knowif this
particul ar docunent, Exhibit HHH was part of
the pernmit application, which led up to the
i ssuance of a permt, that is found in GGG So
I just want to note for the record we're al so

objecting to this docunent because we don't know
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that that report cane fromthe permt
application that led to the issuance of the
permt of GGG

HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN:  So not ed.
MR. LAROSE: I'mgoing to try to
get --
HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN: | f you | et
M. LaRose finish --
MR KIM | understand. | just wanted
to note for the record.
BY MR LAROCSE:

Q Could you direct the Hearing O ficer
board, the I EPA to those pages that reflect the
cl osure, post-closure cost care estinates?

A Those woul d faxed pages 25, 26 and 27.

Q kay. Is there anything in those
pages that reflect a cost for the treatnent and

di sposal of |eachate?

A There is not.
MR KIM (Objection. | don't have a
faxed -- | don't have the pages that you're

referring to.

THE W TNESS: Top right-hand corner --
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MR, LARCSE: Is it cut off?
MR KIM On this copy.
Can you describe the pages?
MR. LAROSE: |'mjust going to show it

to you.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN: \What pages
are those?

MR. LARCSE: |It's the pages
i medi ately after Appendix L.

MR KIM | guess it would be the
pages i n Appendi x L.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN:  Ckay.
Thank you.

MR. KIM Thank you.

MR. LARCSE: Sorry.
BY MR, LAROSE:

Q In this, Exhibit HHH, this cost
estinmate appears after appendix -- after the
page, Appendi x L?

A That's correct.

Q I's there any cost associated with the

treatment and di sposal of |eachate in that
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| eachate treatnment in this post-closure care
cost estimate.

Q And there is a cost associated with

handling it or nonitoring it or sonmething |like
that, could you point that out and describe
t hat ?

A There is one cost entitled | eachate
managenent, which includes the category field
nmeasur enent s docunmentation, reporting and daily
review, this cost is for nmanual |abor of $30
per -- apparently per quarter

Q To the best of your know edge,
information and belief, sir, is that a true and
accurate copy of the closure plan, post-closure
care plan and cost estimates submitted to the
| EPA on behal f of the CWP facility in Septenber
19947

A Yes, it is.

MR. LAROSE: M. Hearing Oficer, with
that | would nove the adm ssion of Exhibits GGG

and HHH i nt o evi dence.
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The objections as to first with
Exhi bit GGG we woul d have no objection to that.
| think that is already in, isn't it?

MR. LARCSE: No.

MR KIM No. Ckay.

The pernmit itself we would have no
obj ection to.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN: Exhibit GGG
is admitted.

(Exhibit No. GGG was adnitted.)

MR KIM As to Exhibit HHH, we woul d
have several objections.

First of all, that docunent was not
provi ded pursuant to the subpoena duces tecum as
was nodi fied by the Hearing Officer. That
docunent was not provided through any di scovery
request. That docunent was not found in the
permt application. That document was not found
in the adm nistrative record before the board.

That is a docunent which was provided as it was
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landfill as requested during sone tel ephone
conversation today. The Agency has not seen

t hat docunent and has not revi ewed that docunent
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in the context of this case and that docunent
shoul d not be considered by the board.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN: M. LaRose?

MR KIM Ch, I'msorry. And the |ast
objection is that al so because the Agency has
not seen the application fromwhich that
docunment cane, we cannot certify or we cannot --
we cannot guaranty that that application -- that
docunent came from an application contained in
the Agency's permt as Exhibit GGG

MR, LARCSE: |'ll address those in
reverse order.

M. MDernont testified and,
obviously, he is under a little bit of a
di sadvant age here because he is not at his
office and doesn't have access to the files, but
he testified to the best of his know edge,
information and belief that it is a true and

accurate copy of the docunents that he both
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Secondly, the issue is whether or not
t he Agency ever accepts non third-party cost
estimates for the treatnment of |eachate. That's

what they've said in this case
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The i ssue on the financial
instruction -- of financial assurance, which is
worth $10 nmillion in this case, very
substantial, is that we never accept third-party

costs, non third-party costs. That is what
Joyce Miunie testified to. Wen |I questioned her
about the CW.P application, she said | don't
know. It is a crucial exanmi nation of the
Agency's consi stent application of what they say
is a clear regulation. She said | don't even
need | egal counsel's help on this. | know this
is the fact. And here is a situation where she
signed a permt where -- or soneone, | didn't
even | ook at the signature, soneone signed a
permt where the difference is apparent.

And finally, the fact that the Agency
didn't see this docunent, they wote -- they

accepted the docunent. They wote the pernit,
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timely subpoena. | know that you nade your
ruling with respect to that. | got it through
ot her means when they said we don't have tinme to
get it. They didn't say it wasn't a proper or

rel evant request, they just said we don't have
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time. It is too burdensone. So | did ny best
t hrough the resources | have to get the
docurment. | think the document is relevant. |
think it is inmportant to show t he inconsistency.
| think that we've laid a proper foundation for
it and I think that not only should these
docunents be adnmitted but your prior ruling on
the notion to strike M. MDernont's testinmony
regardi ng the CWLP shoul d be reconsi dered and
reversed.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN: M. Ki n?

MR KIM The only conrent | have to
his characterization of Ms. Minie's testinony, |
think every Agency witness that has addressed
the issue of $10 million associated with the
POTWpolicy in this case has been consistent in

that we did not receive a request to revise or
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that in this case we're being inconsistent, we
have not made any decision in this permt appea
or in these pernmt appeals relating to the
qguestion of whether or not $10 nmillion that has
been described is or is not a proper third-party

cost. As a natter of fact, we went to pains
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trying to stress that we didn't have anyt hi ng
before us, we can't testify and we can't make
any kind of speculative judgment calls on
requests, we don't have the course, specifically
| ooki ng at what Ms. Munie said. M. LaRose
asked her, what if we gave you this, if we gave
you this, would you be able to approve it, and
bel i eve you uphel d an objection to that question
on the basis that we don't have that docunent,
that we don't have that request before us and we
can't make a decision until we see something in
front of us. W weren't presented with it here
There is no reason for this to cone in, if that
is what this is being offered of as in support
of .

HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLCRAN: MWy
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described, | agree with him

MR. LAROSE: Can | just say one nore
t hi ng?

HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN:  Yes.

MR. LAROSE: She said two things. She
said | can't speculate on what | would do now,

but when | had the issue before me, | did this
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because it wasn't a third-party cost.

Ckay. What you're doi ng and what he
is asking you to do basically is nake a ruling
that sunmmary judgment should be granted in this
case because you're saying that the evidence
that she had the material before her in the
prior permt application isn't before you in
this case. That is not a ruling for you to
make. That is a ruling for the board to make
based on summary judgnent. |If the board doesn't
grant summary judgnent, they're certainly going
to exam ne the testinony where she said | denied
this because it wasn't a third-party cost. That
was her testinony when the i ssue was before her

When | tried to get her to tal k about what woul d
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happen, you did sustain that objection. And
can live with that, but the issue before this
board if it is going to be decided and right now
we nust assume that it is, it's going to be
decided as is this a third-party cost or not and
this is gernane to that issue.

MR KIM Again, as a point of
clarification, Ms. Munie's testinmony on the acts

she took to deny the request for the cost

L. A, REPORTI NG 312-419-9292

765
estinate was related to permt denials issued in
Sept ember of '99, subsequent appeals were filed.
Those appeal s have been disnissed with
prejudice. That's what she was testifying to.
M. LaRose asked her what did you do in
Sept enber 1999, she answered that. Those were
t he subject of appeals that are now di sm ssed
and then he tried to ask her, specul ative
matter, about what woul d have happened here,
you, we believe properly, did not allow to ask
t hat question because she testified that she
does not -- she did not believe she had a
request order. M objection was based on his

characterization that she testified as to why
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she took certain actions in that case, she
clearly testified she did not take any action in
this case because she was not asked to.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN. M. LaRose,
| disagree with your characterization that if |
rul e against you, it's in essence a dispositive
notion, and that is within the board's powers.
| disagree with that.

I will sustain the Agency's objection.

Not admitting Exhibit HHH and | stand on ny
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prior ruling striking the testinony by M.
McDer nont regarding --

MR. LAROCSE: OWP.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN:  Thank you
very much.

-- CWLP. And if you would so note
for the record this would be an offer of
proof --

MR. LAROSE: Not only the exhibit but
t he testinony.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN: The exhi bit
will be taken as an offer of proof and as the

testi mony.
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MR. LAROCSE: The prior testinony and

his testinmony with respect to the exhibit.

correct.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN:  That's

MR. LAROSE: Thank you

HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN:  Thank you.
MR. LAROCSE: | have nothing further
MR. KIM Nothing further.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN:  Thank you,

M. MDernont, you can step down again.

t hen, M.

Petiti oner

Chri stine

cal l ed as

Does that conclude your case in chief
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LaRose?
MR LARCSE: Yes, sir, it does.
rest its case in chief.
HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN:  Thank you.
MR. KIM The Respondent would cal
Roque to the stand.
(Wtness duly sworn.)
CHRI STI NE ROQUE,

a witness herein, having been first

duly sworn, was exam ned and testified as

fol |l ows:

DI RECT EXAM NATI ON
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BY MR KI'M
Q Coul d you state your nane for the
record, please?
A My nane is Christine Roque.
Q And you have al ready been called to
testify in this case, is that correct?
A That's correct.
MR KIM [If I can take just a noment,
M. Hearing Oficer, to mark some exhibits.
HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN:  Yes.
BY MR KI'M

Q Ms. Roque, |'mgoing to show you what
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has been marked as Exhibit I11.
Could you tell ne what that documnent
is, please?
A It's an environnmental inpact

statenent, Rehabilitation of Wastewater

Facilities, Streeter, Illinois.
Q Have you seen that docunent before?
A Yes, | have.
Q When did you first see this docunent?
A | cannot renmenber the exact date, but

during the review of the -- during the review of
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the May 2000 application.

Q And you' ve been present during nost of
the testinony in this hearing, is that correct?

A Yes.

Q And have you heard different witnesses
make references to statements or information
included within this -- what 1'mgoing to cal
the Streeter EIS?

A Yes.

Q And do you know how t his docunment was
provided to Comunity Landfill and the City of
Morris in the present appeal s?

A. No, fromthe --
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Q If I were to say to you this was

turned over in response to a discovery request,
does that sound right?

MR. LAROSE: So stipul at ed.

THE WTNESS: That's correct.

MR KIM | would nove that Streeter
EI'S be admitted into evidence.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN: M. LaRose?

MR. LAROSE: Object. There is

absol utely no foundation for any of this
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docunent to be adnitted. There has been no
di scussi on by anybody of the content of this
docunent. Ms. Roque definitely and clearly
testified that she did not know the geol ogy of
the Morris site. There has been no foundation
that anything in this report relates to Mrris.
The second reason is, nore of a
procedural one other than a substantive one, it
is just patently unfair for this document -- for
the EPA to be allowed to review this docunent,
not tell us about it until after the fact and
have ny w tnesses be -- testinony be stricken
when they criticize this docunent yet let the

EPA put it in.
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| put in one page of this docunent so
that we can criticize those findings. There is
absol utely no foundation for the rest of this
docunent .

HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN. M. Ki n?

MR KIM Well, M. LaRose just took
part of my response. He did offer and it was
admtted into evidence one page fromthis

particul ar docunent. | don't think you got



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

foundation issues, if we've already included
part of the docunment. |I'mjust sinply actually
trying to, |I think, provide the board with a
better picture and provide the docunment in
total. As to his argunents concerning the
manner in which this document was provided,
agai n, what was stricken were opinions that were
fornmed after our permt decision based upon the
review of this docunment. It doesn't matter if
it was in the review of this docunent or any

ot her document. \at was stricken were opinions
that were formed by the witness after the pernit
decision. And it just so happened that they
were this docunment but it could have been other

things, too. For exanple, the extrapol ation
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tabl es. The docunent itself has been testified
to and has been offered up in response to
di scovery request seeking information that was
consulted or reviewed by the IEPA in making a
decision. That is what it is being offered for
That is what it is being -- that is howit is
being referred to in the testinmony.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN:  You said it
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was exchanged during di scovery?

MR KIM That is correct.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN: M.
LaRose?

MR. LAROSE: And that's just the
point. The first tine we saw it was during
di scovery. W couldn't have had an opportunity
to reviewthis prior to it being provided to us
because we had no idea that the Agency was
relying on it until that tine.

Secondly, the foundational issue is
sound. A one page argunment isn't an argunent at
al |l because there was no foundational argumrent.
It was offered by me and adnitted without
obj ection. That doesn't lay a foundation, there

is probably 200 pages in that report, for the
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ot her 199 pages of the report. | think M.
Roque testified, and | think if you asked her
again, she would honestly testify she hasn't
even read the whole thing. How can there
possi bly be a foundation for a docunment you
didn't read?

HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN: M. Kin?
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MR KIM Well, in response, his
argunents are no different than i f we had
i ncluded, again, as | stated earlier during the
hearing, to the extent that we erred, we
probably shoul d have included this in the
admini strative record, but the fact is we
provided this in response to a di scovery request
seeking any information that we did rely upon
that was found outside of the record. They
conplied with that. If we included the Streeter
ElI S or any administrative record, he stil
couldn't have had people testify about opinions
that they have formed after the fact, even if it
was in the record, even if he was able to cal
expert wi tnesses or witnesses that would cone up
and say, yes, | reviewed that and | didn't

receive it until after August of 2000, but I
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have an opini on about this and here is ny
opi nion. Just like no one can provide testinony
relating to any matter that is in the record,
whi ch was forned after the fact. That was the
basis of the objection at the tinme that those --

that testinony was offered and that was the
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reason to ny understanding why it was stricken,
not because it was this document, it was because
information -- it was opinions or concl usions
that were reached after the permit decision. As
to this docunment itself, if you want ne to lay a
l[ittle bit nore foundation, | can do that.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN: That's what
| am concerned about.

MR KIM Fine. | can do that if
you'd |ike. Again, the docunent was properly
provi ded during the course of discovery. And if
it was a foundation issue, | can |ay sone nore
foundation. As to the other points | don't
think there is any reason to object to the
infiltrate of the docunent.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN:  You better
attenpt to lay a little nmore foundation, | would

appreciate it.
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MR. KIM Thank you.
BY MR- KIM
Q Ms. Roque, | believe | asked you when

you first saw this docunent.

A It's during the review of the, |
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Q

o > O >

of this d
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nmenti oned
A

document

were doin

Communi ty

what they
Q

revi ew of

2000 application.

Ckay.

For Parcel A

For Conmmunity Landfill ?

For Conmunity Landfill.

And how did you learn of the existence
ocunent ?

It was referred to me by Ms. Thonpson.
That woul d be Gamenyt h Thonmpson?

Gnenyt h Thonpson.

GWE-NY-T-H

VWhat did Gaenyth say to you when she
this docunent ?

She had nmentioned that -- to read this
because it has the sane -- what they
g or what they proposed to do in Mrris
Landfill is the sane as or sinmlar to
did on Streeter.

Okay. And did you conduct a thorough
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the Streeter EIS as to the geol ogic

condi tions that were described in the ElI S?

A

Q

No, | did not.

Did you use that docunent for any
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purposes relating to trying to ascertain what
t he geol ogic conditions were at Streeter?

A No, | did not.

Q What did you use that document for?

| read this docunent just to see what

the effect of dewatering mine voids, effect of
potential subsidence and coll apse due to
dewat eri ng.

Q Did you find any general statenent in

this EIS that were hel pful to you?

A Yes, | did.
Q Ckay. Just to -- unless M. LaRose
objects, I'd like to direct your attention to a

certain portion of the exhibit just to sort of
speed thi ngs up.

MR. LAROSE: | really think it's part
of the foundation, if he directs her
attention --

MR KIM | can have her look it up

That's fine.
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BY MR KI M
Q Woul d you please turn to the portion

or portions of the EIS that you felt or that you
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reviewed and you relied upon?
A | focused on Appendix B, which is
eval uation of the potential for ground surface

subsi dence.

Q Ckay.

A Page B- 36.

Q And, again, just to be clear, did you
not --

A B-37, the concl usion

Q Ckay. B-36 and B-37?

A That's correct.

Q Thank you

Just to be clear, you did not review

this docunent in the course of any -- your

revi ew of any stated geol ogic conditions of the
City of Mrris?

A No.

Q O in the area geologic conditions at
Conmmunity Landfill?

A No.

MR KIM Again, | would nove that
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Exhibit Il be admtted.

MR LARGCSE: I'd like to voir dire the
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wi tness on this point.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLCRAN:  You may.

MR. LAROSE: WMa'am did you read the
entire report?

THE WTNESS: No, | did not read the
entire report.

MR. LAROSE: And you testified on
direct exam nation by M. Kimthat you didn't do
a thorough review of this report with respect to
even the Streeter geol ogy?

THE WTNESS: Correct.

MR. LAROSE: You didn't do a thorough
review of this report with respect to the
geol ogi c conditions at Morris?

THE WTNESS: That's correct.

MR. LAROSE: At any time during the
permt review process, either in the 1996
application or the 2000 application, did you
advi se anybody from CLC, the City of Mirris or
Andrews Environnental Engineering, that you were
reviewi ng this docunment in analysis of their

stability study?
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THE W TNESS: No.
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MR. LAROSE: Sanme objection. She has

not -- first of all, she hasn't read the whole
docunent .

Second of all, she hasn't read it
thoroughly with respect to the -- even the

Streeter geology, which is the subject matter of
this report.

Third of all, she certainly didn't
read it with respect to the Mrris geol ogy,
which is the subject natter of this hearing.
She testified earlier that she has no idea what
the geology is at any site.

This report is entirely irrelevant to
thi s proceedi ng.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN: M. Ki n?

MR KIM | think M. LaRose is
i ncorrect on a nunber of points.

First of all, she stated she didn't
revi ew the geol ogy here because she stated she
used this document for other conclusions that
were provided. She stated that she didn't
really review it for the geologic conditions of

Morris. And, again, that was just to nake sure
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that -- that is not the purpose that this
docurment was used for. She stated that within
t he appendi x she describes there were statenents
that she felt were -- that provided her guidance
in review of the permt application

HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN: Permit
application for the City of Mrris, Community
Landfill?

MR KIM Yes, that's what her
testi nony was.

So, it's a docunent. | mean, | guess
I'"mnot sure how this doesn't fall squarely
within into sonething which the board woul d want
to consider, it is a docunent that has been
admtted to by the Illinois EPA as having been
relied upon in -- through the course of making
its permt decision that is at issue in this
case. W've tried to define the scope of how
this docunent was or was not used. W tried to
identify the specific pages of the docunent that
Ms. Roque focused on and we provided the
docunent to Community Landfill and to the city
t hrough the course of the discovery proceedings.

| guess | just don't see why there would be sone

L. A, REPORTI NG 312-419-9292
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reason the board would not want this admtted as
an exhibit.

MR. LARCSE: The foundationa
rel evance objection stands. The other thing
just can't help but remnd you about is the
patent unfairness of this whole thing. Think
about what a ruling like this, if sustained by
the board, neans. It neans that the Agency can
make permt decisions. During the course of
those pernit decisions, consult documents that
they don't tell the permt person about, pul
t hose docunents out of their hat during the
permit review period, rely on them and then the
Petitioner or the pernittee experts can't even
rebut that, which has been your ruling on this
case. M guys couldn't testify about the report
because they didn't read it until afterwards.
Vell, we didn't know about it until afterwards.
We didn't know about the fact that they revi ewed
it. It is just absolutely unfair. This would
never happen in a crinmnal case. This would
never happen in a civil case. And it shouldn't
happen in a board case. |If there is sonething

that an expert relied upon, your expert should

L. A REPORTI NG, 312-419-9292
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be able to criticize that report. |If nmy expert
were able to criticize that report, we wouldn't
be having this discussion right now. The report
would go in. Because | think it's good to show
that it doesn't apply, but I wasn't able to
testify that it doesn't apply, not nme, ny guys
weren't able to testify. So if it cones in now,
they get the benefit of the one side of it and
get nothing on the other side. So there is
foundati onal, rel evance probl ens because she
didn't read the whole thing and it really
doesn't apply to our side because she hasn't
proven it applies to our side. Didn't |ook at
the geology in Streeter, didn't |ook at the
geology in Morris.

But the second point is it's just
unfair given your ruling striking M. Silver's
testinmony that he couldn't testify about it.

MR KIM [I'Il try to make nmy conments
brief.

This is not a civil case that is
guided by the circuit court. This is not a
crimnal case. This is a case that is decided

and shoul d be handl ed by the board and their

L. A, REPORTI NG 312-419-9292
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procedural rules and otherw se applicable rules.
Under those rules this docunent should come in.
M. LaRose is stating he is without conplete
recourse to chall enge our use of this docunent.
That is conpletely fal se because he has and ny
wi tnesses will be nore than happy to attest to
this, he has severely questioned themas to how
they did or did not use that document. He has
called into question their use of that docunent,
which is entirely his right to do so. He has
called into question whether or not the document
that has been used, which is entirely his right
to do so. He is not without recourse. He has
done that. But, again, his argument fails
because this is no different than if the
Il1linois EPA had a pernmit review that through
the course of reviewing the pernit application
used a gui dance docunent or used course
materials for sem nars or sonething |ike that.
The pernmit applicant may not know about that.

W don't have to provide themw th every piece
of information we're using up until the tinme of
the pernmit decision. W do after the decision

is tell himwhat we reviewed at that tinme, have
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to disclose, which we did in this case, all of
t he docunents which were relied upon. They
provi ded expert testinmony -- well, first -- and
the other thing, too, there were no expert
Wi t nesses, quote, unquote, used in this case, we
only had opinion witnesses, but as far as that
is neither here nor there, because this can't in
any way provide testinony on opinions forned
after the pernmit decision, no. | think the
board's case law is very clear on that point.
Can M. LaRose question the Illinois EPA reviews
of any document, including the pernmit record or
any docunent that we have testified to that we
relied upon in our decision, yes. Has he done
so, yes, he has, with several different
Wi t nesses.

So, again, | think this is nothing
that shoul d i mpede this docunent being

i ntroduced i nto evidence.

MR. LARCSE: |'ve said enough
HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN: |'m goi ng
to overrule your objection. | find sufficient

foundation and | do find that rel evant and

di stingui shable fromnmy ruling on M. Silver
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MR. LARCSE: Thank you.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN:  Thank you.
BY MR KI'M

Q That's all | have on that docunent.
You can set that aside.

I'd like to ask you a question about
your job duties and the scope of your job duties
as a permt reviewer. | believe it has been
brought out in testinony that is your position

of enploynent with the | EPA?

A That's correct.
Q When you receive an application, such
as you did for Conmmunity Landfill, and by that

I"'mreferring to a significant nod application
for a solid waste landfill, do you review all
aspects of that permt application?

A No, | don't.

Q What aspects or what portions of that
permit application do you not review?

A I do not review specifically the
groundwat er nonitoring section, which deals with
the revi ew of the geol ogy and hydrogeol ogy of

the facility and the groundwater nonitoring
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Q Who does review that informtion?

Qur groundwat er assistance unit of the
permt section.

Q Ckay. So with the exception of those
subj ect areas you just described, do you review
everything else in the application?

A Yes, | do.

Q The next question | have is relating
to testinony that has been provided
concerning -- can you please find Exhibit S --
I"msorry, R which | believe is the permt for
Parcel A, and would you please turn to page 5 of
that permt?

MR KIM Do you need a copy? | think

| have one.
MR. LAROSE: | got it. Thanks.
BY MR- KIM
Q Are you famliar with that, and |I'm

referring to specifically condition Roman

nunberal 11, subsection |, do you see that on
t hat page?
A Yes, | do.
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to the pernmit that was issued to CLC?
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A No, it is not.

Q What other facilities receive this
condition in this formin their permts?

A Just all sig nod pernmits that we issue
have this condition

Q So as to those type of facilities is
this a special condition or a standard
condi tion?

A It's a standard condition

Q I"mgoing to try and speed ny
testinmony along, and if M. LaRose has an
objection, I'Il back it up, just to sort of nove

t hi ngs al ong.
MR. LAROSE: Prelimnary |eading

guestions are fine.
BY MR KI'M

Q You're familiar with the pernit
application for Parcel A are you not?

A Yes, | am

Q And in that permt application is

there a section which describes or which
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activities at that parcel?

A. Yes, there is a section
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Q And does that section include any
di scussion that -- what has been testified to
previously relating to separation layers and
invert elevations?

A Yes, there is.

Q Does the pernit that is found at
Exhi bit R approve the proposals that are
i ncluded in that construction portion of the
permt application?

A Yes, it did.

Q Gven that, is it your opinion that
construction of the separation layer, if done in

accordance with the construction plan and the

Parcel A pernmit application, would result in the
landfill depositing refuse in an unpermtted
portion of CLC?
MR. LAROSE: bjection, |eading.
HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN: M. Kim

rephrase, please

BY MR KI M



21

22

23

24

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

Sur e

I f Community Landfill conducts

activities in accordance with construction plan

that was approved, will they be creating a
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separation layer as part of their activity?

A

Yes.

The construction plan proposed

i ncluded a separation |ayer between the old

wast e and t he new wast e.

Q

And do you expect themto construct

the construction in accordance with their

approved pl an?

A

Q

you, which |

of the landfill?

Yes.

Do you have Exhibit DDD in front of

believe is sort of a cross section

If not, 1've got a copy.

I've shown you what is marked as

Exhi bi t DDD.

docunent ?

A

Q

Yes,

kay.

Are you famliar with that

I am

And does that docunent indicate

to you where the separation |layers would be

constructed at

A

Yes.

Par cel

A of Community Landfill?



20

21

22

23

24

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

Q And can you describe where that is
on -- where that is depicted on this exhibit?

A Describe it? |It's about in the mddle
of the exhibit.

MR. LARGCSE: | can't see. Can | cone
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over there?
I've got a bigger one of this.
BY MR KI'M
Q Here. Let nme bring this to you.
MR. LAROSE: |I'mgoing to step around

there, if you don't mind
BY MR KI'M

Q Yes. Using this document or using
this exhibit, can you describe, and if you can
you can nmake reference to the notations or the
wording that is on the exhibit, can you describe
where the separation |ayer -- what your
under st andi ng of where the separation |ayer

woul d be constructed?

A The separation |ayer would be
constructed about -- or on top of the existing
wast e.

Q kay. So -- and I'mjust sort of --
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graphically when I |ook at this document, it's
sort of -- there are two lines that form two
solid lines that formthe bottom boundary of
that schematic, is that right?

A This is two |ines?

Q Yes. | believe one is identified
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as --

A This is the 3 feet reconpacted
separation | ayer.

Q Right. And those two lines constitute
t he bounds of the |ayer?

A The 2 feet, right.

Q Does this docunent to you denonstrate
what the permitted boundary is of the landfill?

A That's correct.

Q Where is the permtted boundary
di spl ayed on this exhibit?

A The pernmitted boundary, the height,
t he maxi mum hei ght pernitted boundary will be at
this elevation, around 570.

Q Okay. Looking at those -- and is that
above the -- where you just described the

separation |ayer would be?
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A That's correct.

Q kay. So are activities concerning
construction of the separation |layer in the
permitted boundary of the landfill, if done in
accordance with the construction plan?

A Yes.

MR. KIM Nothing further
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MR. LAROCSE: Not hi ng.
HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN:  Not hi ng,
M. LaRose? You nmay step down. Thank you very
nmuch.
(OFf the record.)
HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN: |' 11
attenpt to explain Andrew Linmer's testinmony,
t he evidence deposition, and if I'mincorrect,
pl ease correct ne.
Anyways, we're back on the record,
approxi mately 4:05. The parties have agreed
to -- we're going to read the evidence
deposition of Andrew Linmmer, | believe, into the
record, but how we're going to do that we're not
going to read it in, but the court reporter is

going to receive a disk fromthe court reporter
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that took the deposition, | understand she'l
receive it by Mnday, January 22, and the
respective parties have al so given the court
reporter in this matter the changes that M.

Li mer made on the deposition and al so the page
nunbers and lines that they would Iike to be
transcribed in this transcript. Does that

pretty nmuch sum - -
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MR LARCSE: | believe it does.
MR KIM Yes, sir.
(I'nsert testinony.)
STI PULATI ONIt is

sti pul ated and agreed, by and between the
parties hereto, through their attorneys, that
t he deposition of Andrew Linmer nay be taken
before Julie A Brown, a Notary Public and
Certified Shorthand Reporter, upon ora
interrogatories, on the 18th of Decenber A D.,
2000, at the instance of the Respondent at the
hour of 10:00 o'clock A.M, 2009 Mall Street,
Col linsville, Mdison County, Illinois;

That the oral interrogatories and the
answers of the witness may be taken down in
short hand by the Reporter and afterwards
transcri bed;

That all requirenments of the Civi
Practice Act and the Rules of the Suprenme Court
as to dedimus, are expressly waived;

That any objections as to conpetency,
materiality or relevancy are hereby reserved,
but any objection as to the form of question is
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wai ved unl ess specifically noted;

That the deposition, or any parts
t her eof
may be used for any purpose for which
depositions are conmpetent, by any of the parties
hereto, w thout foundation proof;

That any party hereto nay be furnished
copies of the deposition at his or her own
expense.

(Wher eupon the Deponent was
sworn by the Notary Public.)

ANDREWLI MMER
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havi ng been first duly sworn by the Notary
Public, deposeth and saith as follows:

DI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY MR KI'M
Q This deposition today is being taken

in the case of Comunity Landfill Conpany and
City of Morris versus Illinois EPA, PCB Nunbers
01-48 and PCBO1-49.

We are here today via tel ephone to
t ake the deposition of Andrew Linmer.

And M. Limer, if you don't -- would

you prefer to be called M. Limer or Andy or
Andr ew?

A Andy's fine.
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Q My nane is John Kim K-I1-M | ama
Speci al Assistant Attorney Ceneral and Assistant
Counsel with the Illinois EPA. Also present via
t el ephone is Mark LaRose.

Mar k, you can introduce yourself, if
you'd |ike.

MR. LAROSE: Yeah. | amthe attorney
for one of the Petitioners, Conmunity Landfil
Conpany.

MR KIM And Mark's |ast nanme, just
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in case you don't have anything down there, is
spelled capital L-A, capital RO S-E

MR, LARCSE: Julie, for the record, |et
me give you the nane of nmy firm ny address,
phone nunber and fax nunber so you know how to
get ahold of ne.

The nane of nmy firmis LaRose and
Bosco. B-O-S-CQO Qur address is 734 North
Wells, WE-L-L-S, Chicago 60610. Phone number,
(312) 642-4414. Fax nunber 642-0434.

Can everybody hear me okay?

THE W TNESS: Yeah.

BY MR KIM
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Q Andy, this deposition is being taken
regardi ng the pending permt appeals that |
referenced. It concerns specifically the
preparati on of some pernit applications that
were subnitted by Comunity Landfill and the
City of Morris through their retained
envi ronnent al consul tant, Andrews Engi neeri ng.
And if during the course of this deposition you
have any questions concerning what's bei ng asked
of you or if you're not sure of what's being

asked of you, please just let either nyself or
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M. LaRose know what your question is. W want
to make sure that you understand what you're

bei ng asked before you answer.

A Ckay.

Q WIl you state your nane for the
record?

A Andrew Linmrer. L-I-MME-R

Q What is your current address?

A Home address, 401 Copper Bend Road,
Maryville, Illinois 62062.

Q And who are you presently enpl oyed by?

A Geot echnol ogy, Inc.
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Q What is their address?

A 850 Vandalia Street, Suite 230,
Collinsville, Illinois 62234.
Q How | ong have you been enpl oyed by

Geot echnol ogy?

A Since the beginning of July, alittle
over, | guess close to six months, not quite.

Q July of 1999?

A No, July of 2000.

Q I"'msorry. Prior to your enploynent

wi th Geot echnol ogy, who were you enpl oyed by?

A STS Consul tants.
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Q And what period of time were you
enpl oyed by STS Consul tants?

A July of '98 to, or sorry, June of '99
to June of 2000.

Q And where is STS Consultants | ocated?

A The branch office | was enployed by is
in Springfield.

Q You don't happen to renenber the
address off the top of your head, do you?

A | have a card here. 1'll read it off.

Q Ckay.
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A Because | really don't renenber it off
the top of ny head. 413 West Monroe Street,
Suite A, 62704. That's STS Consul tants,

Li m t ed.

Q Prior to your enployment with STS
Consul tants, who were you enpl oyed by?

A Then | was enpl oyed with Andrews
Envi ronment al Engi neeri ng.

Q What were the periods of enployment
with Andrews?

A March 1995 t hrough June of 1999.

Q During your time of enploynent with

Andrews Environnental, what was your job title
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or what different job titles did you have?
A Hydrogeol ogi st 1 up through 3, | think
was the |ast scale.
Q And what are the distinctions between

those different scales, as far as how Andrews
classifies their enpl oyees?

A Basically nore of an entry |level type
hydr ogeol ogi st. Sonmebody wi th experience in
hydr ogeol ogy or been trained in hydrogeol ogy but

not much work experience would be the
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hydr ogeol ogi st 1 and then additional work
experi ence on the other classifications.

Q To the best of your recollection, what
were the periods of time of your enploynent with
Andrews that you held the position of
hydr ogeol ogi st 1, 2 and 3?

A Oh, best recollection for
hydr ogeol ogi st 1 would be from'95 through md
'96; 2, mid '96 through '97, perhaps; and then 3

woul d be ' 98, 1998.

Q Ckay.
A Sormetime. |'mnot real sure on those
classifications. Internally they neant

somet hi ng, but.
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Q Okay. During the tine -- let's back
up a little bit.
VWhat is your educational background?
A Bachel or in geology fromSt. Louis
University and then a master's degree focusing
on hydrogeol ogy from Carbondal e, Sl U Carbondal e.
Q What years did you get your degrees?
A Bachel or's degree, received that in

1989 and then the nmaster’'s was 1996.
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Q During your period of enploynent with
Andrews Environmental, did you have periods of

time where you were working on any issues or any

matters relating to Community Landfill | ocated
in Mrris, Illinois?
A Yeah, | guess I'll answer it, the

initial part where | started working on
Community Landfill was June of 1996, | believe.
Q What did -- what work did you do in
June of '967?
A Preparation of the significant
nodi fication application
Q What portions of the -- of that permt
application did you work on?

A The groundwat er inpact assessnent, the
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nodel for that inpact assessnent.

Q And who el se did you work with at that
time on that portion of the application?

A Brad Ri chards was the geol ogi st
wor ki ng on the report of geol ogy and
hydr ogeol ogy. M ke MDernont was the project
manager in charge. Vince Madonia was worKking

on, | believe it was the Parcel B application
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and Ed Leigh, L-E-1-GH was working on the

Parcel A application, | think. |'mnot real
sure about Vince and Ed. | night have those
backwar ds.

Q Fol  owi ng the work that you did in

June of 1996, that led up to a permt
application being prepared and subnitted by
Andrews for Conmunity Landfill?

A That's correct.

Q Did you -- do you recall the date of
that application submttal ?

A August of '96 sonetine.

Q Fol | owi ng that application subnmittal
did you work on any other matters relating to
Conmmunity Landfill?

A Yes. The Agency had sone issues
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regardi ng that application, worked on all those,
draft denials that cane on, cane after that
application.

Q And do you know roughly the periods of
time that you have worked on the responses to
the draft denials?

A. The initial one | think was in the
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winter of '96, '97, not sure about ones after
that. There were quite a few. The last things
| recall working on were -- the last thing
actually was probably May of '98, | believe, and
then, of course, field work to prepare that
application in December. |Is that right? |'m
not sure | have these dates right.
Q | under st and.

MR. LAROSE: And you shouldn't guess,
M. Linmrer. Just to the best of your ability,
pl ease.

THE WTNESS: Ckay. I|I'mtrying to
rememnber .

Actual ly, that last application, |
think, was in May of '99. The field work for it
was Decenber '98 and January '99. Before that,

| don't really recall.
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BY MR KI'M
Q kay. Did the work that you did
response -- in responding to the Illinois EPA' s

draft denials result in any further subnmittals
by Andrews on behalf of Conmunity Landfill?

A Yes. Each response to the draft
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deni al seenmed to generate nore conments
regardi ng the application.
Q So there was a sort of continuous
gi ve- and-t ake between your conpany and the EPA?
A That's correct.
Q VWhat was the -- okay. So | think that
what you've just described takes us up through

approxi nately May of 19987

A Yeah, | think that is -- | think
that's right. [|'mnot sure.
Q | understand. What --
MR. LAROSE: Excuse me. | thought he

said May of '99.

THE WTNESS: Yeah, I'mreally trying
hard to remenber, Mark.

MR. LAROSE: So then ny clarification
is not really an objection. | don't think that

your question fairly characterized his
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testimony. | don't think he really renenbers,
so as far as he states, | just want the record
to be clear, that he's saying | don't renenber,
but it mght be this.

THE W TNESS: That's correct.
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MR. LAROSE: Ckay.

THE WTNESS: |'m sure soneone has a
time |ine sonewhere.
BY MR KI'M

Q And that's ny nistake if | said May
‘98 instead of '99.

Up until the tine then that you left
Andrews, was your work on the natters related to
Community Landfill limted to specifically
groundwat er i npact assessnent and nodel i ng?

A That's correct.

Q And did your -- the results of your
wor k, were those eventually menorialized in the
formal applications that were submitted to the
Il1linois EPA? And when | say applications, |
al so i nclude any kind of anmendnents or anything
that woul d have been characterized by Andrews
Envi ronmental as being an anmendnment to the

original application.
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A Yeah. Yes, ny work was subnitted in
report forns included in the reports, anendnents
and things like that to the sig nod application

Q Are you aware of punp testing that
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took place at Community Landfill in early 1999?

A Did you say punp testing?
Q Yes.
A kay. Yeah. That was the one | was

trying to remenber, so it was Decenber '98 is
when the original -- or when we started drilling
and installing these wells and then through
early '99 is when the punp testing began

Q Again, to the best of your
recol l ection, do you recall when the punp

testing concl uded?

A To the best of my recollection, Apri
of '99.

Q And when that punp testing
concluded -- let ne step back.

Were you involved then with different
aspects or with any aspects of the drilling and
of the punp testing itself?

A The drilling, installing the wells,

doi ng sone fairly quick and qualitative tests of
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just adding water to the wells to see which one
woul d take water the fastest conpared to the

other ones we drilled to try and deterni ne which
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wel | woul d be the best to punmp out of and then
the punp test, M ke MDernont was running that,
but he gave ne the data to anal yze when t hat
test was finished and | anal yzed the data and

submitted that in report form

Q Who did you submit that in report form
to?

A To the 1EPA. 1'msorry.

Q Do you know i f that information was,

again, nenorialized and put into a fornal permt
application that was submitted in May of 20007

A That | don't know. That was beyond ny
enpl oynment tine.

Q kay.

A I knowin -- | think May of 1999, I'm
not sure, but | think that's when the report of
the punp test was submtted.

Q The -- well, you did do the -- sone
anal ysis of the punp test results follow ng the
concl usion of those, of that testing in April

'99 before you left enploynent with Andrews?
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A. That's correct.

Q And can you describe in detail exactly
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what type of analysis work you did?

A There were a | ot of data points,
readi ngs of depth of water and tine and date,
converted all those into tinme since punping
started to get a drawdown curve and then used, |
bel i eve, two separate nethods eval uating the
data, Theis 1935, drawdown, and Hantush. [|'m
not sure of the year of his publication, but
basi cally analyzed them follow ng their methods,
showi ng that the landfill could induce drawdown
and capture groundwater along the downgradi ent
side of the landfill.

Q Ckay. Andy, I'd like you to find that
i nformati on that was faxed by the EPA down to
the regi onal office.

A Ckay.

Q And the first page that I'mreferring
tois, and these Bates stanps, which are the
sort of hand stanps in the bottomright-hand
corner, are admttedly a little fuzzy.

A Uh- huh

Q But if you can flip through and find
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Bat es stanp page 264. It's 0264.
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A Ckay.
Q That's al so shown as page 10 of the
renmedi ati on plan
MR. LARCSE: John, night | nake a
suggesti on?
MR KIM Sure.
MR. LAROSE: Wy don't we nmark this
docunent G oup Exhibit A?
MR KIM | was going to do that.
MR. LAROSE: This way we can -- and
ot her suggestion -- can we go off the record?
(OFf the record.)
(Exhibit No. A was narked for
identification.)
BY MR KI'M
Q Andy, before we go any further, 1'd
like to describe what has been given to you a
what's been marked as Group Exhibit A
A kay.
Q That is a portion of the
adm nistrative record that was filed in this
case by the Illinois EPA. The portion that

t hese docunments are taken fromconme fromthe
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Parcel A, Volunme 6 book of the adnministrative
record and specifically these pages are taken
out of Attachnent 25 of that vol une.

MR. LAROSE: \Which is the May 2000
submittal.

MR KIM That's correct. Ckay.

BY MR KI'M

Q Andy, have you found Bates stanp page
2647?

A Yes, | have.

Q Can you take a nonent to | ook over
t hat page?

A Al'l right.

Q Actually, if you can take a nmoment to

| ook over that page and then the follow ng page

after that.
A Al right.
Q Wi le you're |ooking that over, let ne

al so state for the record that in G oup Exhibit
A, Bates stanp page 265, which is also page 11
of the renediation plan, is not included in this
exhibit and that is because that is an oversized
map, which | did not copy and send down.

MR. LAROCSE: So you want himto | ook

L. A, REPORTI NG 312-419-9292
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at page 264 and page 2667

MR KIM That's correct.

MR. LAROCSE: | got you.
BY MR KM
Q Whenever you're done skinm ng those,

Andy, just let us know
A Ckay.
Q So, Andy, you've had a chance to | ook
over those docunents in Group Exhibit A?
A That's correct.
Q Can you --
MR, LARCSE: Excuse ne. The
specific -- not all of them just 264 and 2667
MR KIM [I'msorry. Right.

THE WTNESS: Right.

BY MR KI'M

Q The page nunbers that | asked you to
| ook at.

A Ri ght.

Q Can you describe what information is

found on those pages, pages 264 and 2667
A A general description of the punp
test, observations during the punp test and then

how a long-termpunp rate, or using the data

L. A REPORTI NG, 312-419-9292
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fromthat punp test calculated out, a hydraulic
conductivity and storativity for the aquifer in
guestion and then using that data to predict
what the long-termpunp rate should be to
mai ntai n capture of the groundwater on the
downgr adi ent side of the landfill.

Q kay. And | didn't specifically
mention this page, but a few pages ahead, page
272, Bates stanp 272, could you take a quick

| ook at that page as well?

A Ckay.

Q Just let us know when you're done.

A Ckay.

Q You' ve had a chance to | ook at that
page as well, page 2727

A Yeah.

Q Coul d you describe the information

found on that page?

A That is the description for how the
punp rate to provide 7 feet of drawdown on the
east side of the site was cal cul ated, nentioning
that the punping should reach steady state at
sone point and away fromthe surface bodi es of

wat er -- the inpoundnents, should show a steady

L. A REPORTI NG, 312-419-9292
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state drawdown wi t hout supply from anot her body
of water near the inpoundnents. Those are water
supply to the aquifer.

Q Al right. These pages are part of a
permt application that was subnitted foll ow ng
your departure from Andrews Environnental .
However, in a -- on the begi nning page of this
particul ar attachment of the -- of this volune
of the permt application, it's represented that
basi ¢ concepts found in addenduns that have been
subm tted from 1998 through 1999 by Conmmunity
Landfill through their environnmental consultant,
Andrews Environnental, have not changed.

Does the information that you just
read on these pages, is that faniliar to you?

A Yes, it is.

Q Did you have any involvenent in the
preparation of the work that's done on these
pages?

A Yeah. This -- not exactly sure but
this looks |like work that | authorized.

Q Ckay. And this would have been
aut hored prior to your |eaving Andrews

Envi r onnent al ?
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A That's correct.

Q Was this work prepared then sonetine
between April of 1999 and June of '99 when you
left Andrews Environmental ?

A That's correct.

Q Did you work with any ot her enpl oyees
of Andrews when you prepared this information?

A M ke McDernont reviewed the report and
did editing before it was submitted, yes.

Q Did you work with any ot her outside

consul tants, people outside of Andrews

Environnmental, in preparing this work?

A In actual preparation of the report?
No.

Q In any other context, did you work

wi t h sonmebody outside of Andrews Environnental ?
A In establishing sone of the locations
for the punping wells and trying to deternmine if
that woul d be feasible, yes, an engineer by the
nane of Marion Skouby, S-K-O UB-Y
Q And when did you work with M. Skouby?
A Prior to the field work to do this
particul ar punp test and he was out there for

installation of one of the borings.
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Q So the -- that -- the work that you
just described prior to the installation, that
means it woul d have been sonetine prior to
Decenber of '98, so it would have been late
1998? Does that sound right?

A That's correct, and he was on site,
like | said, for one of the first ones, which
was Decenber of '98.

Q kay.

MR. LAROSE: Wen you say he was on
site, you nmean who?

THE W TNESS: Marion Skouby. Well,
M ke MDernont was also there for the first
boring, just to see howit was going to go.
BY MR KM

Q Did you have any ot her invol venment
with M. Skouby followi ng that tinme?

A No, not after that tinme.

Q To the best of your know edge, did
anyone other than M ke MDernont review the work
that you prepared?

A To the best of my know edge, no, not
really.

Q Who was -- do you know, and I'm
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probably going to nmispronounce this first nane,

Mahl on Hewitt?

A Yeah, al so known as Ron Hewitt.
Q kay. Who was M. Hewitt?
A Al so a hydrogeol ogi st enpl oyed by

Andrews Environmental Engineering. His
enpl oyment started in early 1999, | believe.

Q kay. And | will, for ease of
reference, refer to himas Ron Hewitt.

A Ckay.

Q Did Ron Hewitt have any invol venent
with the punp testing work that you were worKking
on?

A | don't believe so, no.

Q Did he have any work or did he have
any involverment in any of the cal cul ations or
eval uations that you perforned?

A | don't believe so, no.

Q And do you know i f he reviewed the
wor k that you prepared?

MR. LAROSE: (bjection to the form of
the question. Don't know that he would know

that after he left.
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MR. LAROSE: But you can answer.

BY MR KI'M

Q Well, as of the tinme that you left,
you know if M. Hewitt performed any review of
your worKk?

A No, | don't think he did.

Q Do you know what M. Hewitt's
i nvol venent was on the project since he was
anot her geol ogi st?

MR LARGCSE: Before he left or after

he left?
BY MR KI'M

Q I"msorry. During your tine of
enpl oynent .

A He wasn't involved with Mrris

Community, while | was there.

Q Ckay. Can you explain -- I'm
directing your attention now back to page 272,
Bat es stanp page 272.

A Uh- huh.

Q Can you explain, and | know, if you

can't do this because | know this is quite
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how you reached the conclusion that 7 feet of
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drawdown wi || provide capture in the underm ned
areas, what steps you took to reach that
concl usi on?

A Wt hout having thoroughly reviewed the

report, again, it's alittle hard.

MR. LAROCSE: Don't -- please, don't
guess. You can't do it --

THE WTNESS: No, | don't know how t he
7 feet was arrived at.

MR. LAROSE: -- without review ng the
addi tional information.

THE WTNESS: Right, without review ng

t he additional infornmation.

BY MR KI'M

Q Vell, et me seeif | -- if | can
rephrase it, if it makes it any easier. |It's
sort of in the abstract. |In other words, |

don't need to necessarily know the specific
cal cul ati ons, but can you describe, generally
speaki ng, the steps that you took to eventually

cone up with that particular conclusion? |'m
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nunbers, but is it possible for you to just

descri be what steps you took to eventually reach
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a concl usi on where you could, you felt you could
state what drawdown woul d provi de sufficient
capture?

A | believe so, yeah. Looking at page
272 and al so Bates stanp page 300 where the
assunptions are listed right at the top, it says
that capture will be provided at approxi mately
500 feet on the east side of the landfill and
I'"mnot sure how the 500 feet groundwater
el evation was arrived at, why that -- that one
is a valid nunber.

Q Bef ore you go on, since you're
referring to page 300, Bates stanmp page 300,
those are sone handwitten notes that are dated

May 1999 punp rate predictions. |s that

correct?
A That's correct.
Q Are those your cal cul ations or do you

know whose cal cul ations they are, if they're not

your s?
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A That' s mi ne.
Q And those cal cul ati ons conti nue
t hrough page, Bates stanp page 304. Are al

t hose cal cul ati ons your handwitten
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cal cul ati ons?

A Yes, they are.

Q I"'msorry. | didn't nean to interrupt
you. | just wanted to make sure we were clear
on that.

A That's okay, but basically to arrive

at that 7 feet of drawdown, it's using the Theis
calculation and it's basically back cal cul ating
a punp rate to maintain that 7 feet of drawdown
based on the hydraulic conductivity and the

storativity analysis of the punping data

gener at ed.
Q And you nentioned the Theis test?
A Right. Right, in the text, basically

it's steady state. The storativity and the
overlying and underlyi ng aquitards--

Q Are you referring to a specific page
or pages?

A Page 272.
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Q kay.

A Again, the storativity in the
aquitards effectively becone zero so then al
the assunptions fit the Theis calculation if you

punp on the aquifer |ong enough so the Theis
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nmethod is valid. On Bates stanmp page 300,
it's -- the calculation is using the Hantush
beta sol ution, which assunmes that there's
storativity in the aquifer and you're getting
sone water provided to the aquifer fromthe
aqui tards, which neans then that your drawdown
woul dn't be as great as it would as if you
didn't have any water com ng through those
aquitards, but if you punmp |ong enough, then the
aqui fer and aquitards respond, as if it's
conpletely confined, no water fromthe
aquitards. The only water you're getting is
fromthe aquifer so, therefore, the Theis method
beconmes valid and that's what's being shown at
t he bottom of page 300 and t hen page 301 going
t hrough the sane calculation with the Theis
nmet hod, showing that the result is the sane for

90 days of punping, | believe, is the tine |ine.
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Q kay. So the Theis nethod--

A Is a valid nethod, is what that's
trying to show.

Q kay. And that was your concl usion
and use of the Theis nethod as a valid nethod

also led you to be able to use or led you to use
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the Hantush method in the manner that you did,

is that correct?

A No, the other way around.
Q I'"msorry.
A Hantush tries to show that there's

going to be water coning fromoverlying and
underlying aquitards during a punp test, but in
his paper, he also says that if you punp |ong
enough, basically you're not -- you know, you're
not going to get that much water fromthe
overlying and underlying aquitards anynore once
you reach steady state and, therefore, the curve
then | ooks |ike the Theis punp test curve and
the Theis is a valid nethod.

Q kay. And, Andy, |I'mgoing to, on al
t hese questions, you're going to have to bear

with ne, | don't have a degree in engineering
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and this is why | went to | aw school because
don't understand any of this stuff. So if | ask
extrenmely repetitive or stupid questions, you
know, just bear with ne.

Now, it's ny understanding that there
are certain assunptions that have to be met or

certain conditions that sort of have to be
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est abl i shed before you can use the Theis test
and, specifically, let me ask you this. Are you
famliar with the general principles and the

general conditions in use of that particul ar

test?
A Yes, | am
Q Ckay. Is there a condition or an

assunption that has to be namde concerning the
Theis test concerning infinitely horizontal
extended conditions or an infinite horizonta
extent? You know what | nean when | refer to
t hat phrase?

A Yes, | do.

Q Can you expl ain what your
under st andi ng of that phrase is?

A That initially to solve the
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cal cul ation, w thout having added stress on the
aquifer, the aquifer should be infinite in
extent, however, that's hardly the case in any
natural environnent and it has been shown that
the Theis nethod does work for aquifers that are
not infinite in extent.

Q And, well, what kind of -- is there a

conprom se in any eval uation using the Theis
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test or in any conclusions that are drawn
dependi ng upon --

A Yes, there are, if you are very close.

MR, LARCSE: Hold on, hold on. You
didn't finish the question and | didn't
understand it, so I'mgoing to object to the
question. John, let's take it one step at a
ti me because as dunb as you think you are, |I'm
way, way, way dunber than both of you guys when
it cones to this. Let's take it easy, take it

one step at a tine.

BY MR KIM

Q kay. And let ne see if | can phrase
this the way I'mtrying to think of it. | would
assume that there are -- well, let nme take it
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You said that although that is a
condition that has to be or that is a part of
using the Theis test, you also stated, |
believe, that it's also been denonstrated that
if you don't have, you know, basically the
perfect type of aquifer that fits into that
condition, the Theis test is still an effective

and can still be effective in use, is that
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correct?
A That's correct.
Q Does it depend -- would the

ef fecti veness of the Theis test be contingent or
would it be -- what am| -- would the

ef fecti veness be conprom sed dependi ng upon j ust
how much of a conprom se you have on that
infinite horizontal extent? And what | nean by
that is, you know, |ike you say, there m ght not
be a perfect aquifer, but ny understanding is
that barriers will essentially negate or work
agai nst the whol e concept of an infinite

hori zontal extent. |Is that correct?

MR. LAROSE: |I'mgoing to object to
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t he whol e question, John. W can't have -- |
know this is a difficult, technical subject
area, we can't have conpound questions that have
your assunptions put in there. You' ve got to
break it down into sinple questions. That one
just won't do it.
MR KIM | thought that was sinple.
MR LARCSE: It wasn't because it
was -- | mean, if we can read back the question

you'll see how convoluted it was. |If you want
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to have Julie read it back, we can do that, but
if you want to just break it up into sinple
guestions that | can either agree with or object
to, but that one had a | ot of conponents,

i ncludi ng your own assunptions. W have no idea
where they cane from because you're not under
oath here. It's just an inproperly forned
guestion and | can't let himanswer that.

MR KIM Well, you know what? Let ne
once again try and rephrase this.
BY MR KI'M

Q VWhat is a barrier boundary? Are you

famliar with that kind of term Andy?
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A Yeah.

Q VWhat is a barrier boundary?

A It's one that would have a nmuch | ower
hydraul i c conductivity than the aquifer

Q Wbul d a barrier boundary conprom se or
woul d the presence of a barrier boundary
basically take away the assunption that you have
an infinite horizontal extent?

A Yes. Yes, it would.

Q It woul d.

Okay. You understand what | mean by
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that question, don't you?

A Right, and 1'd kind of like to answer
what | assune to be the next question, but I'll
wait for it.

MR. LAROSE: |'d like to know when you
say you kind of know what | nean by that
question, 1'd like to know what you nean by that

guesti on because his answer doesn't tell ne

anyt hi ng.
BY MR KI M
Q What do you think I'm about to ask

you, Andy?
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A What effect does a barrier boundary
have on the drawdown and the predicted
calculations in the aquifer

Q Thank you. That is my next question
What effect would there be?

A Actual ly, you would increase your
drawdown when you run into an i nperneabl e
barrier like that.

Q Okay. \What are some exanpl es of those
type of boundary barriers or inperneable
barriers?

A A text book exanple is when you have a

L. A REPORTI NG, 312-419-9292
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river valley full of sand and gravel and it's --
you are near the bluff line, which say is a
bedrock, so you've got the punping well in the
sand and gravel but near the bedrock bluff. So
as the drawmdown -- if you're close enough to
have the drawdown neet the bedrock bluff 1ine,
you're going to increase the drawdown.

Q Ckay. Was there a barrier boundary
encountered at Community Landfill?
A Not knowi ng the entire extent of the

underm ning, |I'mnot sure where that woul d be
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but if you assune that the coal l|layer has a

| oner

hydraul i ¢ conductivity than what the

do, then yes, there should be, at some poin

there shoul d be sone barrier

Q
isin
stanp

st anp

r enedi

Let nme turn your attention to --
Group Exhibit A It would be Bates
-- this is a fuzzy Bates stanp, Bates
259, but it's also page 5 of the
ation.

MR LARCSE: Does it start out at

top left with the word specifically--

t abl e,

BY MR
Q
A

Q

MR KIM Yes, it does.

MR LARCSE: -- and there's a

L. A REPORTI NG, 312-419-9292

tabl e nunber 2 on the bottonf®

MR KIM That's correct.

THE W TNESS: Ckay.

Kl M
Did you find that page?
Yeah, | found that page.
Right in the mddle of the page

section that says 2.0 groundwater quality.

A

Q

Ckay.

Can you read -- you do have that

voi ds

t

this

t he

826

S a

page?
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A Yes, | do.

Q Right. Can you read the first two
par agr aphs of that page and when you're done
just let me know?

A The one at the top of the page,
specifically?

Q Ri ght, the paragraph that begins with
the word, specifically, and then the second
par agraph that begins with the word, therefore.

A Ckay.

Q kay. Wien | read this -- well, let
me ask you. Can you explain what those two
par agr aphs are conveyi ng?

A That basically the aquifer is a
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confined aquifer, or that the voids react as a
confined aquifer.
Q Ckay. And what is acting to confine

the void of the aquifer?

A The shal e above and bel ow the mi ned
ar ea.
Q Okay. Does that also act to laterally

bind the aquifer in the void?

A Not sure where the coal would pinch
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out or things like that, if the shal es merge,
but | don't know the extent of the aquifer.

Q Ckay. Well, can you explain then
specifically the first sentence in the second
par agraph, the sentence that begins with the
word therefore? Let ne just read it into the
record

“Therefore, the underm ned areas act
as a confined aquifer; conpletely confined
bel ow, overlain by a | eaky confining unit, and
| aterally bounded by in situ coal."

A Ri ght.

Q What does -- when there's a statenent
there that something is laterally bounded, what

does that reference?
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A That woul d be in the horizontal
direction. Sonewhere there is coal that should
be in place, still in place, otherw se there
woul d be col | apse everywhere.

Q So is the intent or is the nmeaning of
that sentence that the confined aquifer is also
confined laterally by the in situ coal ?

A I'mnot sure what the intent of that
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sentence is. | think -- what | think it neans
is that it's confined above and bel ow.

Q Ckay. What neani ng shoul d be taken by
the use of the phrase, laterally bounded?

A I"'mnot sure. | think it's just a
description of the aquifer itself, what the
boundary conditions are.

Q That the aquifer is laterally bounded?

A Right, that there is some type of
| ower perneability material in the horizonta
di rection.

Q kay. Is this the type of -- would
this be an exanple of a barrier boundary that we
were tal king about earlier when we were talking
about the infinite horizontal extent?

MR. LAROCSE: \When you say this, John
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829
what this is that you' re tal king about? The
| aterally bounded or the horizontally bounded?
MR KIM Let ne rephrase that.
BY MR KI'M
Q If you have a confined aquifer that
is laterally bounded by coal or shale, is that

an exanple of a barrier boundary that woul d work
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agai nst the conclusion that you have an infinite
hori zontal condition or an infinite horizonta
extent ?

A It could be if it's close enough to
the drawdown to be intersected by the drawdown
created by the punping.

Q And that's -- okay. This goes to what
| was so inartfully trying to get at before.

How cl ose does it have to be before there is
sone ki nd of inpact that can be seen?

A That woul d be sonet hing that woul d
have to actually be neasured, | believe. You
woul d have to show that the drawdown i s going
to, or does intersect one of these latera
boundari es, | ower perneabl e boundari es.

Q Okay. Well, earlier you said that

practically speaking you think it's very
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difficult to find a -- sort of the perfect
infinitely horizontal extended condition. |Is
that correct?

A That's correct.
Q Whul d a confined aquifer laterally

bounded by coal or shale, would that be an
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exanpl e of how you woul d not have that sort of
perfect exanple of infinitely horizonta
ext ended condition?

A That's correct.

Q Did -- was this lateral boundary taken
i nto account by you when you were using the
Thei s met hod?

MR. LAROSE: |I'mgoing to object to
the question. The question assunes that there
is a lateral boundary. | think he said they
never measured for that. | think you can say
whet her this sentence was taken into account,
but he said with respect to the lateral
boundary, but they never found one. Didn't you?

THE WTNESS: That's right. | nean
we didn't.

MR. LAROSE: M objection is that the

guesti on assunes that there actually is a
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| ateral boundary on site.
BY MR KM
Q Ckay. So you did not -- when you did

your cal culations, you did not take into account

that there was a barrier boundary?
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A That's correct.
Q Ckay.
A To account for that boundary there is

somet hing called an i magi nary well cal cul ation

Q VWhat is that?

A Where you have, like | explained, the
text book exanple of where you have a river
val |l ey high perneability sand and gravel and
then a | ow perneability bedrock bluff or it can
apply to any situation where you have a
boundary. You have a pumping well and where you
have the -- where the drawdown intersects the
| ower perneabl e boundary, it reacts as if
there's another well actually punping in the
| ower perneable material increasing the drawdown
and there's a calculation that you have to do to
show that the drawdown woul d probably be
i ncreased because of that. |It's called an

i mginary well. The well doesn't really exist
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but it reacts as if there is another punping
wel | close by. Wen you have two punping wells
nearby and their drawdowns intersect, you just

add them together at that point and that's what
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that inmagine well calculation is trying to

portray.
Q Ckay. And that's what you used here?
A No. I'msaying if | had taken that

into account, there would be an inagine well
cal cul ati on sonewhere in the report.

Q Ckay. When you are -- | know you
didn't necessarily take into account or factor
in that there was a -- that the aquifer was
| aterally bounded, but fromthe -- your
under st andi ng of the Theis method, would there

be an increase of a drawdown near a boundary

barrier?
A There shoul d be, yes.
Q kay.

(OFf the record.)
MR KIM Andy, | don't have any ot her
qguestions for you right now
M. LaRose, do you have any questions?

MR LARCSE: Yes.
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CROSS- EXAM NATI ON
BY MR LARCSE:

Q You worked on this application when it
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was submitted the first tine and the punp test
that we've just discussed with M. Kimfor the

| ast several nminutes is not the first punp test

that was taken on this landfill; is that
correct?

A That's correct.

Q There was a previous punp test that

used not the well nethod but what |I'mgoing to
call the trench method, correct?

A That's correct.

Wul d you like me to describe that?

Q Well, first of all, let's just get a
little background.

A kay.

Q When was that done, to the best of
your recollection?

A | believe the end of August, naybe
over Labor Day weekend of 1998.

Q Okay. And when you first submitted
the application in 1996, wasn't it true that the

landfill could not pass the groundwater inpact

L. A, REPORTI NG 312-419-9292
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assessment ?

In other words, there was going to be
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some constituents that were going to be over the
regulatory limts no matter what you did?

A After -- yeah, after going through
some of the initial submittals and conments from
t he Agency, especially regarding the presence of
aliner, there isn't a docunented one so we
couldn't use that in the nodel, not being able
to use any type of liner in the nodel.

Q So there isn't any liner underlying
the old portion of Parcel A, correct?

A That's not entirely correct. There
may be some but it's not docunented, so,
therefore, it can't be used in the groundwater

i mpact assessnent.

Q So when you -- you did the groundwater
i mpact assessnent -- which you were in charge
of, right?

A Yeah.

Q When you did the groundwater inpact

assessnment, you were not able to rely on the
fact or use in any way the fact that there was a

liner underlying the site, is that correct?
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A That's correct.
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Q When you did the groundwater inpact
assessment without using the assunption that
there was a liner underneath the site, it didn't
pass the nodel, did it?

A That's right.

Q And when it didn't pass the nodel, was
it your job to try and figure out sone
corrective action plan that would all ow the
landfill to be pernitted even though it didn't
pass the nodel ?

A That's al so correct.

Q The first corrective action plan that
you cane up with was the groundwater interceptor
trench, right?

A Yeah, that was also with M ke
McDernont's input as well.

Q Ckay. And that was included in -- was
that included in the original application in

August '96 or with sone submittals after that?

A. That was nuch | ater, sone subnmttals
after that.
Q Ckay.

MR KIM Before you go on, do you

L. A REPORTI NG, 312-419-9292
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know roughly what the dates were of those
submittal s?
THE W TNESS: No, that goes back to
the earlier questions. | really don't renenber.
MR KIM Ckay. |'msorry.

BY MR, LAROCSE:

Q M. Linmer, or Andy--
A Uh- huh
Q -- when -- just so |I'mclear, when you

submitted the application in August 1996
pursuant to the Appellate Court's order, had the
groundwat er i npact assessnent been conpl eted at
that time?

A Yes, it had. There were -- there was
docunentation fromthe original, early -- or no,
late 70's design in report for the landfil
saying that they should have used a liner. It
al so appeared to only be a strip-nmne so we had
set up the nodel, is that the strip-mne was

bel ow the water. Once |eachate collection began

with the liner in place, the inmpact -- the
landfill shoul d pass the groundwater inpact
assessnent.

Q Tal ki ng about either the trench

L. A, REPORTI NG 312-419-9292
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groundwat er interceptor trench or the deep well
groundwat er renoval, aren't we tal ki ng about a
nmet hod to renove contam nated groundwater so it
can be treated?

A On the renediati on system or
corrective action plan, yes.

Q And there is a renmediation system or
corrective action plan for groundwater because

you al ready know it doesn't pass the nodel,

correct?

A That's correct.

Q So your first corrective action
nmeasure, if you will, was the groundwater

i nterceptor trench system right?

A That's correct.

Q And you did a groundwater interceptor
trench test in the sumer or over Labor Day
weekend of 1998 you t hought?

A Yeah. M ke MDernont ran that test
and | used the data fromthat test.

Q And what does the data fromthat test
tell you?

A From what | remenber, there was a wel

that was used during that test to observe the

L. A REPORTI NG, 312-419-9292
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results, the drawdown.

Q kay.

A That was about 1,600 feet away, |
t hi nk.

Q Yes.

A And its drawdown matched where the

punpi ng test or where the one punping well was.

Q So a trenendous drawdown.
A Ri ght .

Q Fromthat far away.

A Ri ght, that far away.

MR KIM [|'mgoing to object.

MR, LARCSE: Let ne ask it a different
way. You're right, John.
BY MR. LAROCSE:

Q What's the significance of having the
drawdown in the well located in the trench equal
the drawdown in the well 1,600 feet away?

A At first | didn't understand the
significance of that. Just in ny experience |
hadn't seen that before, but basically that
it -- you know, that punping in one |ocation you
shoul d provide capture, is what it appeared to

be to ne.

L. A, REPORTI NG 312-419-9292
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Q kay. And was there sonething el se
bet ween 1,600 feet away and the trench that told
you that sonething was ani ss?

A Yeah, | think there were two wells
maybe one 100 feet around that distance and
anot her one about 200 hundred feet away perhaps,
and their drawdown was nuch | ess than the one

that was very far away.

Q So you've got a punp in the trench
right?

A Ri ght .

Q You' ve got a certain anount of

drawdown in a well 1,600 feet away, right?

A Ri ght.

Q And you've got significantly |ess
drawdown in two wells that are respectively 200

and 100 feet away fromthe trench, right?

A That's correct.

Q What does that tell you?

A D dn't understand the whole system
Q And what did you do with respect to

showi ng these docunments to soneone else to see
if you could answer the question that you had in

your mnd about not understanding the systenf
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A | think we were under a deadline to
submit the results fromthat. They were
subnmitted and the | EPA reviewers also had the
sanme questions but that's when we had call ed

Mari on Skouby.

Q Let nme back up
A kay.
Q You're under a deadline to submt, so

you submit the punp test fromthe groundwater

interceptor trench to the IEPA with the results

that were still confusing to you. Fair enough?
A Fai r enough.
Q Ckay. At that point, does the |IEPA

conmuni cate to you guys that they're confused
like you are about how you coul d have one | evel
of drawdown 1,600 feet away and a different
| evel of drawdown 200 and 100 feet away?

A Yeah. More work needed to be done.

Q Ckay. What do you do then? Show it
to Marion Skouby?

A Cal | ed hi mand asked him sone
guestions. He had the answer right away.

Q Prior to this calling Marion Skouby,

what was your professional opinion as to whether
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the site had been underm ned versus j ust
strip-mned?

A Based on the information we had, | had
t hought it was only strip-m ned.

Q Ckay. When you call ed Skouby, did you
send hi mthe docunents on the test or the
results of the test?

A I think so or maybe just -- maybe it
was just even verbal and he knew right away.

Q And what was the answer that he gave
you right away?

A He said the site was underni ned.

Q Does that, in your mnd, explain to

you why you were getting these different |evels
of drawdown in these wells?

A Yes, it does. Not at first. | nmean,
it was hard to believe because all the data
pointed to the site being strip-m ned.

Q Did you do anything else to -- so at
first, even when he told you that, you were
still skeptical?

A Yeah.

Q What did you do to test Skouby's
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A In Decenber we talked to the site
personnel. W were going to have themdig three
| ocations through the rock, the shale, to see if
we coul d do some nore additional trench
interceptor trench test points but it was just
too hard to dig down that far. So then we
contracted with the drilling contractor, AEX
and went out there and started installing sone
of these wells.
MR KIM Excuse ne. Decenber of what
year ?
THE W TNESS: Decenber of '98
BY MR LARGCSE
Q And what was the purpose of
installing -- you say installing some of these

wells. That includes T2 and T4?

A Yeah.

Q What was the purpose of installing the
wel | s?

A The sane purpose of trying to dig down

that deep was to see if we could dig down into

one of the mine voids and put in a punp down
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t hem
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Q Did the digging and the boring | ogs
that were created fromthe installation of those
wel I's do anything to your conclusion as to
whet her the site was undermn ned?

A Yeah. Yeah. | was there for all of
those. The site is undermned. It's -- you
know, it's hard to tell when sone of the borings
do drill through a -- a pillar like sone of the
ol der monitoring wells out there have, but on
that east side, it's pretty nmuch undermn ned
al ong the whole way. Also talked to the |ISGS
personnel that are doing mne subsidence work in
the area and they said there's sone col |l apse
east of the site that they've been working on.

Q Ckay. So at this tinme, you becone
convi nced as a professional hydrogeol ogi st that

the site has been under m ned?

A To a certain extent, yes.
Q Decenber of 1998?
A Ri ght. Looking at the aerial

phot ographs fromthe 40's and 50's where the
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the Iine there between strip-mned versus

under ground m ni ng.
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Q And when | sunmarize what you've told
me, your conclusion at this time is based on the
fact that the trench test drawdowns | eave sone
serious questions as to why there was drawdown
so far away at one |level and | ess drawdown
cl oser, correct?

A That's correct.

Q Nurmber 2, Marion Skouby tells you in a
matter of minutes, after you either relay to him
or show himthe data, that the site's

under m ned, correct?

A That's correct.

Q You do additional drilling at the
site, drilling five -- at least five wells and
you observe the drilling and the boring | ogs

with respect to that, correct?

A That's right.

Q Look at USGS, is it topographical nmaps
that you | ooked at or aerial photographs or

aerial topos that you | ooked at? What exactly
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A Aeri al photographs.
Q kay. And as a result of all of those

t hi ngs by Decenber 1998, you conclude that the
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site's underm ned?
A That's correct.
Q Ckay. Is it then that you decide to

change your focus fromthe trench interceptor
systemto the deep well systemand to test that
to see if it works?

A That's right.

Q And it's as a result of that that you
tested the groundwater renpval system using the
punp test that we just talked about with M. Kim

from January, approximately January '99 to Apri

' 997
A That's right.
Q Ckay. Sir, based on your professiona

opi nion, based on the information that you
prepared and revi ewed, does the punping of
groundwater from T2 and T4 work better or worse
than the interceptor trench nethod?

A. It would work a | ot better because



20

21

22

23

24

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

those mine voids are all interconnected, so if
you get drawdown, induced drawdown in the nine
voi ds, the shal e above, you're going to create
drawdown there and, | believe, the shale is

about 25 feet thick and that shale does transmt
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some water. | think there are shallow wells on
that side of the site that al so show sone
i mpacts. So if you induce drawdown in the mne
voi ds, which are all interconnected, you're
going to be getting water not only fromoff site
where the contam nants have spread, but also
from above the m ne voids as well, which the
shale is saturated partially for its thickness
and water flows through that as well.

So, by basically drawi ng the water
down underneath that shale, you're going to
create a drawdown in that shale also. You don't
have to dewater the mne voids to get that
drawdown, that capture.

Q Did you -- so these are reasons why T2
and T4 work, would you say? Is it a correct
statenment to say that they work nore efficiently

than the trench net hod?
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A | believe so. A trench -- you would
still have to -- well, number 1, you'd have to
dig it through that rock along that whole
| engt h.

Q Let's back up for a second. That's

what | wanted to ask you.
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Way don't you think the trench nethod
is as efficient?

A It's -- it just doesn't seemthat
feasible to dig through all that rock. The
trench method itself, a trench you don't punp
fromthe entire length of the trench. You just
have coll ection points within the trench

Q Al right.

A When you' ve got these voids, basically
it's a pre-made trench for you and so what
you're doing is putting in collection points at
the wells. You put in two, you know, and you
see how that works, monitor the efficiency. |If
that's working fine, then you're done. |If
that's not working fine, you know, you can go
add anot her well or two dependi ng on where you

need it and it would take you maybe two or three
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days to put in a well, whereas if the trench
doesn't work, you've got to go then add wells
around it or dig nore trenching to try and get
it to work, you know. The feasibility and ease
of flexibility trying to adjust the system
through tinme is what we al so | ooked at.

Q Wll, isn't that inportant because
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this is kind of a noving target type thing?
You're trying to do what's best, would renove
t he groundwater nost efficiently so that it
could be treated and that might have to be
adj usted over tine, right?

A That's correct.

Q And is what you're saying that if you
dig a trench through 25 feet of rock and it
doesn't work, it's harder to either relocate
that trench than it is to dig a couple of extra
wel s to adjust your well system of renoval ?

A That's right.

Q Ckay. The whol e thing that you went
through with M. Kimabout the aquifer being
|aterally bounded -- first of all, let's get

this straight. Did you ever determ ne that that
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aqui fer was laterally bounded?

A No, we didn't find any linmts to it.
Q Ckay.
A That wasn't the point. At that tine

we just wanted to see if the punping woul d
capture groundwater fromthe mne voids.
Q Okay. That whole issue of laterally

bi ndi ng versus infinite horizontal extent,
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woul dn't that be the same problemin cal cul ating
the efficiency of groundwater renoval whether

you use the trench or whether you use the well?

A Yeah, you woul d have the sane problem
bot h ways.
Q Okay. So that whole issue of infinite

hori zontal extent not being present in this
aqui fer didn't have anything to do with whether
you used T2 or T4 versus the interceptor trench
right?

A It shouldn't, no, and basically it's
going to increase your drawdown, which as far as
I'mconcerned is you' re better off unless you
begin the dewater of the mine voids. Then you

shoul d back off the punping.
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Q Ckay. Sir, you worked on this
application before, the original application
before its submittal in 1996, correct?

A Yeah. That's right.

Q Okay. What was your directive from
t he project manager?

A W got the application in within the
time line that we needed, which | think was 45

days or a little bit less, the original one, and
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then as every draft denial came back, we
responded to those right away by their deadline,
as far as | renenber.

Q As far as you renenber, was your
instruction to you get this thing done as soon
as possi bl e?

A Yeah. | nmean, it |ooks better for the
conpany as well, you know, if you don't have a
permt application that takes five years, you
know. If you get a permit in the shorter anount
of time, it looks much better for the conpany as
wel I and personally, so, yeah, we wanted to get
it done.

Q Ckay. Were you aware of any strategy,
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ei ther inside your conpany or fromthe outside
fromthe client, to either delay or slow down
the permit process?

A No, and if -- like you nentioned, the
punp test that was done in August or
Septenber -- | nean, we subnmitted those results.
Li ke |I said, we were under deadline, submtted
those results but then we were right back out
there in December doing additional work to try

and figure out what was really going on
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Q Ri ght .
As you sit here today, are there any
ot her reasons why you would prefer as a
hydr ogeol ogi st to see the groundwater renmpved
fromthat site using the T2 and T4 nethod versus
the trench met hod?
A | think there's a lot nore flexibility
i nvol ved with the punping wells and as we had
tal ked earlier about where the drawdown of two
punping wells intersect it doubles. There is
that flexibility. If you're not getting
drawdown in one location, you can add anot her

well and it would be nmuch faster, easier
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Q Let's talk about the results of the
punp test. \What -- in general, what kind of
results were you seeing in terms of the ability
of the spring 1999 punp test to drawdown at
various |locations of the landfill?

A There was good drawdown all al ong that
east side, fromwhat | renenber. Even in the
wells that are shallowy screened in the shale
above the mne voids there was a response.

Q And was the response nore consi stent

than you saw under the trench net hod?
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A | believe so, yes.

Q And what did it nean to you when you
were getting response or drawdown even in the
shal | ow wel | s?

A That basically we were getting
drawdown in the mine voids and then the water
that's in the shale above that is also being
lowered. | believe it was 2 or 3 feet from what
| read this norning in sone of those wells above
there. So we're inducing drawdown in the
confining | ayer above al so.

Q How nmany applications, sig nod
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applications have you worked on for landfill in
[11inois?

A At |east ten.

Q Let me break it down. Were there any
other landfills that you were involved in that
did not pass their groundwater i nmpact
assessnment ?

A Yes, there are.

Q kay. And were there any of those who
t hen proposed not to renove | eachate fromtheir
facilities because -- because the groundwater

was al ready inpacted?
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A | know of a landfill that didn't
propose to collect |eachate. They instead just
proposed to put in a barrier wall and trench,

col l ection trench.

Q Was this facility permitted by the
| EPA?
A Yes, it was.
Q Wt hout the need for renoval of
| eachat e?
A It was never added to the sig nod, no.

Q Now, the issues of contention in this
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appeal is that the -- CLC would like to
tenmporarily delay the renoval of |eachate from
the landfill until the landfill's devel opnment
gets to a level that would allow the renpva
systens to be constructed one tine and one tine
only.

Based on your know edge of the
facility, do you believe there would be any
significant adverse environnental harm from
tenporarily delaying the renpoval of |eachate as
one issue where punping and treating groundwater
fromthe site?

MR KIM [I'mgoing to object to that.
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Can you specify what you nean by tenporarily
del ayi ng? Can you give a tine period?
MR. LARCSE: Yeah, | think that's

good. | think that's good.
BY MR, LAROCSE:

Q And CLC is saying we're not ready in
February 2001 because we want to build these
ot her things up enough so that once we instal
t hese correction systens, they'll be installed

once and once only. So we need until, let's say
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the end of 2001 in order to do it, so another 10
nont hs.

Woul d del ayi ng these, the
installations of these systens, the renoval of
| eachate fromthe facility, based on your
know edge of the facility, adversely inpact the
environnent, if you were renoving and treating
t he groundwat er ?

A Can | answer that in tw parts?

The first part is it's been an | EPA
permtted landfill since the late 70's, so
you've got all that |eachate fromthat time. |
believe it was a bermfill prior to that even

But al so the second part of that is,
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you know, a permt issued three years ago could
have saved a lot of this trouble, | believe,
with the installation of the nonitoring wells on
t he downgradi ent side woul d have di scovered that
t he problem was there, would have discovered
that it was underm ned and, you know, pronpted a
corrective action plan back then under a permt.

It just -- so no, the answer is no.

Wi ting another 8 nonths on top of 25 to 30
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years or better, | don't believe it's going to
do that much difference, especially since you do
have to get the groundwater punping wells

i nstall ed.

Q What if you had to wait another year
and ei ght nmonths? Wuld your conclusion be the
sanme?

A If the renmediation plan is installed
and punpi ng, yeah, the conclusion is the sane.

Q Assume for the purpose of ny
qguestion, M. Limer, that we noved for a stay
of all the contested conditions.

MR. LAROCSE: Fair enough, John?
MR. KIM Sure.

BY MR LARCSE:
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Q Assure for the purpose of ny question
that one of the conditions that we nmove for a
stay of was the use of T2 versus T4, which we
promote, versus the use of the groundwater
i nterceptor trench, which the | EPA pronotes.
MR. LAROCSE: Fair enough, John?
BY MR. LAROCSE:

Q Wth those two assunptions, Joyce
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Minie wote an affidavit in opposition to the
nmotion to stay the contested conditions.
MR. LARCSE: Fair enough, John?
MR. KIM Yes.
BY MR, LAROCSE:
Q Ckay. And this paragraph 10, M.
Li mer, was part of that opposition
Are you with me on all of those

assunpti ons now, Andy?

A | think so.
Q Did | go too fast for you?
A No, | think so -- | think you're

saying the Agency is contesting the use of T2

and T4 and woul d rather see -- install a trench,

is that right?

Q That's one of the issues in this
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appeal, and when this affidavit was witten, it
was witten because we noved to stay, meaning
just delay pending a decision by the board al
of these contested conditions.

In other words, the Agency said you
can't use T2 and T4 and build the groundwater

i nterceptor trench now or whenever they're set
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to build it, I think it was February of 2001
W went to the board and said no, we think we'l
win this thing, so don't nake us do that right
now. Let us try our case.

As part of that procedure where we
argued back and forth as to whether the board
woul d stay the condition or not stay the
condition Joyce Minie subnmitted an affidavit.

MR. LAROCSE: |Is that all fair enough
John?

MR KIM Yes.

MR. LAROSE: Ckay. |s that enough
context in which he can answer this question?

MR KIM | think that's a little nore
foundati on, yeah
BY MR, LAROCSE:

Q The statenent contained in paragraph
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10 of Joyce Munie's affidavit is for the purpose
of this affidavit, it is ny firmbelief that a
stay of the contested conditions would result in
a potential threat to human health and the
envi ronnent .

Do you have an opinion with respect to
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that statenent?
A Installing T2 and T4 would harmt he
human health and environnent? |Is that --

MR KIM Ckay. | don't think we need
to bel abor Joyce's affidavit today.

Andy, if you can answer that question
go right ahead.

THE WTNESS: | think using T2 and T4
for the reasons we've already spoken about, the
ease, the speed of installing them and hooki ng
t hem toget her versus the trench, | believe the
trench will take about six to eight nonths to
actual ly construct, and as long as the punp rate
on the wells, or the trench, if that's the case,
is maintained at the proper |evel so you don't
dewat er the nine voids, there shouldn't -- you
shoul dn't create any harmthat way to the

environnent or to human health by causing
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col | apse
If the mine voids are fully saturated
t hey should have support. |'mnot an expert on
that. | believe we talked to Van Silver to redo

his calculations after we found out the site was
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under i ned on that side and he cane back and
said that --
BY MR, LAROCSE:

Q Let's talk about that issue for a
second. At any tinme during the three nonths
that you punped continuously fromthe deep well
until you ran your punp test in the winter and
spring of 1999, did you ever dewater any of the
voi ds?

A No, not fromwhat | renmenber. | don't
have all of the information in front of ne but |
don't renmenber seeing any of that at all.
Looki ng at that, what the |levels of the drawdown
were and what the top of the nmine void was as
noted on the boring | ogs.

Q Ckay. You didn't do any of the actua
stability work with respect to the site,
correct?

A That's right. Van Silver did that.

L. A, REPORTI NG 312-419-9292

860
Q Are you famliar with M. Silver's
work with respect to stability?
A Yeah.

Q How woul d you characterize that?
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A He's pretty conservative.

Q What do you mean, pretty conservative?
A He woul d err on the side of the
landfill's collapsing before he'd ever extend

hinself to say it was stable.

Q Ckay. So he would input factors in
his cal culations that might be different in
terns of the landfill collapsing than what the
actual conditions of the site are?

A Yeah, he's done that in the past al so.
He really takes, like | said, a conservative
approach, a worse case scenari o approach

Q As far as you were aware, based on
your actual work prior to the time that you |eft
Andrews, you had not yet determ ned that the
site was laterally bounded by in situ coal
correct?

A Correct. If you assune that that coa
| ayer that's been nined so extensively

t hr oughout the area exists, sonewhere you shoul d

L. A REPORTI NG, 312-419-9292

861
run into coal or it should pinch out, one of the

t wo.

(OFf the record.)
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REDI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY MR KI'M

Q Back on the record.

Andy, | believe when you were speaking
with M. LaRose at one point you were talking
about conversations that you had with Marion
Skouby, which led to the conclusions that the
site was undernined and that as sort of a
confirmation of that conclusion you spoke with a
third party. Was it the | SGS or USGS?

A Illinois State CGeol ogical Survey.

Q And did they convey to you that they
di d have evi dence of m ne subsidence in that
area that confirmed your, your and Marion
Skouby' s concl usions that there was underni ni ng?

A Sonmewhere east of the site, yeah
They weren't -- | can't renmenber what road they
said it was on but one of the roads east of the
site they were having nine subsidence probl erms
Wit h.

Q Did they indicate if that information
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was formalized in any record or any kind of

report?
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A They were still doing the field work
and research on it.

Q Ckay. Do you know how cl ose that was
to the site?

A A quarter mle maybe. |'mnot rea
sure and that's -- they just had told ne an area
and it was hard to pinpoint on the nmap so no, |
don't have true nunbers.

Q Okay. You mentioned also briefly that
you were tal king about dewatering at the site?

A Right. That's not the intent of the
renedi ati on system

Q And why isn't that the intent?

A Because if you dewater those nine
voi ds, then you woul d probably open themup for
col | apse

Q And woul d a greater drawdown than --
the greater the drawdown, the greater the chance
that the -- that you would | ead to dewatering,
is that correct?

A Right. And that's sonething that

woul d have to be nonitored through tine.
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Q And | understand that you have said
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that wells are a nore efficient and nore
flexible nmethod in your opinion, but what |'m
asking about is what -- and then we've tal ked
about dewatering and the problens associ at ed
wi th dewat eri ng.

Wul d the installation of a trench
create any problens that night lead to
dewatering or would the installation of a trench
lead to any problens that night lead to
increased instability at the site, and what |
nean at the site of the landfill foundation?

A Actual Iy, during construction, when
you have that trench open along that site, |
nmean, hopefully, the plan would be to backfill a
drop as you dig, but at sone point there's going
to be an open trench near the edge of the fill
area which yeah, could pose sone problens but |
think those are questions, again, for Van Silver
nore than nysel f.

Q Ckay. And woul d those types, would
that potential inpact in your opinion be as
great or greater than the potential inpact of

dewat eri ng the m ne void?
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A It's only ny opinion, but
di ggi ng through that rock, that rock is
approxinmately 20 to 30 feet thick, the shale,
above the mne voids, and it's intact, if you
dig through it, then | believe you' ve created a
poi nt of movenent. It's not intact. |It's not
connected to the rest of the shale any nore
holding it in place fromlateral pressures and
the point of the dewatering is to not -- or the
poi nt of the renediation systemis to not
dewater. It's just to provide capture and as
long as the systemis maintained that way so
that it's not dewatering the voids, then yeah
the trench does create nore probl ens.

Q VWhat | ateral pressures were you just
referring to?

A Fromthe waste itself and just earth
pressures, which, again, |'mnot sonebody to ask
det ai |l ed questi ons about that.

Q Ckay. And you said that you weren't
sure who prepared that paragraph that M. LaRose
and |'ve both drawn your attention to?

A It is possible that | wote it but

it's been a while since |'ve seen it last, so

L. A, REPORTI NG 312-419-9292
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Q Let me ask you this. I'ma little bit
uncl ear as to exactly what your answer was
regardi ng whether or not there's a latera

boundary for this confined aquifer. D d you say

that you did --
A We did not find one.
Q So you didn't take steps to

i nvestigate whether or not there was one?

A Correct. The coal to the west of that
area has been strip-nined so that's gone. East
of there there's been underm ning. W don't
know how far that undernining goes. Talking to
the 1SGS, they have underm ning nuch farther
away, like | said, probably a quarter nile. [|I'm
not sure on that, but the area has been
extensively nmined so we don't know where the
edge is.

Q kay. So what -- and you're saying
you m ght have witten this | anguage on Bates

stanmp 259, you just don't recall if you did or

not ?
A Correct.
Q If you did wite this, you don't right

now have any recol |l ection what was intended by

L. A REPORTI NG, 312-419-9292
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the use of the words laterally bounded by in
situ coal? I'mreading -- I'mtaking that from
the first sentence in the second paragraph on
t hat page.

A Right. | can make an assunption about
what it neans, but | don't know if that was the
intent. So do you want nme to answer?

Q What's your assunption?

A The assunption is that somewhere there
shoul d be coal where it hasn't been mined out,
you know, whether it's 2 mles, 5 mles, who
knows where it's at, 200 feet, not sure, but at
sonme point -- | mean, it's not going to be
under m ned forever.

Q Okay. Well, let's look at the first
phrase of that sentence where it says,

t herefore, the undermni ned areas act as a

confined aquifer.

A Ri ght.
Q What's the neani ng of that phrase?
A Confining units are typically a | ower

per meabl e bed above and bel ow t he aquifer that
you're interested in, so, and | think that's

what that sentence there is saying, conpletely

L. A REPORTI NG, 312-419-9292
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confined bel ow and then overlying by a | eaking
confining unit.

Q So the use of the word confined there
is referring only to a vertical confinenent, not
a horizontal confinenment?

A Correct.

Q And if for some reason your
recol lection is wong, and you did not wite
that particular page and if -- let nme -- let's
just put it this way. |If there was a |latera
boundary at this site, a lateral boundary on the
aqui fer, would the drawdown cal cul ati ons of the
drawdown concl usions be different than what was
presented in the application?

A You' d have greater drawdown.

MR KIM Ckay. Okay. | can't think
of anything else that |I have right now.
MR. LAROSE: | have sone fol |l ow up
guesti ons.
REDI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY MR LARGCSE

Q Sir, are you sayi ng when you answered

M. Kinms question about mine subsidence in T2

versus T4, T2 and T4 versus the trench, are you
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saying that the actual construction of the
trench itself could cause mine subsidence?

A Not mi ne subsidence, that things could

nove, slide, you know. You've got waste on --
directly on top of that shale and in that shale
and if you cut through it, it's possible that it
could nmove to the side. |I'mnot sure, |ooking
at how cl ose the waste boundary is to where the
way that trench is designed to be.

Q You coul d negatively affect the
stability of the landfill just by cutting the
trench?

A | believe so, but those are questions
to verify with sonmebody el se.

Q Wll, they were Silver's questions

when he asked you, so | got to follow up.

A Ckay.
Q | still think they're Silver questions
but as long as you answered his, I'd like you to

answer nine.

This whol e idea of the confined
aquifer -- let ne see if | get this straight
because | really am dunmb when it conmes to this

stuff.
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The confined aquifer concept is a
negative when you're using the Theis nethod
because the Theis nethod would |like to see an
infinite aquifer, is that right?

A Your question isn't phrased right.

One of the assunptions of the Theis
nmethod is that the aquifer is conpletely
confined above and bel ow and that laterally
there are no boundari es.

Q Ckay. So no lateral boundaries for
the aquifer?

A Right. Right, because you would --
you woul d show i ncreased drawdown than what you
shoul d have.

Q Ckay. Now, you did the Theis nethod
to calculate the drawdown for -- for the deep
wel I pumping that occurred in the winter and
spring of 1999, correct?

A No. The data was analyzed. | believe
it's on page 264. No, page 266.

Q Ckay.

A The data were anal yzed using the
nmet hods of Hantush, Neunman and Walton --

Q kay.
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-- based on the data and sone of the

assunptions, and then that data, hydraulic

conductivity and storativity of the aquifer, we

know what the drawdown we want to create is,

which is 7 feet fromthose cal cul ati ons.

Q
A

kay.

We have this hydraulic conductivity

and storatitivty fromthe actual punp test and

basi cally you just back cal cul ate what you want

your punp rate to be.

Q

So Theis is the nethod that uses the

back cal cul ati ons?

A

Q
A

Correct.
Comes up with the back cal cul ati on?

Right. Just trying to show that

that's valid because punping for so long, you're

going to reach steady state and the overlying

storativity in the confining |ayer isn't

providing any nore water after a certain length

of time of punping.

event,

(End of insert.)
HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN: I n any

we're going to start on closing
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break, and di scuss the post-hearing briefing
schedul e.

So, M. LaRose.

MR. LAROSE: Thank you, M. Hall oran.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN:  Thank you.

MR. LAROSE: Before | get started, |I'd
just like to thank everyone for the patience,
the I ady and the gentlemanly way that this
heari ng was handl ed. | think the Hearing
Oficer, the EPA's | awers, M. Roque, people on
ny side of the table, the court reporter,
what ever the outcone, and despite ny obvious
di sagreenent with sone of the rulings in this
case, was handled in an orderly, very
prof essional, well run nmanner and it was a
pl easure to appear before the board in this
case.

The evidence and the testinony in this
case supports the Petitioner's request for all
of the relief.

You heard M. MDernont describe in

detail the contam nants that we seek to control
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permts of this case, the groundwater, |eachate,
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condensate fromthe gas wells and the gas
collection itself. And you heard hi mdescribe
in details the nethods to control those
particul ar contam nants. They were specifically
identified by M. MDernont and depicted in the
applicant's Exhibits BBB, CCC, TTT and EEE as
well as in other portions of the record.

Wth respect to these specific
conditions, I'll start with the easiest one.

There is a condition that we maintain
| eachate bel ow the static groundwater |evels.
Even the EPA admits that for 95 percent of this
landfill this condition is inpossible to comply
with, that is because the bottom of the
landfill, 95 percent of it, is above the static
ground. This condition is telling, however,
because the EPA didn't make this admi ssion until
three days ago. 1In fact, when they were given
the opportunity earlier in this case, when we
noved for a stay of this condition, to adnmt

that they had nade a mstake, they didn't. They
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contested this condition and the stay. It adds
credence to our argunent and our theory that the

Agency has acted hastily and unreasonably with
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respect to aspects of this permt and the
conditions that they put in.

The relief we ask for in this case is
that the condition be anended to only apply to
t hose portions of Parcel A where the bottom of
the landfill is below the static groundwater
I evel .

When | say the relief we request in
this case, again, make a general statenent
during closing argurment, | believe, it is ny
intent in the brief in this case specifically
either rewite, suggest revisions or
elimnations of certain conditions in this case
in a specific request for relief. So while I'lI
state that generally here, again, ny intent is
for the board to clearly | ook at the brief,
we' Il append an exhibit to it, actually
suggesti ng | anguages how this -- how relief
could be granted in a fair and equitabl e manner.

Second conditi on, no waste can be
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accepted until you build and permt the
separation layer. And there is only one problem
with that. They approved a construction plan

that says we need to place waste in order to
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build the separation layer. M. Roque quite
candidly testified that she thought that that
was an unreasonable condition. Now, this is the
second condition that is not only unreasonable
but inpossible to conply with and shows the
general and the |ack of understandi ng and
reasonabl eness of the Agency in dealing with
this permt.

Joyce Muni e said, unbelievably so, you
can place waste, you just can't accept waste.

Her theory or rationale that this condition was
a reasonable one is wong for two reasons.

The corollary condition, one condition
on page 2 of the Parcel A pernmit does say accept
waste, the corollary condition on page 5 says
deposit waste. It doesn't matter whether it is
accept or deposit, the conditions read together
as they nust be, say we can't deposit waste

until we build a separation |ayer, even though
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we need to deposit waste to build a separation
layer. It is nore than a catch-22.

The second reason why Ms. Minie is
incorrect, as testified to by M. MDernont,

she's right, we're out of business. If we need
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to accept waste in order to build the separation
| ayer, the condition says we can't accept waste,
we are out of business. It is patently
unreasonable for the IEPA to argue and issue a
sig nod permt after four years of review and
i mpose the condition that is both inmpossible to
conply with and would put the applicant out of
busi ness. Conditions should be anended to all ow
t he placenent of waste and acceptance of waste
to achieve the separation layers invert
el evation in accordance with the construction
pl an.

Fi nanci al assurance. Really two
i ssues before the board. First is before this
board on a sunmary judgnent and there was
testimony generated on that issue today and that
i s whether the issue of reduction of financial

assurance is properly before the board. It has
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al ways been, as the testinobny clearly reveal ed,
the intent of not only the applicant but of the
EPA to bring this issue before the board. No
matter what we did and no matter when we did it
Joyce Munie was not going to agree to a

reduction in this financial assurance based on
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Morris' agreenent to treat the | eachate, no
matter what happened, we were coming to this
board. W were before the board in the '99
case. We're here now and if the board doesn't
rule on it now, they're just going to rule on it
later. W are coming to this board to decide
this issue, no matter what, and no matter what
this board decides, whether it is against nme or
in favor of nme, either I'mgoing to appeal or
the I1EPA is going to appeal, and this decision
is going to be decided by the appellate court,
if not the supreme court of the State of
[1linois.

The Agency admits, they even admt
that if you don't decide it here, it is stil
going to be decided in another floor setting.

They don't say that this is an inappropriate
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i ssue to be decided, they just say it should be
deci ded based on anot her procedure, file an app
we'll deny that, and then it will be decided
If nothing else, everybody is here. The request
for the reduction is in the 1999 application
and it's in the record in this case. The denial

of that reduction was in the 1999 and it's in
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the record in this case. Al of the testinmony
and exhibits with respect to this issue are now
before the board, if nothing el se, based on the
theory of judicial econony and so that we don't
wast e public and private funds retrying this
i ssue, this issue should be deci ded now before
the board so that the courts of the State of
Illinois can take a | ook at the ruling,
whi chever way it goes.

Now, to the substance of the argument.
The reasons why it should be decided in our
favor, if in fact the board rules on it, is that
while the regs require a third-party cost, this
isalittle bit different situation. Wth
respect to the operation of the POTWthe Cty of

Morris is clearly a third-party. Don't really
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have any other option but to go to the Morris
POTW It's the closest. |It's the one that
everybody would go to. The closest nunicipa
POTWis where all the landfills go. It is
standard operating practice. The negotiations
regarding this agreenent were absolutely arms
I ength and there was real consideration for

those. The POTWis a separate entity. The |EPA
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accepted the cost of the Morris POTWas a
third-party cost. They have accepted a
reservation of disposal capacity agreenment from
the City of Morris even though Morris owns the
landfill and even though Mrris gave themthat
agreenent, and that agreenent contains no
third-party cost. Mst inportantly, | think the
testinmony was telling that the -- if the | EPA
received the benefit of the free |eachate
di sposal agreenent on the one hand and $10
mllion of financial assurance on the other
hand, they will have received the benefit of $20
mllion. That was the purpose of the agreenent,
to supply themwith an alternative way to

support this financial assurance. The argunent



16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

10

11

12

13

14

of the Agency that the Morris POTWmay sone how
cease to exist is an argunent that | tell you
and argue to you is one that | think will never
happen. | think we would have to have a

cat astrophic seisnic event, sone kind of weather
di saster, some kind of nuclear disaster before
this POTWcan go down. And | submt to you, M.
Hal loran, if this POTWgoes down, this little

bit of leachate fromthis landfill is going to
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be the least of the City of Mdrris or the IEPA s
problems. You're tal king about absolutely
catastrophic event. There is -- the sane thing
woul d occur, even if there was financial
assurance, for third-party cost of Mrris, the
sanme thing would occur, they don't have a permt
to go el sewhere. So we've got $10 mllion
Morris POTW bl ows up, they're in the sane exact
position. | think their position is wong. |
think that they're double-dipping by this. They
shoul d either accept the $10 million in free
| eachate or require the $10 nillion dollars in
financi al assurance but not both, it is

doubl e-di ppi ng, and we woul d ask that the board
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reduce the financial assurance from$17 nmillion
down to 10 million based on the City of Mrris
arms length agreenent to accept sone
responsibility for this landfill and treat the
| eachate free of cost.

Movi ng the waste versus siting the
wast e, that date, as Joyce Munie testified, was
pi cked arbitrarily. They just said, you know
what, you've had enough tine, |'mgoing to give

you until February 1st to nmove it or give us $4
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mllion. They had enough tine, argunent m ght
have been okay except there has been clear and
cogent testinobny in this case that while we
could have nmoved for siting prior to the pernmt,
the Iikelihood of our success as the mayor and
M. MDernont testified were minimal. The
i kelihood of success of SP172 hearings is
mnimal, even if you're in a good setting. |
don't think since '82, | would venture to say of
the solid waste landfills who sought SP172
proceedi ngs, probably less than 10 percent of
t hem have been successful. And sonme of them

had t hey been successful, gone to the Illinois
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supreme court, sonme of them have been
unsuccessful, gone to the Illinois suprene
court. It is a hotly contested issue. So in
this climate of criticismfromthe EPA, in this
climate of political criticismfor us to have
gone through the SP172 process before we
received this sig nod permit would have been
suicide to the process. W just wouldn't have
been successful. W're ready to do it now. And
nost inportantly, absolutely, positively no

environnental harmin waiting another 6 or 9
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nonths to give us an opportunity to do this
siting process.

Joyce Munie said it would have been
agai nst the regulations for me to give you nore
time. Well, that is not a good argunment at all
If it's not against the regulations to give us
six months, then it woul dn't have been agai nst
the regulations to give us a year. Really
that's all we were asking for

W woul d ask that the board strike
that condition, give us until the end of the

year 2001 and allow the mayor to be el ected or
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not and for us to get the best chance to have
this material sited in place. Also allowthe
City of Morris to get through the siting
procedure that they're going through right now.
Wth respect to the activities on A
and B, construction activities, we just need
nore tine, just need nore tine to do it. W
can't put in the pipe, put in the forced nain
build the tank, nove the waste, and do all of
these things that they just put us on a tight
| eash. Rather than address the specific tine

franme here, because | can't specifically
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renmember what M. MDernont testified to, |
propose that our brief will set forth a
reasonabl e and specific tine franme for the board
to give us a little bit nore tine.

Wth respect to the one day versus
five days' |eachate storage tank. | think it
was absol utely evident that no storage tank
none, was required in this case because of the
811.309(d)(6) regulation that says no storage
tank is required if there is a direct connection

to a sewer. Actually says it alittle bit
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differently, it says unless there is a direct
connection to the sewer, you need storage tanks,
which the corollary to that is what | just said.
If you have a direct connection, in this case,
you don't need a storage tank. M. MDernont
told the EPA that. They said we don't agree.
The plate came down, he proposed one day storage
with two neans to get it to the Morris POTW

The one day -- the neans were a tank truck and a
direct connection to the sewer. Those two neans
satisfy the regulations. M. Minie's statenent
that two POTW are necessary, is a new

statenment -- is a new statenent that she just
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came up with in August, and | submt just cane
up with for this particular case. M. Roque
said in her experience in reviewing permts this
was sonet hing new. This was Joyce's call
Before this, two nmeans to get it to the sane
POTWwas required, now all of a sudden we need
two POTWs. And nost telling of that is the
Rochell e permit that was issued about a month
ago where Ms. Munie authorized storage tank, one

day storage tank with only one POTW Wy do
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they get treated differently than Mrris,
Community Landfill? | ask the board to ask that
question. | think the condition should be
anended to all ow one day | eachate storage and
probably, probably nost inportantly in this
hearing, we presented absolutely sound credible
evi dence from experts having -- between M.
Limer, M. Silver, and M. Skouby, these
experts have al nbst 100 years of expertise in
the area of dewatering, the area of subsidence,
the area of groundwater renedi ation. These
gentlemen testified, | think clearly, | think
cogently that this was absolutely the best

met hod to treat groundwater. The Agency was
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concerned about it because of subsidence, but
you know what, there isn't a single person at
the Agency that reviewed this application that
has any qualifications necessary to nake these
deci si ons.

Ms. Roque, like her a lot, really got
permt reviewer, good engineer, this just isn't
her specialty. She said she took a one day

seminar. |'msorry, against the expertise of
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the gentlenmen that testified in this case, the
expertise of the gentlenmen that actually did the
calculations and the field work in this case,
the expertise, | don't think Ms. Roque's
concerns shoul d substantiate termnating
deconmi ssioning the wells that are already in
pl ace and requiring the landfill to dig a 2,000
foot trench through 25 feet of rocks that m ght
cause subsi dence and problens in and of itself.
I want to back up just a second, with
respect to the noving of the waste or leaving it
in place, absolutely no environnental harmto
leave it in place but the testinony from
everybody, the mayor kind of said it the best,

it just makes sense, leave it where it's at.
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And even the EPA kind of grudgingly said there
could be some problens with snell and there
could be some problens with traffic and there
could be some problens with dust, if we nove
this stuff. It just doesn't make sense |ike the
mayor said

In summary, and | think nost

i mportantly, the board need not be concerned if
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they grant us this relief for any potential or
threat to human health or the environnent to the
State of Illinois if the relief is granted.

| would ask that after due
consideration of the transcript in this case,
post-hearing briefs and the rulings that were
made, and | don't know, perhaps sone
post - hearing notions, that the board grant the
relief requested by CLC.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN:  Thank you,
M. LaRose.

MR LARCSE: You're wel cone.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN: M. Ki n?

MR. KIM Thank you. 1'd also like to
thank all of the participants in this hearing.

I know it has been a | ong and drawn out process
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and hopefully those efforts have not gone on to
waste and | don't think they have.

The first statement I'd |like to make
is that the IEPA did file a notion for a parti al
summary judgnment in this matter in Decenber of
2000. We acknow edge that the board has not had

sufficient time to nake a ruling upon that
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noti on, however, we would like to, at this
point, incorporate, and we will in our
post - hearing brief incorporate those argunents
to the extent that they have not been yet ruled
upon, and we woul d, again, suggest that the
board seriously consider the argunents and the
requests made in that notion.

As to the testinony and as to the
argunents that have been nade in -- regarding
the conditions that have been identified as
contested conditions, the | EPA states in sunmary
fashion that its actions were in accordance with
applicable Illinois Pollution Control Board
gui del i nes, guidelines set forth under the EPA
Act and in observance and we believe correct
interpretation of the rel evant underlying

regul ations. The IEPA will nmake further nore

L. A REPORTI NG, 312-419-9292

887
conpr ehensi ve argunments in its post-hearing
brief and at this point has nothing further to
add.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN:  Thank you,
M. Kim

The cl osing reninded nme |I'm suppose to
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make a statement of credibility of the

wi t nesses. And based on mny professional and
| egal experience, | find that there are no
issues with credibility with any of the

Wi t nesses.

Wth that said | think we will go off
the record for a few noments to discuss the
post - hearing briefs.

(OFf the record.)

HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN: W' re back
on the record.

W' ve wor ked out a post-hearing
briefing schedule and it has been deci ded and
agreed to that sinultaneous open briefs will be
due by February 21st.

MR KIM | hate to do this, can |
ask -- can the briefs be due to the board by the

21st but not to the parties until the 22nd?
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Wbul d you agree to that? You can get it done,
then you can send it to ne, e-mail or fax it, if
you want, on the 22nd. M only problemis this,
| have -- under that schedule he potentially can

| ook at my brief before he gets to file his. |
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don't get that opportunity. That is my concern.
That's al ways the concern we have when we
file --

MR LARCSE: | told himthat | would
accept his brief by fax. | don't want to wait
anot her day just because we have this dichotony
bet ween Chicago and Springfield. | wll accept
his brief by fax on the 21st, accept it by
overnight mail on the 22nd. They can send ne
the brief the sanme way they sent ne the pernit
at 4:55 p.m on the 21st.

MR KIM So you will accept overnight

MR. LAROSE: Overnight mail on the
22nd, fax on the 21st.

MR KIM Ckay. That's fine.

MR. LAROSE: | mght be good but I
don't know if I'mthat good to respond to his

brief in a matter of m nutes.
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HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN: Let's try
thi s again.
We're going to have simnultaneous

opening briefs due on February 21st. M. Kim
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fromthe Agency will fax his opening brief to
M. LaRose on February 21st. Filing with the
board will be due on February 22nd, is that ny
under st andi ng?

MR, LARCSE: That's fine.

MR KIM Wwell, filing with the board
on the 21st, faxed copy on the 21st, hard copy
on 22nd.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN: My i st ake.

MR, LARCSE: |'ll do the exact sane
t hi ng.

MR KIM That's fine.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN: Witten
public coment will be due by February 14th.
February 28th, there will be sinmultaneous reply
briefs due. Do you want to handle that the sane
way or --

MR KIM [|f possible.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HALLORAN:  Ckay.

Handl e the sane way as the opening briefs, fax

L. A REPORTI NG, 312-419-9292

890
by the 28th to the respective parties.
Before we sign off, | want to thank

the parties for their professionalismand their
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civility, and I'11

reproach and | appreciate it and you al

go one farther, beyond

safe trip hone and a great weekend.

MR. LAROSE: Thank yo

KI M

2 3 3

KI M

O ficer.

(Whi ch were all

Thank you.

Thank you,

in the above-entitled cause.)

u.

LARCSE: You, too.

M. Hearing
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|, ROSEMARIE LA MANTI A, being first
duly sworn, on oath says that she is a court
reporter doing business in the City of Chicago;
that she reported in shorthand the proceedi ngs
given at the taking of said hearing, and that
the foregoing is a true and correct transcript
of her shorthand notes so taken as aforesaid,
and contains all the proceedings given at said

heari ng.

ROSEMARI E LA MANTI A, CSR
Li cense No. 84 - 2661

Subscri bed and sworn to before ne
this day of , 2001

Not ary Public
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